

FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

Waters Edge Wineries, Inc.
A California corporation
8560 Vineyard Avenue, Suite 408
Rancho Cucamonga, CA 91730
909-468-9463
ken@watersedgewineries.com
www.watersedgewineries.com

We grant franchises for WATERS EDGE WINERY & BISTROS that feature the manufacture and sale of wine, the teaching of winemaking, the sale of related wine accessories, and the sale of bistro menu items that include artisan cheese and fruit appetizers, seasonal salads, panini-style sandwiches, flatbread pizzas, decadent desserts, and beverages such as craft beer (subject to state law), coffee and soft drinks. We sell unit franchises for the right to operate a single WATERS EDGE WINERY & BISTRO ("Store").

The total investment necessary to begin operation of a WATERS EDGE WINERY & BISTRO Store is \$829,957 to \$1,337,923. This includes \$133,080 to \$229,169 that must be paid to the franchisor or an affiliate if you don't buy an existing winery owned by the franchisor (or franchisor's affiliate) and \$794,080 to \$1,182,669 if you buy an existing winery owned by the franchisor (or franchisor's affiliate).

This disclosure document summarizes certain provisions of your franchise agreement and other information in plain English. Read this disclosure document and all agreements carefully. You must receive this disclosure document at least 14 calendar days before you sign a binding agreement with, or make any payment to the franchisor or an affiliate in connection with the franchise sale. **Note, however, that no governmental agency has verified the information contained in this document.**

You may wish to receive your disclosure document in another format that is more convenient for you. To discuss the availability of disclosures in different formats, contact Ken Lineberger at 8560 Vineyard Avenue, Suite 408, Rancho Cucamonga, CA 91730 and 909-468-9463.

The terms of your contract will govern your franchise relationship. Don't rely on the disclosure document alone to understand your contract. Read all of your contract carefully. Show your contract and this disclosure document to an advisor, like a lawyer or an accountant.

Buying a franchise is a complex investment. The information in this disclosure document can help you make up your mind. More information on franchising, such as "A Consumer's Guide to Buying a Franchise," which can help you understand how to use this disclosure document, is available from the Federal Trade Commission. You can contact the FTC at 1-877-FTCHELP or by writing to the FTC at 600 Pennsylvania Avenue, NW, Washington, DC 20580. You can also visit the FTC's home page at www.ftc.gov for additional information. Call your state agency or visit your public library for other sources of information on franchising.

There may also be laws on franchising in your state. Ask your state agencies about them.

Issuance date: April 10, 2023, as amended August 10, 2023.

How to Use This Franchise Disclosure Document

Here are some questions you may be asking about buying a franchise and tips on how to find more information:

QUESTION	WHERE TO FIND INFORMATION	
How much can I earn?	Item 19 may give you information about outlet	
	sales, costs, profits or losses. You should also	
	try to obtain this information from others, like	
	current and former franchisees. You can find	
	their names and contact information in Item 20	
	or Exhibit F.	
How much will I need to invest?	Items 5 and 6 list fees you will be paying to	
	the franchisor or at the franchisor's direction.	
	Item 7 lists the initial investment to open. Item	
	8 describes the suppliers you must use.	
Does the franchisor have the financial	Item 21 or Exhibit G includes financial	
ability to provide support to my	statements. Review these statements carefully.	
business?		
Is the franchise system stable,	Item 20 summarizes the recent history of the	
growing, or shrinking?	number of company-owned and franchised	
	outlets.	
Will my business be the only WATERS	Item 12 and the "territory" provisions in the	
EDGE WINERY & BISTRO business in	franchise agreement describe whether the	
my area?	franchisor and other franchisees can compete	
	with you.	
Does the franchisor have a troubled	Items 3 and 4 tell you whether the franchisor	
legal history?	or its management have been involved in	
	material litigation or bankruptcy proceedings.	
What's it like to be a WATERS EDGE	Item 20 or Exhibit F lists current and former	
WINERY & BISTRO franchisee?	franchisees. You can contact them to ask	
	about their experiences.	
What else should I know?	These questions are only a few things you	
	should look for. Review all 23 Items and all	
	Exhibits in this disclosure document to better	
	understand this franchise opportunity. See the	
	table of contents.	

What You Need To Know About Franchising Generally

<u>Continuing responsibility to pay fees</u>. You may have to pay royalties and other fees even if you are losing money.

<u>Business model can change</u>. The franchise agreement may allow the franchisor to change its manuals and business model without your consent. These changes may require you to make additional investments in your franchise business or may harm your franchise business.

<u>Supplier restrictions</u>. You may have to buy or lease items from the franchisor or a limited group of suppliers the franchisor designates. These items may be more expensive than similar items you could buy on your own.

<u>Operating restrictions</u>. The franchise agreement may prohibit you from operating a similar business during the term of the franchise. There are usually other restrictions. Some examples may include controlling your location, your access to customers, what you sell, how you market, and your hours of operation.

<u>Competition from franchisor</u>. Even if the franchise agreement grants you a territory, the franchisor may have the right to compete with you in your territory.

Renewal. Your franchise agreement may not permit you to renew. Even if it does, you may have to sign a new agreement with different terms and conditions in order to continue to operate your franchise business.

<u>When your franchise ends</u>. The franchise agreement may prohibit you from operating a similar business after your franchise ends even if you still have obligations to your landlord or other creditors.

Some States Require Registration

Your state may have a franchise law, or other law, that requires franchisors to register before offering or selling franchises in the state. Registration does not mean that the state recommends the franchise or has verified the information in this document. To find out if your state has a registration requirement, or to contact your state, use the agency information in Exhibit A.

Your state also may have laws that require special disclosures or amendments be made to your franchise agreement. If so, you should check the State Specific Addenda. See the Table of Contents for the location of the State Specific Addenda.

Special Risks to Consider About This Franchise

Certain states require that the following risk(s) be highlighted:

- 1. <u>Out-of-State Dispute Resolution</u>. The Franchise Agreement requires you to resolve disputes with us by mediation, arbitration and/or litigation only in California. Out-of-state mediation, arbitration, or litigation may force you to accept a less favorable settlement for disputes. It may also cost more to mediate, arbitrate, or litigate with the franchisor in California than in your home state.
- 2. <u>Spouse Liability</u>: Your spouse must sign a document that makes your spouse liable for all financial obligations under the franchise agreement, even if your spouse has no ownership interest in the franchise. This guarantee will place both your and your spouse's marital and personal assets perhaps including your house, at risk if your franchise fails.

Certain states may require other risks to be highlighted. Check the "State Specific Addenda" (if any) to see whether your state requires other risks to be highlighted.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

	<u>Page</u>
ITEM 1 THE FRANCHISOR, AND ANY PARENTS, PREDECESSORS AND AFFILIATES	1
ITEM 2 BUSINESS EXPERIENCE	3
ITEM 3 <u>LITIGATION</u>	3
ITEM 4 BANKRUPTCY	5
ITEM 5 INITIAL FEES.	5
ITEM 6 OTHER FEES	6
ITEM 7 ESTIMATED INITIAL INVESTMENT	9
ITEM 8 RESTRICTIONS ON SOURCES OF PRODUCTS AND SERVICES	15
ITEM 9 FRANCHISEE'S OBLIGATIONS	17
ITEM 10 FINANCING	18
ITEM 11 FRANCHISOR'S ASSISTANCE, ADVERTISING, COMPUTER SYSTEMS,	
AND TRAINING	
ITEM 12 TERRITORY	26
ITEM 13 TRADEMARKS	28
ITEM 14 PATENTS, COPYRIGHTS AND PROPRIETARY INFORMATION	30
ITEM 15 OBLIGATION TO PARTICIPATE IN THE ACTUAL OPERATION OF	
THE FRANCHISE BUSINESS	
ITEM 16 RESTRICTIONS ON WHAT THE FRANCHISEE MAY SELL	
ITEM 17 RENEWAL, TERMINATION, TRANSFER AND DISPUTE RESOLUTION	
ITEM 18 PUBLIC FIGURES	
ITEM 19 FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE REPRESENTATIONS	
ITEM 20 OUTLETS AND FRANCHISEE INFORMATION	
ITEM 21 <u>FINANCIAL STATEMENTS</u>	
ITEM 22 CONTRACTS	
ITEM 23 RECEIPTS	43
EXHIBITS	
Exhibit A – List of State Agencies/Agents to Receive Service of Process	
Exhibit B – Application and Deposit Agreement	
Exhibit C – Table of Contents for Operations Manual and Food Operations Manual	
Exhibit D – Store Franchise Agreement (Including Appendices)	
Exhibit E – Addendum to Franchise Agreement (SBA Loan)	
Exhibit F – List of Existing and Terminated Franchises	
Exhibit G – Financial Statements	
Exhibit H – State Specific Addenda	
Exhibit I - Electronic Funds Transfer Authorization	
Exhibit J – Receipts	

ITEM 1 THE FRANCHISOR, AND ANY PARENTS, PREDECESSORS AND AFFILIATES

To simplify the language in this disclosure document, "we," "our" or "us" means Waters Edge Wineries, Inc., the Franchisor. Sometimes "us" also refers to entities we control, controlled by or under common control with Waters Edge Wineries, Inc. "You" means the person or entity that buys the franchise. If you are a corporation, partnership or other entity, "you" also may mean your owners.

Your Franchisor

We are a California corporation formed on May 15, 2012. Our principal place of business is 8560 Vineyard Avenue, Suite 408, Rancho Cucamonga, CA 91730. Our agents for service of process are disclosed in Exhibit A to this disclosure document.

Our business is offering and selling Waters Edge Winery & Bistro franchises and operating ourselves Waters Edge Winery & Bistro businesses. Our franchise grants you the right to use our trademarks, system and methodologies. It also entitles you to participate in our advertising program and receive advertising and marketing assistance in your territory.

Franchisor's Parents, Predecessors and Affiliates

We have no predecessors or parent companies. Our affiliate, BEKH Cellars Inc., a California corporation ("BEKH") was incorporated on July 10, 2020. BEKH is located at the same address as us and is the approved supplier for finished wine, juice and equipment. BEKH does not offer franchises of the type being franchised nor does it offer franchises in any other business. We have no affiliates that offer franchises in any line of business. Other than BEKH, we have no affiliates that provide products or services to franchisees.

We previously offered a private branded Waters Edge Winery store program, but are no longer offering this program. A private branded franchise granted franchisees the right to use our system and methodologies, but under a separate primary trademark the franchisee created and we approved. For example, our Midland private branded franchise trades by the name Texas Sun Winery. A private branded franchise does not receive advertising and marketing assistance in their territory. If you are an existing private branded franchisee and wish to open another location, we will permit you to do so under the same private labeled brand. Otherwise, all new locations must be opened under the Waters Edge Winery & Bistro brand.

Other than as described above, we do not offer any other franchises or engage in any other lines of business. We began offering Waters Edge Winery franchises in June 2012. However, Waters Edge's principals have operated a similar business and have been involved in the wine business since 2004.

The Franchise Offered

We sell Waters Edge Winery franchises. We grant you the right to operate a Store within a specific geographic area ("Designated Area").

Your Store will feature the manufacture and sale of wine and related wine accessories, as well as food and other bistro menu items for on-premises consumption. If you purchase a Store without our large tank system (see Item 7), your individual store will produce wine in smaller containers and batches. If you purchase a Store with our large tank system, you will be able to produce wine in greater volumes. Waters Edge Winery & Bistro stores are full-service federally bonded wineries equipped with state of the art fermentation equipment, professional tasting bar and lounge areas. You must manufacture and prepare the wine in accordance with our specified recipes and formulas and serve it in accordance with our specified standards.

Each Store operates under the name WATERS EDGE WINERY & BISTRO, and the Marks. Private branded franchise stores operate under a separate primary mark you create and we approve. You must operate your Store pursuant to our system. Your Store will have approximately 3,500 to 7,000 square feet.

The Market and Competition

Waters Edge Winery & Bistros offer wine, wine products, food and accessories at retail to the general public and at wholesale to other establishments (such as hotels and restaurants) and certain customers for resale purposes. Sales are year round. Your competitors include other businesses offering similar wine, wine products, food and services, and may include franchise systems and other chains. The market for stores similar to your WATERS EDGE WINERY& BISTRO is developing.

Laws, Licenses and Permits

All Stores are subject to laws and regulations affecting businesses generally. Additionally, all stores are subject to various federal, state and local government regulations, including those relating to the manufacture, storage and sale of wine products, as well as the labeling of wine products. We urge you to make further inquiries about all of these laws. It is your sole responsibility to obtain and keep in force all necessary licenses and permits required by public authorities, including any required federal or state winery license.

Industry Specific Regulations

The retail liquor business is highly regulated by federal, state and local laws. These laws require that you obtain all necessary liquor licenses before you open your Store. In some jurisdictions, liquor licenses may be difficult to secure and often require proof of good character and no criminal background. The manufacture, distribution and sale of alcoholic beverages is heavily regulated under state and federal laws. Government regulations impact terms and conditions of payment; payment of excise taxes; advertising, trade and pricing practices; product labeling; sales to minors and intoxicated persons; relationship among product producers, importers, wholesalers, and retailers; ability to ship product between states; and limitation on multiple unit ownership. Some jurisdictions limit the sale of liquor to state-owned or licensed outlets. These laws may also impose limits on the way you advertise your business and the date and hours in which you may operate. For more detailed information as to how these laws affect your business, you should contact the Liquor Control Board of your state and the City Manager of the city in which you will operate and consult with your attorney concerning these and other local laws and ordinances that may affect your Store.

You also agree to comply with all local, state and federal laws of a more general nature that affect your business, including employment, workers' compensation, corporate, tax, licensing, applicable laws pertaining to the privacy of customers, employees, and transactional information ("Privacy Laws") and similar laws and regulations.

ITEM 2 BUSINESS EXPERIENCE

OUR BUSINESS EXPERIENCE

Chief Executive Officer: Ken Lineberger

Ken Lineberger has been our Chief Executive Officer in Rancho Cucamonga, California since May 2012.

Vice President, Secretary and Treasurer: Angela Lineberger

Angela Lineberger, the wife of our Chief Executive Officer, has been our Vice President, Secretary and Treasurer in Rancho Cucamonga, California since May 2012. Ms. Lineberger has been the Chief Executive Offer, Corporate Secretary, Chief Financial Officer and Director of BEKH Cellars Inc. in Rancho Cucamonga, California since July 2020. Ms. Lineberger was our Franchise Liaison in Rancho Cucamonga, California from June 2015 to September 2020.

Director of Franchise Operations: Mark Mitzenmacher

Mark Mitzenmacher has been our Director of Franchise Operations in Rancho Cucamonga, California since January 2015.

Director of Franchise Support: Jennifer Hulan

Jennifer Hulan has been our Director of Franchise Support in Rancho Cucamonga, California since March 2022. Ms. Hulan was unemployed from August 2021 to February 2022. Ms. Hulan was the franchisee of our Waters Edge Winery in Centennial, Colorado from March 2015 to July 2021.

Franchise Liaison: Deanne Wells

Deanne Wells has been our Franchise Liaison in Rancho Cucamonga, California since November 2021. Ms. Wells was an Administrator/Recruiter for Langwasser & Company CPAs in Upland, California from January 2021 to September 2021. Ms. Wells was unemployed between September 2021 and November 2021 and April 2020 and December 2020. Ms. Wells was a Syndication Administrator for Crossroads Equipment Lease & Finance in Rancho Cucamonga, California from July 2014 to March 2020.

Director of Training: Art DeCaro

Art DeCaro has been our Director of Training in Rancho Cucamonga, California since August 2020. Mr. DeCaro was the Tasting Room Manager and Sommelier for Peltzer Farm and Winery in Temecula, California from June 2018 to July 2020. Mr. DeCaro was the Tasting Room Manager and Sommelier for Vindemia Vineyard and Winery in Temecula, California from February 2017 to June 2018.

ITEM 3 <u>LITIGATION</u>

PENDING LITIGATION:

Waters Edge Wineries, Inc. vs. Wine Vibes, LLC, Sherifat Lawal, Tamesha Hampton, and Phelicia Colvin (Case No. 5:22-cv-01883-SB-SHK, C.D. Cal).

On October 26, 2022 we filed a federal complaint against our franchisee Wine Vibes, LLC, a Texas limited liability company, and its principals Sherifat Lawal, Tamesha Hampton, and Phelicia Colvin (collectively referred to as "Defendants"). The complaint alleges multiple causes of action, including breach of contract, trademark infringement, false designation of origin, misappropriation of trade secrets under both the Defend Trade Secrets Act (DTSA) and the California Uniform Trade Secrets Act (CUTSA), unfair competition under California Business & Professions Code, and California common-law unfair competition. We are seeking compensatory damages, consequential, special, incidental, and restitution damages, preliminary and permanent injunctive relief to prevent the Defendants from using our trademarks and trade secrets, and operating a competing wine business, reasonable costs and attorney fees incurred in this action, and post-judgment interest. On December 31, 2022, Defendants counter-claimed against us, asserting causes of action for declaratory judgment, fraudulent inducement, anticipatory repudiation, rescission, novation, fraud, and misrepresentation.

On February 22, 2023, the Court granted our motion to dismiss Defendants' counterclaim and affirmative defenses and issued an Order to Show Cause against the defendants regarding our request for an award of reasonable attorneys' fees and costs in bringing the motion because of Defendants' multiple failures to comply with the Court's rules. On March 15, 2023, the court issued an order revoking opposing counsel's pro hac vice application and imposed sanctions against her due to her pattern of rule violations, failure to comply with basic filing procedures, and her hostility and incivility towards our counsel. The Court also admonished Defendants' local counsel for failing to properly supervise the matter and warned that any future violations could result in further sanctions. A jury trial is scheduled for November 13, 2023.

CONCLUDED LITIGATION:

Waters Edge Wineries, Inc. v. Franson Family Wineries, LLC and Kyle Franson; and Franson Family Wineries, LLC v. Waters Edge Wineries, Inc. and Ken Lineberger (Cal. Sup. Ct., San Bernardino, No. CIV DS 1723250, filed Nov. 22, 2017).

On November 22, 2017, we brought this claim against our Franchisee Franson Family Wineries, LLC ("Franson") and its owner Kyle Franson for breach of contract, breach of implied contract, declaratory relief, injunctive relief and intentional interference with prospective economic advantage arising from Franson's breach of the franchise agreement, failing to pay fees, producing wine off premises, use of unauthorized products, failing to provide monthly reports and for interfering with our relations with other franchisees. On February 7, 2018, Franson counter-sued us and our CEO for fraud, rescission and unfair competition, alleging damages in excess of \$500,000. Trial was held on September 7, 2021. In a Statement of Intended Decision issued on December 16, 2021, the Court found that we met our burden to prove that Franson breached the Franchise Agreement by failing to pay royalties and submitting sales reports. The court also found that Franson failed to support his claims against us for fraud, rescission or unfair competition. On March 1, 2022, the court entered a final judgment in our favor on all causes of action and awarded us \$1,835,998 together with costs and attorney's fees. After entry of the court judgment, Franson agreed to pay us \$2,150,000 in exchange for a release from his franchise agreements and non-compete covenants.

CONCLUDED ACTION:

California Commissioner of Financial Protection and Innovation v. Waters Edge Wineries, Inc. FIL ORG ID: 92873.

On November 10, 2021, the State of California Department of Financial Protection and Innovation (the "Department") entered into a Consent Order with us. The Department alleged we violated an undertaking we signed in April 2019, pursuant to which our Chief Executive Officer agreed not to call a promissory note due to him during the registration period, by paying down a portion of the loan balance due. Without admitting any wrongdoing, we agreed in the Consent Order to comply with California Corporations Code section 31203. Should we violate the Consent Order, we agreed that the Commissioner may, in addition to all other available

remedies summarily suspend/revoke our California franchise registration (if applicable) or deny our California franchise applications (if applicable) until we are in compliance. We also waived the right to a hearing and to any reconsideration, appeal, or other right to review this matter.

Other than as disclosed above, no litigation is required to be disclosed in this Item.

ITEM 4 BANKRUPTCY

No bankruptcies are required to be disclosed in this Item.

ITEM 5 INITIAL FEES

Initial Fee- First Location

The Initial Franchise Fee is \$50,000.

At least 14 days after you receive this disclosure document, you will pay an Application Fee of \$12,000 and sign the Application and Deposit Agreement, which is attached to this disclosure document as Exhibit B; \$6,000 of this fee is refundable if you do not sign a Franchise Agreement and ask us for a refund within 180 days of signing the Deposit Agreement. No refund will be provided thereafter. If you sign a Franchise Agreement, the Application Fee is credited toward the Initial Franchise Fee.

You pay the remaining balance of the Initial Franchise Fee when you sign the Franchise Agreement. This amount is earned on receipt, and is not refundable after you sign the Franchise Agreement.

We waive the Initial Franchise Fee if you operate under our private branded franchise program and wish to convert to our full franchise program. We will permit you to convert to our full franchise program if you are a private branded franchisee in good standing and you are in full compliance with the terms of the Franchise Agreement.

Veterans Discount

If you are a veteran of the United States Armed Services with supporting credentials (i.e. Veteran ID Card), we will offer you a discount of 10% off the Initial Franchise Fee, currently \$5,000.

Additional Locations.

If you apply and we approve your application to purchase an additional Store, you will, for each such additional Store purchased, enter into our then current form of Franchise Agreement, except that the amount of the Initial Franchise Fee will be as follows:

- 1. For the second Store purchased by you or your affiliate, the Initial Franchise Fee is seventy five percent (75%) of our then current Initial Franchise Fee charged to franchisees;
- 2. For the third Store purchased by you or your affiliate, the Initial Franchise Fee is fifty percent (50%) of our then current Initial Franchise Fee charged to franchisees;
- 3. For the fourth Store purchased by you or your affiliate and each subsequent Store thereafter, the Initial Franchisee Fee is twenty five (25%) of our then current Initial Franchise Fee charged to franchisees.

Nothing obligates us to grant you an additional Store and you do not obtain rights pursuant to your Franchise Agreement to purchase or operate more than one franchise location.

Other Initial Fees

You must also purchase certain opening inventory from us or our affiliate at a cost of approximately \$35,000 to \$55,000 and winery equipment at a cost of approximately \$26,000 to \$96,000 depending on type of equipment and whether a small or large tank system is purchased. See Item 7.

If you purchase an existing Store location from us, you will also pay for the assets (including leasehold improvements), equipment and goodwill of the location, as negotiated by us. Leasehold improvements can range from \$612,500 to \$735,000. See Item 7.

You must purchase the Revel System POS hardware and the VinesOS software from us at a cost ranging from \$10,658-\$11,747.

You must use our approved supplier for grand opening advertising and promotion. The cost of our approved supplier's Brand-Level PR & Social Media program is \$4,500 and includes the creation of social media content, press releases, local media outreach and other promotional activities and materials. You pay us for the grand opening advertising and we pay the approved supplier.

Except as indicated above, the initial fees charged franchisees are uniform and are non-refundable.

ITEM 6 OTHER FEES

You will pay certain other fees to us or our designee during the course of operations. A summary of such other fees are contained in the following chart.

Name of Fee(1)	Amount	Due Date	Remarks
Royalty Fee (3)	5% of Gross Sales (2)	Due on the	This fee is payable via electronic transfer.
		15 th day of	
		the month	
		following	
		the month	
		for which	
		the fee is	
		due.	
Advertising Fee	2% of Gross Sales (2)	Due on the	If you have a full franchise, you must pay an
(4)		15 th day of	Advertising Fee of 2% of Gross Sales monthly.
(Applies only to		the month	
full franchises,		following	
not existing		the month	
private branded		for which	
franchises)		the fee is	
		due.	
Local	3% of Gross Sales	As incurred.	See Note (5). Payable to third party providers.
Advertising (5)			
Audits	Cost of audit plus	Immediately	You pay for cost of audit only if it shows an
	interest at the maximum	upon receipt	understatement of your Gross Sales, Royalty Fees
	rate allowable by law	of bill.	or Advertising Fees or an understatement of 2%
			or more from data reported to us in respect to any

Name of Fee(1)	Amount	Due Date	Remarks
			other item that is material to the computation of
			fees or analysis of the operation.
Transfer Fee	50% of our then current	Upon	Payable when you transfer your franchise.
	Initial Franchise Fee	application for consent	
		to transfer.	
Renewal Fee	\$5,000	Prior to	
	72,000	renewal.	
Late Fee, Interest	\$50 for each delinquent report or payment, plus interest on past due amounts, not to exceed 10% annually in California.	As incurred.	In addition to the Late Fee for delinquent reports and payments, all amounts owed to us will bear interest at the lesser of 18% per annum or the highest legal rate allowed in the state in which your Designated Area is located, which in California is 10% per annum. We also may levy fines for your failure to comply with your obligations under the Franchise Agreement (as further set forth in our Operations Manual).
Added Services Fee	Up to 5% of Gross Sales, with a minimum of \$350 per month.	Due on the 15th day of the month following the month for which the fee is due. We begin collecting this fee 90 days after you sign the Franchise Agreement.	Used to provide you with one or more of the following services: limited accounting support and assistance, limited financial consulting guidance, intranet / extranet access / website hosting, internet email accounts, website development assistance for your store and internet marketing and advertising services using information you provide to us and we approve. We may increase the Added Services Fee on 30 days written notice. This fee is payable via electronic transfer.
Technology Fee (6)	Up to \$924 per month	Due on the 15 th day of the month following the month for which the fee is due.	This range includes both Revel Systems POS and VinesOS software support fees. This fee is payable via electronic transfer.
Default Fee	Up to \$2,500 per violation	On demand	Assessed if we determine that you violated any term, obligation or requirement of the Operations Manual or Franchise Agreement.
Additional	\$400 per day	Prior to	If you attend our refresher training course, you
Training Fee		training	must pay this daily fee. You must also pay this
		7	fee for us to train your replacement managers.

Name of Fee(1)	Amount	Due Date	Remarks
Additional	\$400 per day per person	Immediately	We provide opening assistance at no cost. See
Assistance (7)	plus personnel's travel	upon receipt	Item 11.
	expenses	of bill	
Annual	Up to \$750 per person	On demand	You must attend our annual national
Conference and	attending, currently		conference(s) that we organize for franchisees. In
Regional	\$300 per person		addition, we may require you and your General
Meeting Fee			Manager to attend regional meetings that we may
			organize from time to time. You pay our then
			current fee for attending our conferences and
			meetings. You are also responsible for travel,
			lodging and related costs and fees for all persons
			who attend from your Store.
D 11 T	150/ + 250/ 6 11	0 1 1	D 114 1 1 2
Payroll Taxes and Worker's	15% to 25% of payroll	On demand	Payroll taxes and worker's compensation rates
	cost		vary by state. Check with your local payroll
Compensation			company about what to expect. Payable to a third
Merchant Fees	20/ to 20/ of your andit	On demand	party.
Merchant rees	2% to 3% of your credit card transactions	On demand	Payable to a third party.
Liquidated	If your Store has been	On demand	Payable if you continue operating your Store or
Damages	operating for at least 12		another competitive business after termination or
	months: 8% of the		expiration of your franchise agreement.
	average Gross Sales (2)		The state of the s
	during the 12-month		
	period immediately		
	preceding termination		
	or expiration, multiplied		
	by the number of full		
	and partial months from		
	your first violation to		
	the expiration of the		
	non-compete term,		
	payable as a lump sum.		
	If your Store has been		
	operating less than 12		
	months: 8% of the		
	average Gross Sales (2)		
	during the 3-month		
	period immediately		
	preceding termination		
	or expiration, multiplied		
	by the number of full		
	and partial months from		
	your first violation to		
	the expiration of the		
	non-compete term,		
	payable as a lump sum.		

We may require that all fees payable to us be paid through an electronic depository transfer account, See Exhibit "I."

Notes:

- (1) You pay all fees to us or our designee unless otherwise noted. All fees are non-refundable. All fees for new franchisees are uniformly imposed. There are no current cooperatives.
- (2) Gross Sales include the total revenues and receipts from the sale of all products and services including, but not limited to, wine and wine products, food, winemaking courses, services, merchandise and any wholesale items sold onsite or offsite of your Store and includes, but is not limited to, winery rental fees received and any other revenues collected by you from your operations. Gross Sales do not include sales tax actually paid to government agencies and documented refunds provided to customers.
- (3) You are required to use our Sales Reporting Module ("SRM"), which will calculate your Royalties obligation from your Revel POS. You will receive an invoice for your monthly Royalties on the 5th of each month. You will have until the 10th of each month to dispute the calculated Royalty amount. The monthly Royalty amount is deducted via electronic transfer from your electronic depository transfer account on the 15th of every month.
- (4) We collect a monthly Advertising Fee equal to 2% of Gross Sales. See Item 11 for more information on advertising. This fee only applies to full franchise locations, not private branded franchise locations.
- (5) Upon our request, you must provide to us on a quarterly basis an itemization and accounting of the monies that you spent for the preceding quarter on approved local advertising, as further described in Item 11.
- (6) The Technology Fee includes: the VinesOS software licensing fee which ranges from \$324-\$424 monthly depending on your wine club sales volume; and the Revel POS software licensing fee which is \$300-\$500 monthly depending on the configuration.
- (7) We will provide additional assistance to you upon your reasonable request. At the time of this disclosure document, the fee for additional training is \$400 per day plus our personnel's travel expenses if we come to you. This training fee also will apply if we train a new General Manager not trained as part of your opening training. See Item 11 for more details on training.

ITEM 7 ESTIMATED INITIAL INVESTMENT

YOUR ESTIMATED INITIAL INVESTMENT

		Method		
Type Of		Of		To Whom Payment Is
Expenditure	Amount	Payment	When Due	To Be Made
Initial Franchise	\$50,000	Lump Sum	\$12,000 upon	Us
Fee (1)			execution of	
			Application and	
			Deposit	
			Agreement;	
			balance upon	
			execution of	
			Franchise	
			Agreement.	

		Method		
Type Of Expenditure	Amount	Of Payment	When Due	To Whom Payment Is To Be Made
Leasehold Improvements (2)	\$664,000 – \$953,500	As Arranged	As Arranged	Contractors and Lessor, or Us (if You Purchase an Existing Winery from us)
Winery Equipment (3)	\$26,000 – \$96,000	As Arranged	As Arranged	Us or our affiliate
Computer System & Label Printing; data storage, phone line, modem, internet access and other hardware and software costs needed to implement and maintain these. (4)	\$2,549 – \$13,750	As Arranged	As Arranged	Approved Suppliers
Revel System POS hardware, VinesOS software, and first 3 months of Technology Fee (5)	\$12,530- \$14,519	As Arranged	As arranged	Us
Added Services Fee (6)	\$1,050	Via Electronic Transfer	15 th day of the month	Us
Rent, Lease & Utility Security Deposits (7)	\$9,000 – \$40,000	As Arranged	Before Opening	Lessor and Utility Companies
Initial Inventory (8)	\$35,000 – \$55,000	Lump Sum	Upon Delivery of Inventory	Us or our affiliate
Insurance (9) (initial deposit)	\$1,000 – \$6,000	As Arranged	Monthly Premium	Insurance Company
Training Expenses (10)	\$2,000- \$9,500	As Arranged	As Arranged	Transportation, Hotels,
Custom Winery System Training (11)	\$4,000	As Arranged	As Arranged	Us or our affiliate
Grand Opening Advertising and Promotion (12)	\$4,500 -\$8,500	As Arranged	As Arranged	Us
Winery Licenses,; licensing compliance (13)	\$5,500 – \$10,900	As Arranged	As Arranged	Approved Suppliers/Appropriate State/Local Authorities
Professional Fees (14)	\$1,000 – \$5,000	As Arranged	As Arranged	Your Attorneys and Other Professionals
Uniforms (15)	\$500 - \$1,500	As Arranged	As Arranged	Approved Suppliers
Payroll Service (16)	\$180 - \$750	As Arranged	Monthly	Approved Supplier
Local Organizations (Optional) (17)	\$0-\$500	As Arranged	As Arranged	Third Party Supplier
Bank Charges for first 3 months (18)	\$60 - \$150	As Arranged	As Arranged	Third Party Supplier
Janitorial for first 3 months (19)	\$500 - \$1,000	As Arranged	As Arranged	Third Party Supplier
Entertainment for first 3 months (20)	\$0 - \$ 7,500	As Arranged	As Arranged	Third Party Supplier

		Method		
Type Of		Of		To Whom Payment Is
Expenditure	Amount	Payment	When Due	To Be Made
Printing and	\$100 - \$1,000	As Arranged	As Arranged	Third Party Supplier
Reproduction (21)				
Security System (22)	\$100 - \$300	As Arranged	As Arranged	Third Party Supplier
Televisions (23)	\$0 - 6,500	As Arranged	On Purchase	Third Party Supplier
Direct TV or similar	\$0 - \$375	Lump Sum	Monthly	Satellite Service
service for your store				Provider
(optional) (24)				
Food Protection	\$388 - \$629	As Arranged	Before Opening	Third Party Supplier
Training, Testing and				
Certification (25)				
Additional Funds (26)	\$10,000 -	As Arranged	As Arranged	Employees, Suppliers
(3 month period)	\$50,000			
TOTAL ESTIMATED	\$829,957 -			
INITIAL	\$1,337,923			
INVESTMENT (27)				

Notes:

- * Except where otherwise noted, all amounts that you pay to us are nonrefundable. Third party suppliers will decide if payments to them are refundable. We do not offer any direct or indirect financing to you. Except as otherwise noted, all estimates are approximate through the first 3 months of operations.
- (1) <u>Initial Franchise Fee</u>. See Item 5 for a description of the Initial Franchise Fee and the terms under which it may be refunded.
- Leasehold Improvements. The costs of construction and leasehold improvements depend upon the size and condition of the premises, the nature and extent of leasehold improvements required, the local cost of contract work and the location of your individual store. Additionally, these estimates include (i) the cost for an assortment of office equipment and supplies as prescribed in the Operations Manuals, including a printer, copier, telephones and miscellaneous furniture; (ii) bistro kitchen equipment and supplies, including a work table, microwave convection oven, panini grill, microwave oven, refrigerated pizza table, and slicer; and (iii) required signage. The low estimate assumes your store is 3,500 square feet and located in a suburban market. The high estimate assumes your store is 4,500 square feet and located in an urban market. The estimate includes your architectural and engineering fees. You must use our designated construction management firm, currently SCG West located in Newport Beach, California. These estimates will also apply if you purchase assets (including leasehold improvements) of an existing winery from us.
- Winery Equipment. The cost to purchase corkers and containers to make smaller batches of wine ("small tank system") ranges from \$25,000 to \$28,000. The cost to purchase the large tank system with stainless steel tanks ranges from \$55,000 to \$60,000. You will also incur freight costs to ship the tank(s) to your location ranging from \$1,000 to \$8,000, depending on which configuration you purchase and the distance of your location from California. The low estimate of \$26,000 assumes you purchase the small tank system at the lower estimate and the cost for shipment is \$1,000, but do not purchase our large tank system with stainless steel tanks. The high estimate of \$96,000 assumes you purchase the small tank system at the higher estimate, purchase our large tank system with stainless steel tanks at the higher estimate and the cost for shipment is \$8,000. These estimates will also apply if you purchase equipment of an existing winery from us. The initial investment required will depend on financing terms available and other factors.

- (4) <u>Computer System & Label Printing.</u> Estimated cost of all required Computer System components. The low estimate of \$2,500 includes the basic printing option for custom labels and sharing of another Computer System in the business. The high estimate assumes full color graphic printer and Computer System purchased for dedicated label printing use. The costs for data storage, phone line, modem, internet access and additional hardware and software costs needed to implement and maintain these services are estimated to range from \$49 to \$250 a month.
- (5) Revel System POS Hardware, VinesOS Software, Technology Fee. The VinesOS software set-up fee and the Revel POS hardware set-up and installation ranges from \$10,658 to \$11,747. Also included in the range is the first 3 months of the Technology Fee, which ranges from \$624 \$924 monthly depending on your wine club sales volume. The VinesOS software operates the wine club management and Revel Systems POS runs the POS and conducts inventory management. The low estimate assumes the lower set up and installation fee with lower wine club sales volume. The high estimate assumes the higher set up and installation fee and your franchise has a higher wine club sales volume.
- (6) <u>Added Services Fee</u>. This estimate includes the first 3 months of the Added Services Fee, which is \$350 per month.
- (7) Rent, Lease & Utility Security Deposits. You typically will rent the premises for your individual store. This estimate assumes rent for the first 3 months of operations as well as lease and utility security deposits for a 2,500 to 4,000 square foot store. Landlords may require a security deposit, and utility companies may require that you place a deposit prior to installing telephone, gas, electric and related utility services. A typical utility security deposit is one month's expense. A typical lease deposit will be an amount equal to one month's rent. These deposits may be refundable in accordance with the agreements made with the utility companies and landlord. Monthly rental expense may vary widely based on geographic location, size of the store, local rental rates and other factors.
- (8) <u>Initial Inventory</u>. Your initial inventory must be purchased from approved suppliers or in accordance with our specifications as is further described in Item 8 of this disclosure document. Initial inventory consists of various juices and other wine ingredients, food and ingredients, packaging products, cleaning supplies, and other supplies used in the operation of the individual store including finished wine purchased from us, as well as other merchandise or products sold by the Store. The initial inventory expenditure will vary according to current market prices for supplies.
- (9) <u>Insurance</u>. You must procure and maintain, throughout the term of the Franchise Agreement, insurance in such amounts as set forth in the Franchise Agreement and further described in Item 8. We have estimated the initial deposit for the insurance as \$1,000-\$6,000. The monthly premium is payable directly to the insurance company. The cost of insurance will vary based on policy limits, type of policies procured, any lease requirements, nature and value of physical assets, number of employees, square footage, contents of the business, geographical location and other factors bearing on risk exposure. You must add us as additional insureds under your policy.
- (10) Training Expenses. There is no fee for initial training, however, you must make arrangements and pay the expenses for you and the General Manager to attend our training program in Rancho Cucamonga, California, including transportation, lodging, meals and wages. The amount expended will depend, in part, on the distance you must travel and the type of accommodations you choose. We estimate these expenses to be \$2,000 to \$9,500. The estimate provided contemplates initial training expenses for you and up to 2 managers for 1 week. The low estimate assumes you reside near our headquarters and that you incur minimal travel expenses. The higher estimate assumes we train more than one manager and that you incur higher travel expenses. See Item 11 for more information on training. We may exempt you (at our sole discretion) from some or all the training if you have pre-existing experience in the

- winery field and can demonstrate that you have sufficient knowledge and experience in each of the training subjects provided. However, we can still require your manager to attend.
- (11) <u>Custom Winery Training</u>. You will receive custom winery systems training at approximately the same time when your tanks are installed. Training will be provided by our staff who will make up to 4 trips for up to 8 days total, if you are purchasing a large tank system. The cost for the custom winery systems training for the large tank system is \$4,000, and includes the \$400 daily training fee, plus travel costs, including airfare, hotel, rental car and per diem. We do not provide on-site training if you purchase the small tank system, but will provide training in Rancho Cucamonga, California, which is included in your Initial Franchise Fee.
- (12) Grand Opening Advertising and Promotion. You must conduct your grand opening advertising and promotion according to our written specifications, including the use of our approved supplier. The cost for the Brand-Level PR & Social Media program required for all our franchisees is \$4,500. At your option, you may elect to purchase our approved supplier's more expensive media program at a cost of \$8,500. You may choose to conduct additional social media advertising beyond the required minimum. You pay this fee to us and we pay our approved supplier.
- Winery Licenses and Licensing Compliance. It is solely your responsibility to obtain and maintain a winery license for your Store. The cost of a winery license may vary between states. We estimate that the cost of a winery license is \$1,000 \$5,000 annually. Additional licenses or conditional use permits may be required by local municipalities or counties. You must use our approved supplier, VA ABC, as your licensing and compliance vendor during the first year of your franchise term. These estimates include the \$5,000 fee you must pay VA ABC to obtain your federal and states licenses and the monthly fee of \$300 for your first 3 months of their licensing and compliance services.
- (14) <u>Professional Fees.</u> Estimated charges for you to consult with independent professional advisors like a lawyer and CPA. We urge you to consult an experienced accountant or financial advisor to develop a business plan and financial projections for your operation.
- (15) <u>Uniforms.</u> You must purchase and your employees must at all times wear uniforms while on duty imprinted with the Trademarks and conforming to other specifications we prescribe. Actual costs will vary depending on the number of employees and uniforms ordered. The low estimate is for 10 uniforms and the high estimate is for 30 uniforms.
- (16) <u>Payroll Service</u>. You must retain an outside payroll service to provide payroll services to your employees. The low estimate assumes 3 or fewer employees. The high estimate assumes 20 employees.
- (17) <u>Local Organizations</u>. You may decide, at your option, to join a local organization like a chamber of commerce, business league or the like.
- (18) <u>Bank Charges</u>. Many banks charge a monthly account service fee or other charges to maintain a commercial account.
- (19) <u>Janitorial</u>. You will have expenses for any janitorial service. If your lease requires you to pay for other services (gardening, pest control, as examples) these will be additional expenses.
- (20) Entertainment. You may choose to hire local bands or musical artists to perform on weekends to draw a larger crowd and to add ambiance. You will decide how often and what kinds of entertainment will meet your guest's tastes. Fees for performer vary widely. Typically with music, you are required to

- pay royalty license fees to organizations like ASCAP and SESAC. Some localities require an entertainment permit. The estimates assume a monthly cost range of \$0-\$2,500.
- (21) <u>Printing and Reproduction</u>. These costs generally include costs of printing menus and brochures for your Store.
- (22) <u>Security System</u>. This estimate includes the cost of security/alarm equipment, and any other costs associated with monitoring.
- (23) <u>Televisions</u>. While not required, you can elect to install televisions at your store. The low estimate of \$0 assumes you do not purchase and install televisions at your Store. The high estimate assumes you purchase and install 2 televisions.
- (24) <u>DirecTV or Similar Service for your Store</u>. We recommend that you subscribe to a satellite TV service. The low estimate of \$0 assumes you elect not to subscribe to this service. The high estimate is for 3 months of service at approximately \$125 per month.
- (25) Food Protection Training, Testing and Certification. You must require all employees handling food to obtain and maintain food handler certification training from companies we approve. In addition, you and all managers of the Store must take and successfully complete food management training from companies we approve. The cost for server training and certification ranges from \$15 \$23 per person. The cost of manager training and certification is \$179 per person. The low estimate assumes you have 2 servers complete the server training and certification at the lower rate and that you and 1 manager complete the manager training and certification. The high estimate assumes you have 4 servers complete the server training and certification at the higher rate and that you and 2 managers complete the manager training and certification. The amount you spend on food protection training, testing and certification may be higher, depending on the number of servers and managers you have handling food at the Store.
- Additional Funds. This amount of working capital is projected as sufficient to cover initial operating expenses for a period of 3 months. However, the estimate does not include hourly labor costs. These figures are estimates, and we cannot guarantee you will not have additional expenses starting the business. Your costs will depend on factors such as: how closely you follow our recommended System; your management skill, experience and business acumen; local economic conditions; the time of year; the local market for our services; competition; and the sales level reached during the initial period. Additional working capital may be required if sales are low or fixed costs are high.
- (27) Total Estimated Initial Investment. This table estimates your initial investment for a new Waters Edge Winery & Bistro Store or of a purchase of an existing store from us. We have used our experience in the business to compile these estimates. You should review these figures carefully with a business advisor before making any decision to purchase the franchise. Your total initial investment in some categories (such as leasehold improvements, equipment, training expenses, office equipment and furniture) may be less if you are converting your existing winery to the Waters Edge Winery & Bistro System.

You must bear any deviation or escalation in costs from the estimates in this Item 7 or estimates that we give during any phase of the development process. This initial investment amount is for your first Store only.

ITEM 8 RESTRICTIONS ON SOURCES OF PRODUCTS AND SERVICES

To maintain a uniform image and uniform quality of products and services throughout the Waters Edge Winery & Bistro system, you must at all times comply with our quality standards and use your best efforts to adhere to such standards. You are not required to purchase or lease real estate from us but we must consent to the location of your Store (see Item 11). We also must consent to any lease for your Store premises. You must construct and equip your Store in accordance with our then-current approved design, specifications and standards. In addition to meeting our design specifications and standards, it is your responsibility to ensure that your building plans comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act and all other federal, state and local laws. You must also use equipment (including the small and/or large tank system) and purchase and use other hardware and software we tell you, including a computer system, the Revel POS, the VinesOS Software (as explained in Item 11), signage, products, ingredients, supplies and advertising material that meet our specifications and standards.

We provide you with a list of approved manufacturers, suppliers and distributors and approved inventory products, ingredients, equipment, signs and items containing the trademarks and other supplies or services necessary to operate your Store ("Approved Supplies List"). From time to time we, or a third-party vendor or supplier may be the only approved supplier for certain products. The Approved Suppliers List also may include other specific products without reference to a particular manufacturer, or they may set forth the specifications and/or standards for other approved products. You must purchase all products used in the operation of your Store from suppliers approved in writing by us. We may periodically revise the Approved Suppliers List and Approved Supplies List. We will provide updates to the Operations Manuals, approved suppliers and Approved Supplies Lists. You must operate your Store in strict compliance with the standard procedures, policies, rules and regulations contained in the Operations Manuals, approved suppliers and Approved Suppliers Lists. Your ability to obtain required purchases and other items for operating your Store may be delayed due to any pandemics or epidemics affecting the geographic area in which you operate.

You must notify us in writing if you want to offer for sale any brand of product, or to use in the operation of your Store any brand of juice or other wine ingredient or other material, equipment, item or supply that has not been approved by us, or to purchase any product from a supplier that has not been designated by us as an approved supplier. If requested by us, you must submit samples and other information as we require for testing or to otherwise determine whether the product, material or supply, or the proposed supplier meets our specifications and quality standards. The supplier may also be required to sign a supplier agreement. We generally will notify you of supplier approval or disapproval within 45-60 days of our receipt of all the information and samples requested. We do not intend to charge for inspecting and evaluating proposed suppliers. We may re-inspect the facilities and products of any supplier of an approved product or item and revoke our approval of any supplier or item that fails to continue to meet any of our criteria. We will send written notice of any revocation of an approved supplier or item.

We apply the following general criteria in approving a proposed supplier: (1) ability to make product in conformity with our specifications; (2) willingness to protect the secrets behind the uniqueness of a product without dissemination to others; (3) production and delivery capability; (4) reputation and integrity of supplier; and (5) financial condition and insurance coverage of the supplier.

We reserve the right to receive rebates or other consideration from suppliers in connection with the purchase by franchisees of ingredients for wine and other beverage products, various juices, packaging products, cleaning supplies, services and other supplies used in the operation of WATERS EDGE WINERY & BISTROS, as well as merchandise or products sold by the stores. Most of these payments will be calculated based on products sold to you in your Designated Area. We can retain and use such payments as we deem appropriate or as required by the vendor and you acknowledge that such benefits may not be passed on to you.

BEKH is an approved supplier for finished wine, juice, winemaking ingredients, equipment cleaning supplies, corkers and equipment and is the only approved supplier for finished wine, winemaking ingredients, equipment cleaning supplies, corkers, equipment and juice purchases for the first 90 days after your Store opens for business. After the 90-day period, you may purchase juice from our other approved supplier(s). BEKH will derive a profit from these sales to our franchisees. Angela Lineberger, our Vice President, Secretary and Treasurer listed in Item 2, owns BEKH. For the fiscal year ending December 31, 2022, BEKH derived approximately \$497,428in revenue from required franchisee purchases, which is 100% of BEKH's total revenue of \$497,428. With this exception, no officer of ours owns an interest in any required, recommended or approved supplier.

We may derive revenue from franchisee purchases. In the year ending December 31, 2022, we derived approximately \$74,908 from required franchisee purchases, which is 12.43% of our total revenue of \$602,834. In the year ending December 31, 2022, we received revenue in the form of a rebate from a third party supplier in the amount of \$5,215 on account of the supplier's transactions with our franchisees.

There currently are no purchasing or distribution cooperatives. We may negotiate purchase arrangements with suppliers (including price terms), for the benefit of the franchise system. We do not provide material benefits to you (for example, renewal or granting additional franchises) based on your purchase of particular products or services or use of particular suppliers.

You must carry insurance policies protecting you, and us. The insurance policies must include, at a minimum: (i) special/causes of loss coverage forms (sometimes called "All Risk coverage") on your Store and all fixtures, equipment, supplies and other property used in the operation of the Store, for full repair and replacement value of the machinery, equipment and improvements, including full coverage for loss of income resulting from damage to the Store without any co-insurance clause, except that an appropriate deductible clause is permitted; (ii) business interruption insurance covering a minimum of 6 months loss of income, including coverage for Royalties with us naming us as a loss payee with respect to those fees; (iii) comprehensive general liability insurance, including product liability insurance, with minimum limits of \$1,000,000 per occurrence and \$2,000,000 aggregate; (iv) liquor liability coverage with minimum limits of \$1,000,000 per occurrence; (v) automobile liability insurance, including coverage for autos owned, leased, hired or borrowed by you or your owners and used for business purposes, with limits of at least \$300,000 per claim; (vi) workers' compensation and employer's liability insurance covering all of your employees (vii) umbrella liability insurance which also includes liquor liability, employers liability and automobile liability, with minimum limits of \$2,000,000 per occurrence; (viii) Waters Edge Wineries, Inc. as named additional insured on all liability policies required by this subparagraph; and (ix) any other such insurance coverages or amounts as required by law or other agreement related to your Store. We also recommend, but do not require, you to obtain data theft and cybersecurity coverage and employment practices liability insurance.

You can expect that items purchased or leased in accordance with our specifications will represent approximately 50% to 60% of total purchases you will make to begin operations of your Store and 25% to 50% of the ongoing costs to operate the Store.

ITEM 9 FRANCHISEE'S OBLIGATIONS

This table lists your principal obligations under the franchise and other agreements. It will help you find more detailed information about your obligations in these agreements and in other items of this Disclosure Document.

		Section in Franchise	Disclosure Document	
	Obligation	Agreement	Item	
a.	Site selection and	Sections 2A and 5A;	Items 7 and 11	
	acquisition/lease	Addendum to Lease		
b.	Pre-opening purchases/leases	Sections 5A, 5F and 6A-C	Items 5, 6, 7 and 8	
c.	Site development and other pre-	Sections 5A and 5B;	Items 1, 5, 7, 8 and 11	
	opening requirements	Addendum to Lease		
d.	Initial and ongoing training	Sections 7B and 7C	Items 5, 6 and 11	
e.	Opening	Sections 2C and 5A	Items 5, 11, 12 and 15	
f.	Fees	Sections 4B, 6C, 6J, 7B, 7C, 9A-E, 9G-9I, 11B, 11C and 15M	Items 5, 6 and 7	
g.	Compliance with standards and policies/operations manual	Sections 6A-O	Items 1, 6, 7, 8, 11 and 16	
h.	Trademarks and proprietary information	Sections 3A-E and 6K	Items 13 and 14	
i.	Restrictions on products/services offered	Sections 2D and 6A	Items 6, 7, 8, 11 and 16	
j.	Warranty and customer service requirements	Section 7D	Items 6 and 11	
k.	Territorial development and sales quotas	Sections 2B and 2D	Item 12	
1.	Ongoing product/service purchases	Sections 6A-C	Items 6, 7 and 8	
m.	Maintenance, appearance and remodeling requirements	Sections 5B-E	Items 7, 8 and 11	
n.	Insurance	Section 10C	Items 6, 7, and 8	
0.	Advertising	Sections 8A-D and 9C	Items 6, 7, 8 and 11	
p.	Indemnification	Section 10B	Item 6	
q.	Owner's participation/ management/staffing	Sections 7A-E	Items 11 and 15	
r.	Records/reports	Sections 9D, 9G and 9H	Items 6 and 16	
s.	Inspections/audits	Sections 5C, 6E and 9H	Items 6 and 11	
t.	Transfer	Sections 11A-G; Addendum to Lease Section 2	Items 6 and 17	
u.	Renewal	Sections 4A-B	Item 6 and Item 17	
v.	Post-termination obligations	Sections 10D(3-4) and 14A-	Item 17	
	_	C; Addendum to Lease		
		Section 4		
w.	Non-competition covenants	Section 10D	Item 17	
х.	Dispute Resolution	Sections 12A-E	Item 17	
y. I	Liquidated Damages	Sections 10E- F	Item 6	

ITEM 10 FINANCING

We do not offer direct or indirect financing. We do not guarantee your note, lease, or obligation.

ITEM 11 FRANCHISOR'S ASSISTANCE, ADVERTISING, COMPUTER SYSTEMS, AND TRAINING

Except as listed below, we are not required to provide you with any assistance.

Pre-Opening Assistance. Before you open your Store, we will:

1. Provide you with site selection considerations and assistance and general building and design requirements for your Store (Franchise Agreement, Sections 5A and B). You select the site for the Store within the area designated in the Franchise Agreement. We provide you with site selection considerations. Once you select a proposed site, we will review and either approve or disapprove the selected location. We do not generally own the premises you will lease. We will generally approve the area in which you select the site.

You must verify to us that your site complies with our site selection considerations. We do not select or endorse your site. However, upon your submission of all required information, we will provide you with written confirmation within 15-30 days that we have no objections to your site. Our identification of, or consent to, a site means that the site meets our criteria. The site selection factors considered by us in deciding whether or not to object to the location may include the following: (a) demographics; (b) traffic patterns; (c) visibility; (d) business mix; (e) ability to obtain winery license; (f) ability to reflect image to be portrayed by Waters Edge Winery & Bistro businesses; and (g) adequacy of signs and image.

You must propose a site for your location and obtain our approval within 90 days of the date of your Agreement. We will not unreasonably withhold consent to one 90-day extension of this deadline if prior to expiration of the deadline, you seek our approval in writing for an extension together with an explanation of the effort you have taken to date to identify a location and steps you plan to take in the future to identify a location. Otherwise, we have no obligation to grant an extension or provide another extension, if one has already been given. If we fail to approve a proposed site within 90 days from the date of your Agreement, or within the period covered by any extension we grant you, we have the right to declare your Agreement null and void and keep all Initial Franchise Fees or other amounts paid to us. (Franchise Agreement, Section 2A). You must conform the premises to local ordinances and building codes and obtain any required permits. (Franchise Agreement, Section 6I). We do not provide any assistance in hiring and training employees, except that we will provide initial training for up to 2 managers you elect to bring to the initial training program. (Franchise Agreement, Section 7B).

- 2. Provide you with the approved suppliers and Approved Supplies List (Franchise Agreement, Section 6B), including list of equipment, signs, fixtures, opening inventory and supplies you must order. Some of your purchases will be directly from us; others will be from other approved suppliers. We do not deliver or install these items.
- 3. Provide you with either a written copy or an electronic copy of the Operations Manuals that detail the specifications and procedures incidental to the operation of your Store (Franchise Agreement, Section 6G). The table of contents of the Operations Manuals are listed in Exhibit C.

4. Provide the training programs described below (Franchise Agreement, Sections 7B and C).

Ongoing Assistance. During the operation of your Store, we will:

- 1. Provide updates to the Operations Manuals, approved suppliers and Approved Supplies Lists (Franchise Agreement, Sections 6B and 6G).
- 2. Make periodic visits to your Store as we reasonably determine to be necessary to provide consultation and guidance. (Franchise Agreement, Section 6E).
- 3. Provide refresher training courses, as you request or as we determine necessary and require you to attend. You must pay a daily training fee and all expenses for you and your manager to attend, including training materials, travel and living expenses (Franchise Agreement, Section 7C).
- 4. Maintain the Advertising Fund (Franchise Agreement, Section 8B).
- 5. We may, from time to time, make suggestions to you with regard to pricing policies. We retain the right to establish maximum and minimum prices to be charged by you for sales promotions or otherwise, but any exercise of that right will be specifically set forth in writing. (Franchise Agreement, Section 6M).
- 6. We may develop new products and services that you must offer. (Franchise Agreement, Section 6A).
- 7. <u>Toll Free Telephone Number</u>. We may now or in the future establish a toll free telephone number for the purpose of accepting and confirming customer orders nationwide, customer service, and customer follow-up and satisfaction surveys. If we establish a toll free number, you must comply with our procedures for implementing the nationwide service as we specify in the Manuals or otherwise in writing. (Franchise Agreement, Section 6.0).

Marketing

Grand Opening and Local Advertising

Before opening you must use our approved supplier's Brand-Level PR & Social Media program to conduct your grand opening advertising at a cost of \$4,500. The grand opening program will begin 45 days before opening and last 15 days after opening. After opening, you must spend at least 3% of your Gross Sales on local advertising and promotion. You may only use your own advertising material if we have approved it before its use. You must obtain our approval of all promotional and advertising materials before use. We will approve or reject the materials within 10 days of receipt. On a quarterly basis you must provide us with itemization and proof of advertising and an accounting of the monies that you spent for approved local marketing. If you fail to make the required expenditure, we have the right to collect and contribute the deficiency to the advertising fund. You must maintain a business phone.

Advertising Fund

Your Store is required to pay an Advertising Fee of 2% of your Gross Sales to an advertising fund (the "Fund") established by us. The Fund and advertising fee do not apply to private branded locations since they will not benefit from the Fund. All Advertising Fees will be placed in the Fund that we own and manage. If requested, we will provide you an annual unaudited statement of the financial condition of the Fund. (Franchise Agreement, Section 8.B.)

We will administer the Fund. We may use the Fund for (1) broadcast or print advertising; (2) social media advertising; (3) the creation, development and production of advertising and promotional materials, including ad slicks, radio, direct mail pieces, and other print advertising; (4) marketing or related research and development; and (5) advertising and marketing expenses, including development of our website and intranet or extranet system, internet access provider costs, equipment research and development services provided by advertising agencies, public relations firms or other marketing, research or consulting firms or agencies, customer incentive programs, sponsorships, marketing meetings and sales incentives, subscriptions to industry newsletters or magazines, and administrative costs, overhead and salaries for our marketing support personnel.

We determine the use of the monies in the Fund. We are not required to spend any particular amount on marketing, advertising or promotion in the area in which your Store is located. The Fund is not a trust or escrow account, and we have no fiduciary obligation to you with respect to the Fund. We have the right to make disbursements from the advertising fund for expenses incurred in connection with the cost of formulating, developing and implementing marketing, advertising and promotional campaigns. The disbursements may include payments to us for the expense of administering the Fund, including accounting expenses and salaries and benefits paid to our employees engaged in the advertising functions. As of December 31, 2022, we had not collected any Advertising Fees. Therefore, there were no Fund expenditures in the year then ended.

We will oversee and administer the Fund and advertising program. Outside suppliers may contribute to the Fund. We will prepare an annual unaudited accounting of the Fund and will make it available for your review upon your request.

There is no requirement in the franchise agreement for us to contribute to the Fund. However, it is our policy that for each Waters Edge Winery & Bistro we operate, we will contribute to the Fund on substantially the same basis as we require of you. Recognizing there may be different contribution levels or formulas for different franchisees, our contributions are not required to be the same amounts or formula as you contribute. We can spend in any fiscal year, more or less than the amount of contributions to our respective Funds made in that year. However, funds not spent in a fiscal year when contributed may be applied and used for Fund expenses in other years, which could also include payment of expenses from prior years.

Although we do not have a current practice of doing so, we may use advertising funds for the solicitation of franchise sales.

We currently do not utilize an advertising council composed of franchisees that advise us on advertising policies. However, we may implement such a council on notice to you.

Except as stated above, the franchise agreement does not have any requirements for you to participate in local or regional advertising cooperatives or in any other advertising fund.

Computer System

You must purchase and use hardware and software as we designate to record and analyze sales, labor, inventory, product usage, site selection considerations and tax information (the "Computer System"). The Computer System may be modified from time to time in response to business, operations and market conditions (Section 6C of Franchise Agreement). As of the date of this disclosure document, the Computer System includes a Windows compatible PC with the minimum hardware and software configurations as detailed in the Operations Manual or otherwise in writing, as well as a Windows compatible printer (preferably a laser printer).

You must separately purchase a POS system meeting our requirements. As of the date of this disclosure document, the typical POS system setup includes the POS hardware (two stations, each with an Apple iPad, cash drawer and receipt printer) and the POS cloud based software. The minimum hardware and

software configurations are detailed in the Operations Manual or otherwise in writing. Our current approved POS hardware supplier is Revel Systems based in San Francisco, California, and VinesOS based in Campbell, California for the wine club software. The VinesOS software operates the wine club management and Revel Systems POS runs the POS and conducts inventory management including purchasing, and integration into Quickbooks for financial management.

We may access your computer and POS systems and retrieve, analyze, download and use all software, data and files stored or used on your Computer System and POS. We may access the information system through electronic means, in your individual store or from other locations. You must store all data and information that we designate and report data and information in the manner we specify, including through the internet, extranet or other online communications. You also must have your Store connected to the internet using a connection method we approve, currently DSL or cable modem. You must use the internet email account(s) we provide you.

You must record daily all sales using our designated software. You must keep books and records and submit reports as we periodically require, including but not limited to a monthly profit plan, monthly balance sheet and monthly statement of profit and loss, records of prices and special sales, check registers, purchase records, invoices, sales summaries and inventories, sales tax records and returns, payroll records, cash disbursement journals and general ledger, all of which accurately reflect the operations and condition of your Store operations. You must provide us or our designee passwords and access to your online accounting records and other accounting programs. You acknowledge and agree that we and our designee will have full and complete access to information and data entered and produced by the accounting programs without need to obtain prior notice or approval from you; however, you may restrict our ability to change accounting information and limit us to "view only" in the software setup. There is no contractual limit on our right to access your software and computer information. You must compile, keep and submit to us, the books, records and reports to us as we periodically prescribe. The records that you are required to keep for your store must include detailed daily sales, cost of sales, and other relevant records or information maintained in an electronic media format and methodology we approve. You also must preserve and retain the books, records and reports for not less than 36 months. You must allow us electronic and manual access to any and all records relating to your Store.

You must pay for data storage, phone line, modem, internet access and all additional hardware and software costs needed to implement and maintain these services.

As explained in Item 7, we estimate the cost of purchasing the Computer System will range from \$2,549 to \$13,750. You must also pay the cost to upgrade or update the Computer System and software if we so request. There is no contractual limitation on the frequency and cost for you to do so. We estimate the cost of purchasing the POS system ranges from \$10,658 to \$11,747, which includes the initial installation and setup costs of the Revel POS hardware and VinesOS software. The VinesOS software operates the wine club management. There is also a Technology Fee, which ranges from \$624 - \$924 monthly, depending on your wine club sales volume. You must also pay the cost to upgrade or update the POS system and software if we so request. There is no contractual limitation on the frequency and cost for you to do so. We have no contractual obligation to maintain, repair, update or upgrade your computer system.

Intranet

We have established an Intranet through which we may communicate with you and may disseminate the Operations Manuals, updates and other confidential information to you. You must establish and maintain an electronic connection with the Intranet that allows us to send messages to and receive messages from you. We will have sole discretion and control over all aspects of the Intranet, including the content and functionality of the Intranet. You will have the privilege, but not the right, to use the Intranet, subject to your compliance with our policies. There is no separate cost for your use of the Intranet (Section 6D of Franchise Agreement).

Typical Length of Time Before You Open Your Store

The typical length of time between the signing of the Franchise Agreement, or the first payment of any consideration for the franchise, and the opening of your business is approximately 12 months from the execution of the Franchise Agreement. Factors that may impact this length of time may include whether you have a site selected upon execution of the Franchise Agreement, your ability to obtain a site, prepare a site survey, arrange leasing and financing, make leasehold improvements, install fixtures, equipment, and signs, decorate the Store, meet local requirements, obtain inventory, obtain a winery permit and similar factors. Construction delays, including those caused by pandemics, epidemics or other unforeseen events occurring in the geographic area where you operate your Store, may delay your ability to open your Store.

If you have not selected a site at the time the Franchise Agreement is signed, you have 90 days to do so or we may terminate the Franchise Agreement and keep all amounts paid to us. (Franchise Agreement, Section 2A). You must begin operations within 12 months after the date the authorized location is designated and no more than 60 days after completion of training, unless we authorize an extension. (Franchise Agreement, Section 2C). If you fail to begin operations within the stated time, we may terminate the Franchise Agreement. (Franchise Agreement, Section 13B).

Operations Manuals

We will provide you a copy of, or access to the Waters Edge Winery & Bistro's Operations Manual and Food Operations Manual. The Operations Manuals contain proprietary information and you must keep such information confidential, as stated in Item 14 of this disclosure document. The table of contents of the current Operations Manual and Food Operations Manual are attached to this disclosure document as Exhibit C. As of December 31, 2022, the Operations Manual contained a total of 87 pages.

Training

Not more than 60 days and not less than 10 days before the opening of your individual Store, we will provide the following initial training courses to train you and up to 2 managers (including your General Manager), which the attendees must complete to our satisfaction. Training is conducted online through our Learning Management System ("LMS"), including WEW University ("WEW U"), and in our training facility in Rancho Cucamonga, California. Before opening and thereafter, you must require all employees handling food to obtain and maintain food handler certification training from companies we approve. In addition, you and all managers of the Store must take and successfully complete food management training from companies we approve.

LMS ON-BOARDING TRAINING PROGRAM

(REMOTE CLASSROOM)

		Total Hours of "Online"	
Session	Subject	Training	Location
1	Intro to WEW U	0.2	Online
	a) What is WEW U?b) WEW intranet and toolsc) Grand Opening journey		

Session	Subject	Total Hours of "Online" Training	Location
2	WEW Intranet, Library, and CRM	0.5	Online
	<u> </u>	0.5	Omme
	a) Intranet basics, contents, and navigation		
	b) Intranet credentials and manipulation		
	c) Intranet notifications		
	d) Library and contents e) CRM task checklist and documentation		
3	,	0.3	Online
3	New Location On-Boarding Pre-Construction	0.3	Offiffie
	a) Intro to Director of Ops and Construction		
	Management		
	b) Avoid opening pitfalls		
4	c) Pre-construction task documentation	0.2	0.1
4	New Location On-Boarding	0.3	Online
	<u>During Construction</u>		
	a) Financial and marketing planning		
	b) Intro to suppliers and vendors		
	c) Intro to technological partners		
	d) During construction task documentation		
5	New Location On-Boarding	0.3	Online
	Prep for Opening		
	a) Intro to marketing and PR partner		
	b) Begin hiring		
	c) Grand Opening week schedule		
	d) Grand Opening week team training		
	e) Winery operations processes and		
	procedures		
	<u>TOTAL:</u>	1.6	

LMS ONLINE TRAINING PROGRAM

(REMOTE CLASSROOM)

Session	Subject	Total Hours of "Online" Training	Location
1	The Big Picture	0.6	Online
	a) WEW Philosophy b) 8 Points of Success c) Course Objectives d) Wine Making Overview e) Assessment		
2	First Pour a) Review/Q & A b) Marketing/Prospects c) Wine Knowledge d) Assessment	1.0	Online

		Total Hours of "Online"	
Session	Subject	Training	Location
3	Refining Your Tastes	1.0	Online
	a) Review/Q & A		
	b) Wine Tasting		
	c) Sales Primer		
	d) Assessment		
4	Profitable Pouring	0.75	Online
	a) Review/Q & A		
	b) Accounting 101 & QB		
	c) Operating Profitably		
	d) Good Hiring Practices		
	e) Assessment		
5	Squeezing the Most Out	1.0	Online
	a) Review/Q & A		
	b) Wine Knowledge		
	c) Daily Operations Branding		
	d) Assessment		
6	Vine to Bottle	0.5	Online
	a) Review/Q & A		
	b) Entrepreneur vs. Shopkeeper c) Wine Knowledge		
	d) Assessment		
7	Drink/Drank/Drunk	0.5	Online
,		0.5	Omme
	a) Review/Q & A		
	b) Safe Serve Principles		
	c) Wine Club Ops		
8	d) Assessment Calling All Wine Lovers	0.5	Online
0	Cannig An while Lovers	0.5	Omme
	a) Review/Q & A		
	b) Internet Site Basics		
	c) Social Media Overview		
	d) Internet Marketing		
	e) POS Overview & Setup		
	f) Information Systems & Data		
	g) Insurance		
	h) COLA's		
	i) GO Schedule		
	j) Assessment		

		Total Hours of "Online"	
Session	Subject	Training	Location
9	Daily Operations and Ecolab	0.6	Online
	a) Review/Q & A		
	b) Day to day FOH operations		
	c) FOH cleanliness and corporate expectation		
	d) Cash and safe management		
	e) Bar and wine management		
	f) Kitchen Cleanliness		
	g) Ecolabs services, products, and training)		
	Kitchen prep		
	i) Kitchen organization and safety		
	j) Recipe standardization and costing		
	k) Assessment		
	TOTAL:	6.45	

TRAINING PROGRAM

(CLASSROOM)

		Total Hours of "Classroom"	Total Hours of "On the Job"	
Day	Subject	Training	Training	Location
1	a) Review Online	2	6	Rancho
	Training			Cucamonga,
	b) 8 Points of Success			CA
	c) Onsite Course Objectives, Assessment			
	d) Equipment/Products			
	e) Wine Making Procedure			
2	a) Review/Q & A	2	6	Rancho
	b) Racking Procedure			Cucamonga
	c) Wine Tasting Review			
3	a) Review/Q & A	2	6	Rancho
	b) Filtering Procedure			Cucamonga
4	a) Review Q & A	2	6	Rancho
	b) Oral Presentation			Cucamonga
	c) Bottling Procedure			
5	a) Review/Q & A	2	6	Rancho
	b) 2 nd Assessment			Cucamonga
	c) Order Desk Procedures			-
	d) Complete Review			
	TOTAL:	10	30	

a. Ken Lineberger oversees our training. Ken's background is described in Item 2, has 19 years of experience in the subjects being taught, 19 years in the wine industry, and 12 years of experience with us. Additional employees, such as Art DeCaro will assist with training. Mr. DeCaro will assist with the overall training and assist you during your grand opening week. Mr. DeCaro joined Waters Edge Wineries, Inc. in August 2020. Mr. DeCaro has many years of experience in the Temecula Valley wine industry in both boutique as well as commercial wineries and brings knowledge spanning from vineyard work, wine production and cellar work, retail sales and wine service, tours and events as well as overall winery management. Mr. DeCaro is also a Certified Sommelier through the Court of Master Sommelier.

Mr. DeCaro has 10 years of experience in the subjects taught, 10 years of experience in the industry and 3 years of experience with us.

b. The instructional materials for each subject consist of the Operations Manuals, Training Manual, books/instructional materials and hands-on demonstration.

At least 2 people in your organization (you and your general manager) must complete to our satisfaction this training program that lasts approximately 1 week. We also provide books that we require you to read prior to attending training. We will provide the initial training program as needed. We do not charge for this training, but you must pay all travel and living expenses and supply costs for you and your manager. As noted in Item 7, you also will receive custom winery systems training before you open your Store. Training will be provided by our staff who will make up to 4 trips for up to 8 days total, if you are purchasing a large tank system. The cost for the custom winery systems training is \$4,000, and includes the \$400 daily training fee, plus travel costs, including airfare, hotel, rental car and per diem. We may exempt you (at our sole discretion) from some or all the training if you have pre-existing experience in the winery field and can demonstrate that you have sufficient knowledge and experience in each of the training subjects provided. However, we can still require your manager to attend. We do not provide on-site training if you purchase the small tank system, but will provide training in Rancho Cucamonga, California, which is included in your Initial Franchise Fee.

We have no obligation to provide the initial training courses if you or your affiliate currently owns or operates a Waters Edge Winery & Bistro or if the Franchise Agreement is executed as a renewal franchise agreement. (Franchise Agreement, Section 7.B)

We may require you to attend refresher training programs and we also will provide additional training upon your reasonable request. At the time of this disclosure document, we charge a daily fee of \$400 for these services, and you must pay the travel and living expenses for you and your manager to attend. If we come to you to provide any additional training, you must pay our personnel's travel expenses in addition to the daily training fee. All replacement General Managers must go through our training program at the time of hire and you must pay the \$400 daily training fee. In lieu of attending training in Rancho Cucamonga, you may train the replacement General Manager, if we approve in writing for you to do so. Our training guidelines are outlined in the Operations Manual.

You must attend our annual national conference(s) that we organize for franchisees. In addition, we may require you and your General Manager to attend regional seminars that we may organize from time to time. We currently charge \$300 per person to attend our annual conferences and regional meetings. We have the right to increase this amount to \$750 per person. Additionally, you are responsible for travel, lodging and related costs and fees for all persons who attend from your Store.

Our training program is provided to protect our brand and the Marks and not to control the day-to-day operation of your Waters Edge Winery & Bistro.

ITEM 12 TERRITORY

You will not receive an exclusive territory. You may face competition from other franchisees, from outlets that we own, or from other channels of distribution or competitive brands that we control.

You receive the right to operate an individual WATERS EDGE WINERY & BISTRO at a specific location described in the Franchise Agreement. If your Store location is not designated in your agreement when we sign, you have 90 days from the date of the Agreement to propose and obtain our consent to the proposed location. We may extend this deadline if you seek an extension prior to the expiration of the deadline. See Item 11.

The individual Store will be located in the Designated Area as set forth in Appendix A to the Franchise Agreement. The criteria used for determining the boundaries of your Designated Area include: the population base; population density; population growth trends; apparent degree of affluence of population; the density of residential and business entities; and major topographical features which clearly define contiguous areas, like rivers, mountains, major freeways, and underdeveloped land areas. Your Designated Area will generally have a trade area with a population base of approximately 100,000, although this number may be lower if you are in a non-metropolitan area. We determine the Designated Area. A written description or a map attached to the Franchise Agreement describes the Designated Area. There are no circumstances that would permit us to modify your territorial rights.

If you operate in certain locations such as casinos; military bases; race tracks; theme parks, including water parks and amusement parks, hotels, restaurants, malls, airports and specialty retail venues such as fairgrounds and other tourist oriented destinations ("Special Sites"), you will not receive any territorial rights. You may face competition from other franchisees, from outlets that we own, or from other channels of distribution or competitive brands that we control.

For locations other than Special Sites, we will not, during the term of your franchise, operate or grant others the right to operate any other WATERS EDGE WINERY & BISTRO within the Designated Area, except as generally described in this Item 12 and more fully set forth in the Franchise Agreement. Special Sites are excluded from your Designated Area. We have the right under our marks or otherwise to operate in Special Sites ourselves, or via franchisees or licensees, and to provide raw materials, ingredients, training and equipment or products to these Special Sites, even within your Designated Area.

Other than the Designated Area described above, the franchise is non-exclusive, and we retain the right, among others, in any manner and on any terms and conditions we deem advisable to compete with you. Specifically, we have the right: (1) outside of your Designated Area to grant other franchises and licenses and to develop and operate company or affiliate owned WATERS EDGE WINERY & BISTROS; and (2) inside and outside your Designated Area to offer, sell and distribute any products or services associated with the System under the Trademarks or any other trademarks through any distribution channel or method, such as the internet, catalog sales, telemarketing or other direct marketing, all without compensation to you, except that internet sales may be at our sole discretion either (a) directed to the store located in the Designated Area nearest to where the customer is located for fulfillment; or (b) if we elect to fulfill the online order to a customer in your Designated Area, we will pay fifty (50%) of the internet product's sale price less taxes, shipping and handling to you. We also have the right to operate and franchise or license others to operate stores or any other business within and outside the Designated Area under trademarks other than the WATERS EDGE WINERY & BISTRO Trademarks, without compensation to you, except that our operation of, or association or affiliation with stores (through franchising or otherwise) in the Designated Area that compete with WATERS EDGE WINERY & BISTROS in the wine-related store segment will only occur as a result of some form of merger or acquisition with an existing store chain.

We are not required to pay you if we exercise any of the rights specified above in your Designated Area. We do not restrict you from soliciting or accepting orders from outside your Designated Area, but you do not have the right to use alternative channels of distribution (such as Internet, catalog sales or telemarketing) to make sales outside your Designated Area unless we approve in writing, except for any internet sales that we direct to you, as noted above.

You do not receive any options or right of first refusal to acquire additional locations within or outside of your Designated Area unless you sign another franchise agreement with us.

If you need to relocate your Waters Edge Winery & Bistro because of condemnation, destruction, or expiration or cancellation of your lease for reasons other than your breach, we will grant you authority to do so at a site acceptable to us that is within your Designated Area; provided that you locate a site acceptable to us and are

open and operating within 60 days from closing the Store. You may not voluntarily relocate, unless you have given us notice of your intent to relocate not less than 30 days prior to closing the Store, have procured a site that we accept within 15 days after closing the prior Store, have opened the new Store for business within 60 days of such closure and complied with any other conditions that we reasonably require. You must pay the costs of any relocation, and we reserve the right to charge you for any reasonable costs that we incur.

You do not have the right to relocate in the event you lose the right to occupy the Unit Franchise premises because of the cancellation of your lease due to your breach. If your lease terminates because of your breach we may immediately terminate your franchise.

Neither we nor any of our affiliates have plans to operate or franchise a business under a different trademark, selling goods or services similar to those you will offer. However, we reserve the right to do so in the future.

ITEM 13 TRADEMARKS

The Franchise Agreement licenses you to use the service mark WATERS EDGE WINERY & BISTRO, as well as other trademarks, service marks, trade names and commercial symbols (collectively, the "Marks").

If you have been granted a private branded franchise, you must, after obtaining our written consent to the proposed name or mark, use and/or adopt another primary trademark and/or trade name in connection with your franchise. You agree to include such other designations that we may request in connection with your primary trademark and trade name, which may include, for example a designation indicating you are a private branded franchisee of Waters Edge, operating under license. Any mark or name that you adopt in connection with the operation of your franchise will belong to and inure to our benefit. You agree to assign all such marks and names and any registrations for such marks and names to us.

On termination or expiration of your franchise, you must stop using the Marks and all other marks and names adopted in connection with your franchise.

You have no proprietary interest whatsoever in the Marks as your right to use the Marks is derived solely from your agreements with us and is limited to the conduct of your WATERS EDGE WINERY & BISTRO franchise business. At the appropriate time, we intend to file all required affidavits and renewals for the Marks listed below.

We registered the following marks on the Principal Register of the U.S. Patent & Trademark Office:

Principal Trademarks	Principal/ Supplemental Register	Goods/Services	Reg. Date	Reg. Number
	Principal	Wines; Franchise services, namely,	January 21, 2014	4,471,672
		offering business		
		management		
		assistance in the		
WATERS EDGE WINERY		establishment		
		and operation of		
		wineries; Retail		
		and online stores		
		featuring wine		
		and related		

Principal Trademarks	Principal/ Supplemental Register	Goods/Services	Reg. Date	Reg. Number
•		products; Winery services; Custom production of wine for others; Providing information about wine- making		
Walers Edge® WINERIES	Principal	Wines; Franchise services, namely, offering business management assistance in the establishment and operation of wineries; Retail and online stores featuring wine and related products; Winery services; Custom production of wine for others; Providing information about winemaking	November 3, 2015	4,845,472
Waters Edge WINERY & BISTRO	Principal	Custom production of wine for others; Providing information about wine- making; Winery services	September 17, 2019	5,861,627
LIVE LIFE AT THE EDGE	Principal	Bar services; Bar services featuring wines; Bistro services; Providing of food and drink; Restaurant services; Wine bars; Restaurant, bar and catering services	August 27, 2019	5,845,452

We intend to file all required continued use affidavits to keep these registrations in effect.

We also claim common law rights to the trade and service marks we license to you.

Appendix A to your Franchise Agreement identifies the Marks that you are licensed to use. Appendix A includes the WATERS EDGE WINERY & BISTRO service marks and other Marks. You use of the Marks and any goodwill is to our exclusive benefit and you retain no rights in the Marks. You also retain no rights in the Marks upon expiration or termination of your Franchise Agreement. You are not permitted to make any changes or substitutions of any kind in or to the use of the Marks unless we direct in writing. We may change the System presently identified by the Marks including the adoption of new Marks, new products, new equipment or new techniques and you must adopt changes to the System at your expense, as if they were part of the Franchise Agreement at the time of its execution. If we notify you to discontinue or modify the use of any Mark, you must comply with our requests within the time frame we tell you. You will have at least 90 days to do so. We will not have any liability or obligation as to your modification or discontinuance of any Mark.

You may not separately register any domain name containing any of the Marks or operate your own website selling wine or related products, or any social media site or page whether or not they contain our Marks without our express prior written consent. If we consent to your registration and/or use of a domain name, social media page or website for your business (whether acquired, registered and/or used before or after entering into the Franchise Agreement), you must place such domain name(s), social media pages and website(s) in our name and/or transfer the ownership of the domain name(s), social media page(s) and website(s) to us, and take whatever other action we may require in this regard.

We are not aware of any currently effective material determinations by the United States Patent and Trademark Office, Trademark Trial and Appeal Board, the trademark administrator of any state, or any court, or any pending infringement, opposition or cancellation proceeding, or any pending material litigation, involving the Marks. There are no infringing uses actually known to us that could materially affect your use of the Marks. There are no agreements currently in effect that significantly limit our right to use or license the use of the principal trademarks. We are aware that certain restaurants located in Connecticut and Texas use Waters Edge in their name. However, due to our stores operating primarily as a winery and with a focus on wines, we do not deem such other usages detrimental to our brand.

We are not obligated to protect you against infringement or unfair competition claims arising out of your use of the Marks, or to participate in your defense or indemnify you. We reserve the right to control any litigation related to the Marks and have the sole right to decide to pursue or settle any infringement actions related to the Marks. You must notify us promptly of any infringement or unauthorized use of the Marks of which you become aware. The Franchise Agreement does not require us to take affirmative action when notified of these uses or claims. If we determine that a trademark infringement action requires changes or substitutions to the Marks, you must make the changes or substitutions at your own expense.

On termination or expiration of the Franchise Agreement, you agree that we may keep and if not already done so, you must transfer to us any domain names and websites used in operation of your Store.

ITEM 14 PATENTS, COPYRIGHTS AND PROPRIETARY INFORMATION

There are no patents or copyrights currently registered that are material to the franchise, although we do claim copyright ownership and protection for our web site, Operations Manual and various sales promotional and other materials published from time to time.

There are no currently effective determinations of the U.S. Copyright Office (Library of Congress), United States Patent and Trademark Office, Board of Patent Appeals and Interferences, or any court, or any pending infringement, opposition or cancellation proceeding or any pending material litigation involving any patents or copyrights material to the franchise. There are currently no agreements in effect that significantly limit our rights to use or license the use of any patents or copyrights in any manner material to the franchise. There are no infringing uses actually known to us that could materially affect your use of the patents or copyrights.

We are not obligated to protect you against infringement or unfair competition claims arising out of your use of any patents or copyrights, or to participate in your defense or indemnify you. We reserve the right to control any litigation related to any patents and copyrights and we have the sole right to decide to pursue or settle any infringement actions related to the patents or copyrights. You must notify us promptly of any infringement or unauthorized use of the patents or copyrights of which you become aware. If we determine that a patent or copyright infringement action requires changes or substitutions, you must make the changes or substitutions at your own expense.

You must keep confidential during and after the term of the Franchise Agreement all proprietary information, including the Operations Manual. You may not teach classes for or at any school, public, private or otherwise, that conveys any information about our proprietary winemaking process or franchise operation.

Upon termination of your agreement with us, you must return to us all proprietary information, including but not limited to the Operations Manual and all other copyright material. You must notify us immediately if you learn about an unauthorized use of proprietary information. We have the sole right to decide the appropriate response to any unauthorized use of proprietary information. You must comply with all changes to the Operations Manual at your cost.

ITEM 15 OBLIGATION TO PARTICIPATE IN THE ACTUAL OPERATION OF THE FRANCHISE BUSINESS

The rights and duties created by your franchise agreement is personal to you or your owners, as may be applicable. Among other things, we will grant a Franchise Agreement in specific reliance upon the individual or collective character, skill, aptitude, attitude, business ability and financial capacity of you and/or your shareholders/members/other owners. As such, you must participate in the actual operation of the franchise business as follows:

During the term of the Franchise Agreement, you (if franchisee is an individual) or your General Manager must devote full time and best efforts to the management of the Store. You or your General Manager must provide direct on-premises supervision to the Store. You and your General Manager must complete our training course. Your General Manager need not have any equity interest in the franchise. The use of a General Manager in no way relieves you of your obligations to comply with the agreement and to ensure that the Store is properly operated. You or your General Manager must be at the Store for any inspection or evaluation we conduct. You or your Principal Owners (if Franchisee is a corporation, partnership, limited liability company or partnership or other legal entity) and such person's spouses must execute a personal guaranty (attached at the end of the Franchise Agreement) assuming and agreeing to discharge all obligations of the Franchisee under the Franchise Agreement. Any partners must be approved by us.

In all cases, all shareholders, officers, directors, partners, members and all managers and other employees having access to our proprietary information, and if we ask, such person's spouses, must execute non-disclosure agreements in a form we accept. If we so require, your spouse and any managers receiving training from us must execute covenants not to compete in a form that we approve.

ITEM 16 RESTRICTIONS ON WHAT THE FRANCHISEE MAY SELL

To maintain a uniform image and uniform quality of products and services throughout the WATERS EDGE WINERY & BISTRO system, we can restrict the products and services that you may offer from Stores. These restrictions are as follows:

Item 8 of this disclosure document describes our requirements for approved supplies and suppliers. Your Franchise Agreement requires you to sell or use only those products and services that we have approved in writing. You must offer for sale at the Store all the wine products and related products that we periodically require and you may not offer at the Store any unapproved products or services or use the premises for any purpose other than the operation of a Store. The purpose of these requirements is to ensure that franchisees adhere to uniformity requirements and quality standards associated with WATERS EDGE WINERY & BISTROS. We have the unlimited right to change the types of authorized products and services you may offer.

You must not install or maintain on the premises of the individual store any newspaper, racks, video games, jukeboxes, gaming machines, gum machines, games, rides, vending machines, pool tables, automated teller machines or other similar devices without our prior written approval.

You may not offer for sale any WATERS EDGE WINERY & BISTRO products through the internet or other online programming or advertising without our written approval. See Item 12. We do not otherwise impose any restrictions or conditions that limit your access to customers.

ITEM 17 RENEWAL, TERMINATION, TRANSFER AND DISPUTE RESOLUTION

THE FRANCHISE RELATIONSHIP

This table lists certain important provisions of the Franchise agreement. You should read these provisions in the agreement attached to this disclosure document.

Provisions	Section in Franchise Agreement	Summary
a. Length of the term of the franchise	Section 4A	Term is 10 years
b. Renewal or extension of the term	Section 4B	Your renewal right permits you to remain as a franchisee after the initial term of your franchise agreement expires. If you wish to do so, and you satisfy the required pre-conditions to renewal, we will offer you the right to obtain an additional 10-year term. You must sign our then-current form of franchise agreement for the renewal term, and this new agreement may contain materially different terms and conditions, including higher royalty and/or advertising contribution, from the agreement that covered your original term.
c. Requirements for you to renew or extend	Section 4B	You give us written notice of your decision to renew at least 6 months but not more than 12 months before the end of the expiring term; you sign our then current form of franchise agreement; you have complied with the modernization requirements for your Store; you are not in default and have satisfied your obligations on a timely basis; if leasing, you have written proof of our ability to remain in possession of the

		Section in Franchise	
1	Provisions	Agreement	Summary
	TOVISIONS	ngreement	Store premises throughout the renewal term; you comply with our training requirements; you pay us a \$5,000 renewal fee; and you sign a release. You may be asked to sign a contract with materially different terms and conditions than your original contract.
d.	Termination by you	Section 13C	You may not terminate this Agreement prior to expiration of its term except with our prior written consent.
e.	Termination by us without cause	None	Not Applicable.
f.	Termination by us with cause	Section 13A and B	We can terminate the Franchise Agreement only if you default or fail to comply with your obligations.
g.	"Cause" defined – defaults which can be cured	Sections 13A and B	You have 10 days to cure non-submission of reports, non-payment of amounts due and owing and using, maintaining and/or carrying unapproved products and supplies; and 30 days to cure defaults for failing to abide by our other standards and requirements in connection with the operation of your business, or failing to meet any requirements or specifications established by us, and any other default not listed in "h" below. We can turn off access to the POS software and wine club software, if you are in breach of the Franchise Agreement and fail to cure within the specified time.
h.	"Cause" defined – defaults which cannot be cured	Sections 13A and B	Non-curable defaults include: material misrepresentations in your Franchise Application, abandonment, loss or revocation of winery license, loss of lease, the failure to timely cure a default under the lease, loss of right of possession or failure to relocate, closing of the Store, unapproved use of confidential information, insolvency, bankruptcy, unapproved assignment or transfer, conviction, intentionally understating or underreporting Gross Sales or other fees, multiple defaults, or failure to cure within 24 hours of notice a default which materially impairs the goodwill associated with any of our Trademarks or which endanger health, safety and sanitation laws.
i.	Your obligations on termination/ non-renewal	Sections 10D.3 and 14A-C	Obligations include complete de-identification and payment of amounts due, assignment of lease upon our demand and telephone numbers, domain names and websites connected with your store, return of Operations Manual and proprietary materials, stop use of Confidential Information and right to purchase assets of the Store (also see "o" and "r" below).
j.	Assignment of contract by us	Section 11G	No restriction on our right to assign.
k.	"Transfer" by you – defined	Section 11A	Includes any transfer of your interest in the Franchise Agreement or in the business or any ownership change listed in Section 11A of the Franchise Agreement.
1.	Our approval of transfer by you	Section 11B	We have the right to approve all transfers and may not unreasonably withhold approval.
m.	Conditions for our approval of transfer	Sections 11B-D	Transferee meets all of our then-current requirements for a new franchisee entering our franchise program then being offered, transfer fee paid, all amounts owed by prior franchisee paid, required modernization is completed, training completed, required guarantees signed, necessary financial reports and

Provisions	Section in Franchise Agreement	Summary
1 TOVISIONS	Agreement	other data on franchise business is prepared, and release signed by you (also see "r" below). You must also comply with any other conditions that we reasonably require as part of our transfer policies, which may include, but not be limited to: (a) obtaining consent of the Store owner(s) and landlord to the transfer; (b) at our option, the proposed transferee either: (i) signs our then current form of Franchise Agreement, modified to delete any initial fee, and to expire on the expiration date of your Agreement or (ii) signs our then current form of Franchise Agreement for a full term and pays our then current initial franchise fee.
n. Our right of first refusal to acquire your business	Section 11F	We can match any offer for your Store assets and, in the case of a proposed stock sale, we can purchase your Store assets at a price determined by an appraiser, unless you and we agree otherwise.
	Franchise Addendum	If a SBA loan applies, there are limitations on our first refusal rights to acquire your business.
o. Our option to purchase your business	Section 14B	Upon termination, we have the right to purchase or designate a third party that will purchase all or any portion of the assets of your Store, including the land, building, equipment, fixtures, signs, furnishings, supplies, leasehold improvements, winery license and inventory. Qualified appraiser(s) will determine price as set forth in the Franchise Agreement.
	Franchise Addendum	If a SBA loan applies, there are limitations on our option to purchase your business.
p. Your death or disability	Section 11E	You can transfer your franchise rights to your heir or successor in interest like any other transfer, but if assignee is your spouse or child, no transfer fee is required.
q. Non- competition covenants during the term of the franchise	Section 10D	No direct or indirect involvement in the operation of any store or wine-related business other than one authorized in the Franchise Agreement.
r. Non- competition covenants after the franchise is terminated or expires	Section 10D	No direct or indirect involvement in a competing business for 2 years (i) in the former Designated Area (ii) within 25 miles of the former Designated Area or (iii) within 25 miles of any other business or store using the System.
s. Modification of the Agreement	Section 15B	No modifications generally, but we have the right to change the Operations Manual, and list of authorized trademarks.
t. Integration/ merger clause	Section 15B	No modifications generally, but we have the right to change Operations Manual and list of authorized trademarks. Nothing in the Agreement is intended to disclaim any representations made in the franchise disclosure document. Only the terms of the Franchise Agreement are binding (subject to applicable state law). Any representations or promises outside of the disclosure document and franchise agreement may not be enforceable.

	Section in Franchise	
Provisions	Agreement	Summary
u. Dispute resolution by arbitration or mediation	Not Applicable	The Franchise Agreement requires disputes to be litigated in court (subject to applicable state law).
v. Choice of forum	Section 12(A)	Any cause of action, claim, suit or demand must be brought in the United States District Court for the Central District of California or any state court located in San Bernardino County, California (subject to applicable state law).
w. Choice of law	Section 12(B)	California law, except non-compete provisions governed by the laws of the state in which the Store is located (subject to applicable state law).

This table lists certain important provisions of the Addendum to Lease. You should read these provisions in the agreement attached to this disclosure document.

Provisions	Section in Addendum to Lease	Summary
a. Length of the term of the franchise	Not Applicable	Not Applicable
b. Renewal or extension of the term	Not Applicable	Not Applicable
c. Requirements for you to renew or extend	Not Applicable	Not Applicable
d. Termination by you	Not Applicable	Not Applicable
e. Termination by us without cause	Not Applicable	Not Applicable
f. Termination by us with cause	3(a)	If you default on your lease or the Franchise Agreement, we may assume your lease.
g. "Cause" defined –defaults which can be cured	Not Applicable	Subject to lease.
h. "Cause" defined – defaults which cannot be cured	Not Applicable	Not Applicable
i. Your obligations on termination/non-renewal	3(c)	You must assign lease to us if we elect to assume it upon your default or termination/expiration of your Franchise Agreement.
j. Assignment of contract by us	2	We have the right to sublease your premises to another franchisee if we elect to assume your lease.
k. "Transfer" by you – defined	2	If we elect to assume your lease due to your default or termination or expiration of the Franchise Agreement, you must transfer to us.
 Our approval of transfer by you 	Not Applicable	Not Applicable
m. Conditions for our approval of transfer	2, 3	We must elect to assume lease.

	Section in Addendary	
	Section in Addendum	~
Provisions	to Lease	Summary
n. Our right of first refusal	Not Applicable	Not Applicable
to acquire your business		
 Our option to purchase 	Not Applicable	Not Applicable
your business		
p. Your death or disability	Not Applicable	Not Applicable
q. Non-competition	Not Applicable	Not Applicable
covenants during the term		
of the franchise		
r. Non-competition	Not Applicable	Not Applicable
covenants after the		
franchise is terminated or		
expires		
s. Modification of the	6	No amendment unless in writing and signed
Agreement		by parties.
t. Integration/merger	Not Applicable	Not Applicable
clause		
u. Dispute resolution by	Not Applicable	Not Applicable
arbitration or mediation		
v. Choice of forum	Not Applicable	Not Applicable
w. Choice of law	Not Applicable	Not Applicable

ITEM 18 PUBLIC FIGURES

We do not currently use any public figure to promote our franchise. We reserve the right to do so in the future.

ITEM 19 <u>FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE REPRESENTATIONS</u>

The FTC's Franchise Rule permits a franchisor to provide information about the actual or potential financial performance of its franchised and/or franchisor-owned outlets, if there is a reasonable basis for the information, and if the information is included in the disclosure document. Financial performance information that differs from that included in Item 19 may be given only if: (1) a franchisor provides the actual records of an existing outlet you are considering buying; or (2) a franchisor supplements the information provided in this Item 19, for example, by providing information about possible performance at a particular location or under particular circumstances.

As of December 31, 2022, we had 14 operating franchised outlets. This financial performance representation contains data only for the 11 franchised locations that had been open for business for at least 12 full months in the period ending December 31, 2022. As of December 31, 2021, we had 12 operating franchised outlets. This financial performance representation contains data only for the 8 franchised locations that had been open for business for at least 12 full months in the period ending December 31, 2021. Each month, franchisees provide us with information regarding the amount of business conducted during the prior month. Royalties the franchisees pay us are based on that information.

Some Waters Edge Winery & Bistros have earned these amounts. Your individual results may differ. There is no assurance you'll earn as much.

GROSS SALES AND AVERAGE SALES TICKET FOR THE 8 FRANCHISEE-OWNED LOCATIONS (SYSTEMWIDE) OPEN FOR AT LEAST 12 MONTHS AS OF 12/31/21 AND THE 11 FRANCHISEE-OWNED LOCATIONS (SYSTEMWIDE) OPEN FOR AT LEAST 12 MONTHS AS OF 12/31/22 (SEE NOTES 1 - 6)

FRANCHISED WATERS EDGE WINERY LOCATIONS OPEN AT LEAST 12 MONTHS AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2021 AND AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2022 (NOTE 1)	GROSS SALES IN 2021 (NOTES 2 & 3)	AVERAGE SALES TICKET IN 2021 (NOTES 2 & 3)	GROSS SALES IN 2022 (NOTES 2 & 3)	AVERAGE SALES TICKET IN 2022 (NOTES 2 & 3)
Location 1	\$626,698	\$52.14	\$562,147	\$55.23
Location 2	\$532,596	\$67.28	\$525,269	\$72.04
Location 3	\$491,223	\$59.43	\$338,660	\$55.95
Location 4	Not Applicable	Not Applicable	\$1,161,396	\$78.56
Location 5	\$431,464	\$56.07	\$533,763	\$62.58
Location 6	\$1,557,696	\$52.11	\$1,927,879	\$60.25
Location 7	\$442,116	\$43.63	\$446,379	\$44.67
Location 8	\$362,775	\$57.00	\$338,989	\$66.74
Location 9	\$678,900	\$38.99	\$820,205	\$43.52
Location 10	Not Applicable	Not Applicable	\$371,999	\$36.44
Location 11	Not Applicable	Not Applicable	\$302,612	\$54.71
SYSTEMWIDE HIGHEST GROSS SALES AND SYSTEMWIDE HIGHEST AVERAGE TICKET SALES IN 2021 AND 2022 (NOTES 2 & 3)	\$1,557,696	\$67.28	\$1,927,879	\$78.56
SYSTEMWIDE LOWEST GROSS SALES AND SYSTEMWIDE LOWEST AVERAGE TICKET SALES IN 2021 AND 2022 (NOTE 2 & 4)	\$362,775	\$38.99	\$302,612	\$36.44
SYSTEMWIDE AVERAGE GROSS SALES AND SYSTEMWIDE AVERAGE TICKET SALES IN 2021 AND 2022 (NOTE 2 & 5)	\$640,433	\$53.33	\$666,300	\$57.34
SYSTEMWIDE MEDIAN GROSS SALES AND SYSTEMWIDE MEDIAN AVERAGE TICKET SALES IN 2021 AND 2022 (NOTE 2 & 6)	\$511,909	\$54.10	\$525,269	\$55.95

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]

<u>NOTE 1</u>:

As of December 31,2022, we had a total of 14 franchised Waters Edge Winery stores and no company-owned stores. The table above includes actual historical unaudited information we collected from the 11 franchised Waters Edge Winery stores that were open and operating for at least 12 months as of December 31, 2022. The figures in the table are taken from reports submitted to us by our franchisees on their Gross sales for 2022. All information collected is unaudited.

As of December 31, 2021, we had a total of 12 franchised Waters Edge Winery stores and no company-owned stores. The table above includes actual historical unaudited information we collected from the 8 franchised Waters Edge Winery stores that were open and operating for at least 12 months as of December 31, 2021. The figures in the table are taken from reports submitted to us by our franchisees on their Gross sales for 2021. All information collected is unaudited.

The COVID-19 pandemic did not have a material impact on the operation of Waters Edge Wineries for the period of January 1, 2021 through December 31, 2021, with one exception listed below, meaning all Waters Edge Wineries operated at full functionality without limiting capacity or only seating customers outdoors:

• One store was restricted to serving its non-vaccinated guests in patios during the period of March 2021 through December 2021. Vaccinated guests were not impacted.

NOTE 2:

"Gross Sales" include the total revenues and receipts our franchised stores reported to us from the sale of all products and services including, but not limited to, wine, wine products, food, winemaking courses, services, merchandise, and any wholesale items sold onsite or offsite of the store but does not include sales taxes and returns.

"Average Sales Ticket" is the average of each franchised store's net sales receipts reported to us from the sale of all products and services including, but not limited to, wine, wine products, food, winemaking courses, services, merchandise, and any wholesale items sold onsite or offsite of the store but does not include sales taxes and returns.

NOTE 3:

The Systemwide Highest Gross Sales are the gross sales reported by our top performing franchise store in 2022 and 2021, respectively.

The Systemwide Highest Average Sales Ticket is the highest average sales ticket reported by our franchise stores in 2022 and 2021, respectively.

<u>NOTE 4</u>:

The Systemwide Lowest Gross Sales are the gross sales reported by our lowest performing franchise store in 2022 and 2021, respectively.

The Systemwide Lowest Average Sales Ticket is the lowest average sales ticket reported by our franchise stores in 2022 and 2021, respectively.

NOTE 5:

The Systemwide Average Gross Sales for 2022 is the sum of all gross sales reported to us by our 11 franchised locations which had been in business for at least 12 full months in the period ending December 31, 2022, divided by the number of locations (11).

The Systemwide Average Gross Sales for 2021 is the sum of all gross sales reported to us by our 8 franchised locations which had been in business for at least 12 full months in the period ending December 31, 2021, divided by the number of locations (8).

The Systemwide Average Sales Ticket for 2022 is the sum of all average sales tickets reported to us by our 11 franchised locations which had been in business for at least 12 full months in the period ending December 31, 2022, divided by the number of locations (11).

The Systemwide Average Sales Ticket for 2021 is the sum of all average sales tickets reported to us by our 8 franchised locations which had been in business for at least 12 full months in the period ending December 31, 2021, divided by the number of locations (8).

NOTE 6:

The Systemwide Median Gross Sales for 2022 is the data point at the center of all data points. This figure is based on the Gross Sales reported by our 11 franchise locations which had been in business for at least 12 full months in the period ending December 31, 2022. In this odd numbered sequence, the median is the number in the middle of this 11 data point set, which is \$525,269.

The Systemwide Median Gross Sales for 2021 is the data point at the center of all data points. This figure is based on the Gross Sales reported by our 8 franchise locations which had been in business for at least 12 full months in the period ending December 31, 2021. In this even numbered sequence, the two numbers in the middle of this 8 data point set are the fourth and fifth numbers, which are \$532,596 and \$491,223. By adding these together (532,596 + 491,223 = 1,023,819), and dividing by two (1,023,819/2), the median is \$511,909.

The Systemwide Median Average Sales Ticket for 2022 is the data point at the center of all data points. This figure is based on the Average Sales Tickets reported by our 11 franchise locations which had been in business for at least 12 full months in the period ending December 31, 2022. In this odd numbered sequence, the median is the number in the middle of this 11 data point set, which is \$55.95.

The Systemwide Median Store's Average Sales Ticket for 2021 is the data point at the center of all data points. This figure is based on the Average Sales Tickets reported by our 8 franchise locations which had been in business for at least 12 full months in the period ending December 31, 2021. In this even numbered sequence, the two numbers in the middle of this 8 data point set are the figures from Store No. 3 and Store No. 7, which are \$52.14 and \$56.07. By adding these together (52.14 + 56.07 = 108.21), and dividing by two (108.21/2), the median is \$54.10.

Written substantiation for the financial performance representations made in this Item 19 will be made available to you upon reasonable request.

Other than the financial performance representations listed above, we do not make any representations about a franchisee's future financial performance or the past financial performance of company-owned, affiliate-owned or franchised business. We do not authorize our employees or representatives to make any such representations either orally or in writing. If you are purchasing an existing business, however, we may provide you with the actual records of that business. If you receive any other financial performance information or projections of your future income, you should report it to our management by contacting Ken Lineberger, 8560 Vineyard Avenue, Suite 408, Rancho Cucamonga, CA 91730, (909) 468-9463, the Federal Trade Commission and the appropriate state regulatory agencies.

ITEM 20 OUTLETS AND FRANCHISEE INFORMATION

Table No. 1 Systemwide Outlet Summary For Years 2020 to 2022

Outlet Type	Year	Outlets at the Start of the Year	Outlets at the End of the Year	Net Change
	2020	11**	13***	+2
Franchised Outlets	2021	13***	12***	-1
	2022	12***	14****	+2
	2020	0	0	0
Company-Owned	2021	0	0	0
	2022	0	0	0
	2020	11**	13***	+2
Total Outlets	2021	13***	12***	-1
	2022	12***	14****	+2

^{* 5} of these locations are private branded locations.

Table No. 2
Transfers of Outlets From Franchisees to New Owners
(Other than the Franchisor)
For Years 2020 to 2022

State	Year	Number of Transfers
	2020	0
Total	2021	0
	2022	0

^{** 7} of these locations are private branded locations.

^{*** 6} of these locations are private branded locations.

^{**** 4} of these locations are private branded locations.

Table No. 3 Status of Waters Edge Wineries, **Inc. Franchised Outlets For Years** 2020 to 2022

State	Year	Outlets at Start of Year	Outlets Opened	Terminations	Non- Renewals	Reacquired by Franchisor	Ceased Operations Other Reasons	Outlets at End of the Year
	2020	43	0	0	0	0	1^1	3^{4}
California	2021	34	0	0	0	0	0	34
	2022	3 ⁴	0	2^{4}	0	0	0	1
	2020	1	0	0	0	0	0	1
Colorado	2021	1	0	1	0	0	0	0
	2022	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Illinois	2020	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
	2021	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
	2022	0	2	0	0	0	0	2
Kentucky	2020	0	1	0	0	0	0	1
	2021	1	0	0	0	0	0	1
	2022	1	0	0	0	0	0	1
Montana	2020	0	1	0	0	0	0	1
	2021	1	0	0	0	0	0	1
	2022	1	0	0	0	0	0	1
North	2020	0	1^{1}	0	0	0	0	1^{1}
Carolina	2021	11	0	11	0	0	0	0
	2022	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
	2020	1^1	0	0	0	0	0	1^{1}
Ohio	2021	11	1^1	0	0	0	0	21
	2022	21	0	0	0	0	0	2^{1}
	2020	2	0	0	0	0	0	2
Oklahoma	2021	2	1	1	0	0	0	2
	2022	2	1	0	0	0	0	3
Pennsylvania	2020	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
	2021	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
	2022	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
	2020	21	1	0	0	0	0	3 ⁴
Texas	2021	34	0	0	0	0	0	34
	2022	3 ⁴	1	0	0	0	0	4 ⁴
	2020	11 ⁵	3	0	0	0	11	13 ⁶
Totals	2021	13 ⁶	2^{2}	32	0	0	0	12 ⁶
	2022	126	4	21	0	0	0	14 ⁷

- 1. These locations are private branded locations.
- 2. 1 of these locations is a private branded location.3. 3 of these locations are private branded locations.

- 4. 2 of these locations are private branded locations.
- 5. 7 of these locations are private branded locations.
- 6. 6 of these locations are private branded locations.
- 7. 4 of these locations are private branded locations.

Table No. 4
Status of Waters Edge Wineries
Company-Owned Outlets For Years
2020 to 2022

				0 to 2022			
State	Year	Outlets at Start of Year	Outlets Opened	Reacquired from Franchisees	Outlets Closed	Outlets Sold to Franchisees	Outlets at End of the Year
	2020	0	0	0	0	0	0
California	2021	0	0	0	0	0	0
	2022	0	0	0	0	0	0
	2020	0	0	0	0	0	0
Totals	2021	0	0	0	0	0	0
	2022	0	0	0	0	0	0

Table No. 5
Projected Waters Edge Winery Openings
for Upcoming Fiscal Year As of December 31, 2022

State	Franchised Agreements Signed But Not Opened	Projected New Franchised Outlets in the next Fiscal Year	Projected New Company-Owned Outlets in the Current Fiscal Year
Arizona	1	1	0
California	2	1	0
Florida	2	1	0
Ohio	1	1	0
Pennsylvania	1	1	0
Virginia	1	1	0
Total	8	6	0

^{*}Our fiscal year end is December 31. States not listed have no projected franchised activity to report.

The name, business address, and business telephone number of each franchisee as of December 31, 2022, and the name, city and state, and business telephone number of every franchisee who has had a Store terminated, cancelled, not renewed, or otherwise voluntarily or involuntarily ceased to do business under the Franchise Agreement during the most recently completed fiscal year or who has not communicated with us within 10 weeks of the date of this disclosure document, is attached as Exhibit F. If you buy this franchise, your contract information may be disclosed to other buyers when you leave the franchise system.

In some instances, current, and former franchisees may sign provisions restricting their ability to speak openly about their experience with us. You may wish to speak with current and former franchisees, but be aware that not all such franchisees will be able to communicate with you.

There are no trademark-specific franchisee organizations associated with the franchise system being offered which we have created, sponsored or endorsed. There are no independent franchisee organizations that have asked to be included in this disclosure document.

ITEM 21 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Attached to this Disclosure Document as Exhibit G are Waters Edge Wineries, Inc.'s audited financial statements as of December 31, 2022, 2021 and 2020.

ITEM 22 CONTRACTS

This disclosure document includes a sample of the following contracts: Application and Deposit Agreement (Exhibit B); Store Franchise Agreement (Exhibit D) and Addendum to Franchise Agreement (SBA Loan) (Exhibit E); State Specific Addenda (Exhibit H); Electronic Funds Transfer Authorization (Exhibit I).

ITEM 23 RECEIPTS

The last 2 pages of this franchise disclosure document are detachable receipt pages (Exhibit J). Please insert the name, address and telephone number of the franchise seller, and date and sign both copies. Detach the last page and return to us promptly on execution. Retain the other copy of the receipt page for your records. If these pages or any other pages or exhibits are missing from your copy, please contact us at this address or phone number:

Waters Edge Wineries, Inc. 8560 Vineyard Avenue, Suite 408 Rancho Cucamonga, CA 91730 909-468-9463

EXHIBIT A

STATE AGENCIES/AGENTS TO RECEIVE SERVICE OF PROCESS

LIST OF STATE ADMINISTRATORS, STATE AGENTS FOR SERVICE OF PROCESS

STATE	STATE ADMINISTRATOR	AGENT FOR SERVICE OF PROCESS
CALIFORNIA	Department of Financial Protection and Innovation	Commissioner of Financial Protection and
	320 West 4 th Street, Suite 750	Innovation of the State of California
	Los Angeles, California 90013	320 West 4 th Street, Suite 750
	(213) 576-7505	Los Angeles, California 90013
	(866) 275-2677	(213) 576-7505
	www.dfpi.ca.gov	(866) 275-2677
	Ask.DFPI@dfpi.gov	www.dfpi.ca.gov
		Ask.DFPI@dfpi.gov
HAWAII	Business Registration Division	Commissioner of Securities, Department of
	Department of Commerce and Consumer Affairs	Commerce & Consumer Affairs
	335 Merchant Street Room 203	335 Merchant Street Room 203
	Honolulu, Hawaii 96813	Honolulu, Hawaii 96813
	(808) 586-2722	(808) 586-2722
ILLINOIS	Franchise Bureau	Franchise Bureau
	Office of the Attorney General	Office of the Attorney General
	500 South Second Street	500 South Second Street
	Springfield, Illinois 62706	Springfield, Illinois 62706
	(217) 782-4465	(217) 782-4465
INDIANA	Indiana Secretary of State	Indiana Secretary of State
	Securities Division	201 State House
	302 West Washington Street, Room E-111	200 West Washington Street
	Indianapolis, Indiana 46204	Indianapolis, Indiana 46204
	(317) 232-6681	(317) 232-6531
MARYLAND	Office of the Attorney General	Maryland Securities Commissioner
	Securities Division	Office of the Attorney General
	200 St. Paul Place	Securities Division
	Baltimore, Maryland 21202-2021	200 St. Paul Place
	(410) 576-6360	Baltimore, Maryland 21202-2021
		(410) 576-6360
MICHIGAN	Michigan Department of Attorney General	Michigan Department of Commerce
	Consumer Protection Division	Corporations and Securities Bureau
	Attn: Franchise Section	P.O. Box 30054
	525 West Ottawa	6546 Mercantile Way
	G. Mennen Williams Building, 1st Floor	Lansing, Michigan 48909
	Lansing, Michigan 48933 (517) 335-7567	(517) 241-6345
MINNESOTA	Minnesota Department of Commerce	Minnesota Commissioner of Commerce
	85 7 th Place East, Suite 280	Department of Commerce
	St. Paul, Minnesota 55101-2198	85 7 th Place East, Suite 280
	(651) 539-1600	St. Paul, Minnesota 55101-2198
		(651) 539-1600
NEW YORK	NYS Department of Law	New York Department of State
	Investor Protection Bureau	One Commerce Plaza
	Franchise Section	99 Washington Avenue, 6th Floor
	28 Liberty Street, 21 st Floor	Albany, New York 12231-0001
	New York, New York 10005	(518) 473-2492
	(212) 416-8285 (Phone)	
	(212) 416-6042 (Fax)	

STATE	STATE ADMINISTRATOR	AGENT FOR SERVICE OF PROCESS
NORTH DAKOTA	North Dakota Securities Department	Securities Commissioner
	600 East Boulevard Avenue	600 East Boulevard Avenue
	State Capitol-Fifth Floor, Department 414	State Capitol-Fifth Floor, Department 414
	Bismarck, North Dakota 58505-0510	Bismarck, North Dakota 58505-0510
	(701) 328-4712	(701) 328-4712
OREGON	Department of Insurance and Finance	Department of Insurance and Finance
	Corporate Securities Section	Corporate Securities Section
	Labor and Industries Building	Labor and Industries Building
	Salem, Oregon 97310	Salem, Oregon 97310
	(503) 378-4387	(503) 378-4387
RHODE ISLAND	Director, Securities Division	Securities Division
	State of Rhode Island	Department of Business Regulation
	Department of Business Regulation,	Bldg. 69, First Floor
	Bldg. 69, First Floor	John O. Pastore Center
	John O. Pastore Center	1511 Pontiac Avenue,
	1511 Pontiac Avenue,	Cranston, Rhode Island 02920
	Cranston, Rhode Island 02920	(401) 462-9582
	(401) 462-9582	
SOUTH DAKOTA	Department of Labor and Regulation	Director, Department of Labor and Regulation
	Division of Insurance	Division of Insurance
	Securities Regulation	Securities Regulation
	124 South Euclid, Suite 104	124 South Euclid, Suite 104
	Pierre, South Dakota 57501	Pierre, South Dakota 57501
	(605) 773-3563	(605) 773-3563
VIRGINIA	State Corporation Commission	Clerk, State Corporation Commission
	Division of Securities and Retail Franchising	1300 East Main Street
	1300 East Main Street, First Floor	Richmond, Virginia 23219
	Richmond, Virginia 23219	(804) 371-9051
	(804) 371-9051	
WASHINGTON	Department of Financial Institutions	Director, Department of Financial Institutions
	Securities Division	Securities Division
	P.O. Box 9033	150 Israel Road S.W.
	Olympia, Washington 98507	Tumwater, Washington 98501
	(360) 902-8760	
WISCONSIN	Franchise Registration	Securities and Franchise Registration
	Division of Securities	Wisconsin Securities Commission
	Wisconsin Department of Financial Institutions	201 West Washington Avenue, Suite 300
	201 West Washington Avenue, Suite 300	Madison, Wisconsin 53703
	Madison, Wisconsin 53703	(608) 266-1064
	(608) 266-1064	

EXHIBIT B

APPLICATION AND DEPOSIT AGREEMENT



Waters Edge Wineries, Inc. 8560 Vineyard Ave, Suite 408 Rancho Cucamonga, CA 91730 909-468-9463 ext 700

To be Signed At Least 14 Days After Franchisee's Receipt of the Franchise Disclosure Document

FRANCHISE APPLICATION AND DEPOSIT AGREEMENT (the	"Application A	Agreement"
--	----------------	------------

TO:	Waters Edge Wineries, Inc. (the 8560 Vineyard Ave, Suite 408 Rancho Cucamonga, CA 91730	"Franchisor")
FROM:		(the "Applicant")

The Applicant desires to be considered for a WATERS EDGE WINERY & BISTRO Franchise with the Franchisor. Franchisor is willing to consider Applicant as a potential Franchisee pursuant to the terms of this Application Agreement. Accordingly, the parties agree as follows:

- 1. <u>Applicant Information</u>. The Applicant agrees to complete Schedule A attached hereto, in as much detail and as accurately as possible. In addition, Applicant agrees to submit to the Franchisor such other information and documents concerning the Applicant as the Franchisor reasonably requires. Applicant agrees to notify the Franchisor immediately of any changes to the information provided.
- 2. <u>Deposit</u>. The Applicant submits, in connection with this Application Agreement, a deposit in the amount of \$12,000. If the Franchise Agreement is entered into between the Franchisor and the Applicant, the \$12,000 deposit will be credited towards the initial franchise fee of the Franchise Agreement without interest or deduction.
- 3. <u>Return of Deposit</u>. If the Franchisor fails to accept this Application Agreement by returning a signed copy of the Application Agreement to the Applicant within 30 days of the date of its submission, it is deemed not accepted and the Franchisor will return the entire deposit to Applicant without interest.
- 4. <u>Confidential Information</u>. The Applicant understands that, prior to executing the Franchise Agreement, the Franchisor may furnish information and material that will be of a confidential nature concerning the Franchisor, and the WATERS EDGE WINERY & BISTRO franchise system including, without limitation, proprietary knowledge regarding the WATERS EDGE WINERY & BISTRO business and its proprietary ingredients, methods and procedures. The Applicant agrees to keep all such information confidential and not to disclose same to any competitor of the Franchisor nor to any other person, firm or corporation who may use or obtain any benefit from the confidential information, directly or indirectly, without the prior written consent of the Franchisor. The Applicant further agrees not to use any confidential information for its own benefit or to use it to compete with the business of the Franchisor should this Application Agreement be terminated or should the Franchisor refuse to grant a WATERS EDGE WINERY & BISTRO franchise to the Applicant.

- 5. <u>Lease</u>. The Applicant acknowledges and agrees that the granting of the WATERS EDGE WINERY franchise referred to in this Application Agreement is conditioned on the Franchisor's review and approval of the lease to be entered into between the landlord of the premises and the Applicant. Applicant's lease with the landlord of the premises must contain the Addendum to Lease, attached as Appendix C to the Franchise Agreement. The Applicant represents and warrants to the Franchisor that the Applicant will locate the WATERS EDGE WINERY & BISTRO in the premises identified on the lease and comply with all of the terms and provisions of the lease. The Applicant covenants to indemnify and save harmless Franchisor with respect to any damage, injury, claims, losses, costs or charges caused or resulting from any act or omission of the Applicant or caused by or resulting from any matter whatsoever relating to the lease.
- 6. <u>Consent</u>. The Applicant hereby consents and regards this Application Agreement as notice in writing of the Franchisor's intent to obtain, and consents to Franchisor obtaining, from any credit reporting agency, bank, credit grantor or any other party with which the Applicant has a financial relationship, such information concerning the Applicant as the Franchisor may require in connection with the granting of the WATERS EDGE WINERY & BISTRO franchise. Further, the Applicant consents to the Franchisor taking whatever action it considers necessary to verify the information in Schedule A, including contacting any references provided.
- 7. Franchise Agreement. On Franchisee's receipt of written notice of Franchisor's acceptance of this Application Agreement, the Applicant shall have 12 months in which to enter into the Franchise Agreement, a lease consented to by the Franchisor and containing the Addendum to Lease referenced in Paragraph 5, and such other agreements and documents as the Franchisor may reasonably require. The Applicant shall pay the balance of the initial franchise fee upon signing the Franchise Agreement. In the event the Applicant fails to sign the Franchise Agreement and to pay the balance of the initial franchisee fee within the above noted time period, subject to the limitation below, fifty percent (50%) of the deposit referred to in Paragraph 2 above will be returned to the Applicant without interest, and thereafter neither party will have any liability or obligation to the other except that the Applicant will continue to be bound by its confidentiality and non-competition obligations set forth in Paragraph 4 above, which will survive the termination of this Application Agreement. Franchisor shall have no obligation to provide a refund of any portion of the Deposit if Applicant does not request the refund in writing within 180 days of the date of this Application Agreement.
- 8. Franchisee Status. The Applicant acknowledges that unless Franchisor executes a Franchise Agreement with the Applicant, the Applicant will have no right whatsoever to become a WATERS EDGE WINERY & BISTRO franchisee or to use the WATERS EDGE WINERY trademarks or any confidential information, notwithstanding that the Franchisor has accepted all or any part of the initial deposit. The Applicant further acknowledges that should a Franchise Agreement be entered into by the parties, the right of the Applicant to become and remain a franchisee shall be subject to Franchisor's right to terminate the Franchise Agreement as a result of Applicant's failure to execute the documents required, failure to commence business as required or any other breach by Applicant of the Franchise Agreement.
- 9. <u>Schedule</u>. Schedule A is attached and incorporated into this Application Agreement by reference and is deemed to be an integral part of this Application Agreement. Applicant represents and warrants under penalty of perjury that all information provided in Schedule A is true and correct.

SIGNED, SEALED and DELIVE in the presence of:	RED
Applicant	(Printed Name)
Acceptance of Application.	
	by acknowledges the foregoing together with the receipt of the amount of the ees to consider the Applicant as a candidate for a WATERS EDGE WINERY &
Waters Edge Wineries, Inc.	
By: Ken Lineberger, President	



SCHEDULE A Confidential Franchise Application

PERSONAL DATA	DATE
Name	Social Security No
Address	Date of Birth//
City	StateZip
Home Phone	Business Phone
Spouse's Name	Spouse's Date of Birth/
Spouse's Occupation	Dependents and ages
Any other name by which you are known	(state details)
If at current residence less than 2 years, ple	ease provide previous residence.
Previous Residence	
Dates at this address	
Are you a citizen of the USA?	If not, what country?
Have you ever been convicted of, or pled g (other than a minor traffic violation?) Yes	guilty or no contest to, a felony or misdemeanor S No
Have you declared personal bankruptcy w	ithin the last 10 years? YesNo
Yes No If yes, plea	e with alcohol abuse or been convicted of a DUI? ase explain.
Have you ever been involved in any lawsu	•

EDUCATION

Name and Location	Year Graduated	Major or Degree
High School		
College		.
Graduate		
PERSONAL REFERENCES		
Name	Phone No.	Association
1		
2		
3		
BUSINESS EXPERIENCE (Work history Please give present or last position first and additional sheet if necessary.		/business history. Attach an
1. Company	City, State	
Type of Business	Employed From To	
Position		
Major Accomplishments		
May we contact this company? Yes	No	
Contact Person	Phone	
2. Company	City, State	
Type of Business	Employed From To	
Position		
Major Accomplishments		
May we contact this company? Yes	No	
Contact Person	Phone	
3. Company	City, State	
Type of Business	Employed From To	
Position		

Major Accomplishments	
May we contact this company? Yes	No
Contact Person	Phone
PERSONAL BALANCE SHEET	
ASSETS Cash on hand and in banks (See schedule 1) \$	LIABILITIES Loans, Notes, Mortgages, Payable (See schedule 5) \$
Stocks & Bonds	
(See schedule 2)	Acc't & bills due
Account/Notes Receivable	Taxes due
(See schedule 3)	
Real Estate Investments	
(See schedule 4)	Other Liabilities (Itemize)
Other Assets	
Total Assets \$	Total Liabilities \$
Total Net Worth \$	(Assets – Liabilities)
Capital available to invest in this franch	uise \$
Residence Own R	ent How Long

Schedule #1

Banking references (List all bank accounts including Savings & Loans)

Institute Name & Phone			Account Balance		(Contact Officer	
Schedule #2	.		cks and B		4 1 . 11	G	
Number of Shares	Description of Security				Marketable or Non-marketable	Curren Value	t Market
Schedule #3		Acc	ounts/No	tes Receiva	hle		
Received from	1		041143/140	ics Receiva		Amour	nt
Schedule #4	Re	al Estate	Investme	ents (List al	l real estate hel	d)	
The legal and otherwise indi	equitable title cated	to all rea	al estate li	sted in this s	statement is in th	ne name of the	applicant unle
Description or Number of Pro		te of chase	Cost	Mortgage Balance	e Market Value	Liens	Monthly Payment

Sched	ule #5 Loans, Notes and Mortgage Payable
Payabl	e to Amount
ОТНЕ	CR INFORMATION
1.	In your opinion: What are the essentials to the successful operation of a WATERS EDGE WINERY?
2.	Why do franchisees pay an initial franchise fee?
3.	Why do franchisees pay a royalty fee?
4.	Why do franchisees pay a marketing and advertising fee?
5.	Have you been given a Franchise Disclosure Document (FDD) in connection with this applicationYesNo
	If yes, what is the date of the FDD?/
6.	Was any special promise made to you in connection with this application? YesNo If yes, please state details

_	
_	
/]	hat wine do you enjoy most? Why?
F	Now often to you enjoy wine?
	Several days/week A few times a month Occasionally Rarely/Neve
	Thew times a month
	What's your favorite wine & food pairing? Why?
	Do you prefer Old World wines, or New World? Why?
	Have you ever belonged to a wine club? Describe:

13.	If you could visit any wine region in the world, where would it be and why?
_	
14.	Have you ever experienced a bad wine? Was it flawed in some way or simply not to your liking?
15.	Have you ever worked in the food service industry before? Can you briefly describe any experience:
16.	How do you feel about public speaking?
- 17.	What does the term hospitality mean to you?
18.	Can you list some descriptive core values that a successful hospitality team member should embody?

	Can you describe what a successful, comfortable and satisfying dining experience would be for you?		
	Can you describe a bad, uncomfortable, unsatisfying dining experience that you have had?		
	authorize you to make investigations of my credit, character and ability, and to contact anybody hether or not listed above, including former employers, in order to obtain personal information bout me. I release all such persons from any liability or damages that may be incurred as a resumplishing such information. I also certify that all the information in this application is true and complete.		
1	ignature Date		

EXHIBIT C

TABLE OF CONTENTS FOR OPERATIONS MANUAL

WATERS EDGE WINERIES®, INC. Individual Confidential Operations Manual

TABLE OF CONTENTS

OPERATIONS MANUAL	1
TABLE OF CONTENTS	2
CONCEPT	6
MISSION STATEMENT	
Servicing Franchisees	
Training	7
Initial Assistance	7
Ongoing Support	7
Purpose of Manual	8
Site Identification	8
Sanitation Procedures	8
Products	8
Personnel Management	8
Financial Management	8
Sustained Will and Desire	9
Developing the Necessary Skills	9
Develop Knowledge	9
Planning	9
Discipline	9
Overview	10
Products and Services	10
Store Sales	10
Wine by the Glass	10
Wine Club	10
Light Food & Boar's Head Bistro Model	10
Wholesale	10
Corporate Sales	11
MARKETING	13
Marketing Principles	13
Trademarks	15
Internet	15
Customer Relationship Management (CRM)	17
Email	18
Newspapers	18
Magazines	19
Radio	20
Television	22
Outdoor Advertising - Billboards	23

Direct Mail	23	
Coupons	24	
Groupon™ and Similar Coupon Providers		
VANCIAL MANAGEMENT		
GENERAL	26	
BASIC REQUIREMENTS FOR FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT	26	
Financial University	27	
Elements of Earnings Performance	27	
Determining Net Sales	27	
Determining Gross Profit	28	
Operating Expenses	29	
Fixed and Variable Expenses	30	
Net Profit	31	
Elements of Financial Condition	31	
Assets	32	
Liabilities	32	
Determining Net Worth	33	
Determining Working Capital	33	
Language of Financial Management	34	
Averages, Percentages, Ratios	34	
Averages	34	
Determing Averages	34	
Percentages	35	
Determining Percentages	35	
Ratios	36	
Determining Current Ratio	36	
Determining Quick Ratio		
Inventory Control	38	
Control Stock Levels	38	
Controlling Inventory	38	
Waste	38	
Theft		
Inventory Value Sheet (Monthly)		
Accounting		
Cost of Goods Sold Calculation	39	
How To Determine Cost of Goods Sold		
Cost of Goods Sold		
Procedure for Determining Correct Cost of Goods Sold		
Record Keeping Forms	42	
Cash Reconciliation		
Profit and Loss Statement (Monthly)		
Depreciation		
Methods Of Computing Depreciation	46	
Variable Expenses		
Monthly Break Even Point		
The Message Of The Break Even Point		
Control of Evnances	50	

Performance Analysis	51
Causes of Performance Limitations	52
Gross Profit	53
Operating Expenses	53
Taxes And Licenses	54
Employee Withholding Taxes	54
Sales Tax	54
Income Tax	55
Insurance	55
Legal And Accounting Expenses	
Telephone Expense	57
Automobile Expense	
Interest	58
Depreciation	58
Miscellaneous Expenses	
Shortages	
Pretax Profit	59
Plan For Profit Improvements	59
DISTRIBUTION AND SANITATION	62
Receipt Of Shipments	62
Product Returns	62
Damaged Goods	62
Shortage	
Sanitation	
Personnel Management	66
Selection	67
Recruitment	67
The Interviewing Process	67
Purposes of Employment Interview	
Selection Pointers & Suggestions:	
Hiring And Orientation	
Management Policies	
Training	
Training Responsibilities	
Steps of An Organized Training Program	
Daily Organization	76
Motivation	76
Supervision	77
Work Productivity	78
Employee Record Keeping	81
Performance Review	82
Performance Evaluation And Forms	82
Termination Interview Letter	83
Employee Meetings	84
Business And Reporting Procedures	
ADDENDUM	
ADDENDOISI	8/

EXHIBIT D

UNIT FRANCHISE AGREEMENT(Including Appendices)



WATERS EDGE WINERY & BISTRO Franchise Agreement

Between

Waters Edge Wineries, Inc. 8560 Vineyard Avenue, Suite 408 Rancho Cucamonga, CA 91730 909-468-9463

	And	
	Name of Franchisee	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
	Street	
City	State	Zip Code
	Area Code Telepho	one
	Authorized Location	:
	Street	
City	State	Zip Code

(To be completed by Us)

Effective Date:

--TABLE OF CONTENTS--

WATERS EDGE WINERY & BISTRO FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

SECTION	<u>PAGE</u>
RECITALS	1
1. DEFINITIONS	1
2. GRANT OF LICENSE	2
3. TRADEMARK STANDARDS AND REQUIREMENTS	4
4. TERM AND RENEWAL	5
5. FACILITY STANDARDS AND MAINTENANCE	6
6. PRODUCTS AND OPERATIONS STANDARDS AND REQUIREMENTS	8
7. PERSONNEL AND SUPERVISION STANDARDS	13
8. ADVERTISING	14
9. FEES, REPORTING AND AUDIT RIGHTS	15
10. YOUR OTHER OBLIGATIONS; NONCOMPETE COVENANTS	18
11. TRANSFER OF FRANCHISE	21
12. DISPUTE RESOLUTION	
13. DEFAULT AND TERMINATION	25
14. POST-TERM OBLIGATIONS	27
15. GENERAL PROVISIONS	28

ADDENDUMS

Personal Guarantee Addendum Ownership and Management Addendum

APPENDICES

- A. Trademarks
- B. Designated Area
- C. Addendum to Lease
- D. Assignment of Telephone Numbers, Websites, Social Media Sites and Domain Names

WATERS EDGE WINERY & BISTRO® FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

This Franchise Agreement is made this day of, 20 between Waters Edge Wineries, Inc., a California corporation, whose principal business address is 8560 Vineyard Avenue, Suite 408, Rancho Cucamonga, CA 91730 ("Franchisor," "our," "we" or "us"), and, a(n) whose principal business address is
("franchisee," "your" or "you"). If the franchisee is a corporation, partnership, limited liability company or other legal entity, certain provisions to this Agreement also apply to its owners.
<u>RECITALS</u>
A. We developed a unique system for operating retail locations that feature the manufacture and sale of wine, food and bistro menu items the teaching of winemaking and the sale of related wine accessories;
B. We own the WATERS EDGE WINERY Trademarks and other trademarks used in connection with the operation of a WATERS EDGE WINERY store;
C. We have the right to license the WATERS EDGE WINERY and WATERS EDGE WINERY AND BISTRO Trademarks and the right to develop and operate WATERS EDGE WINERY & BISTRO stores; and
D. You desire to either (i) develop and operate a WATERS EDGE WINERY & BISTRO store using the WATERS EDGE WINERY trademarks; or (ii) if you are an existing franchisee operating a Private Branded Store, open additional stores under the same Private Brand as your first store and We, in reliance on your representations, have approved your franchise Application and Deposit Agreement.
E. You asked and we agree to grant you: (CHECK ONE):
□ A full franchise, granting you the right to use our trademarks, system and methodologies. A full franchise will entitle you to participate in our advertising program and receive advertising and marketing assistance in your territory;
☐ A private branded franchise, granting you the right to use our system and methodologies, but under a separate primary trademark you create and we approve. As a private branded franchise, you will not receive advertising and marketing assistance in your territory. This option is only available to existing Private Branded franchisees who want to open additional locations under the same brand as the first store.
In consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and consideration below, you and we agree as follows:
<u>DEFINITIONS</u>
1. For purposes of this Agreement, the terms below have the following definitions:
A. "Electronic Depository Transfer Account" means an account established at a national banking institution approved by us and providing us with access to electronically withdraw any funds due to us.

- B. "General Manager" means the individual who (i) personally invests his or her full time and attention and devotes his or her best efforts to the on-premises general management of the day-to-day operations of the Store, and (ii) does not participate in the active operation or management of any business other than the Store. The General Manager must be appointed at least 60 days prior to the Store opening and fully trained 10 days prior to the Store opening. The General Manager is identified on the Ownership and Management Addendum attached to this Agreement.
- C. "Gross Sales" includes the total revenues and receipts from the sale of all products and services including, but not limited to, wine and wine products, food, winemaking courses, services, merchandise, and any wholesale items, sold onsite or offsite of your Store whether under any of the Trademarks or otherwise and includes, but is not limited to, winery rental fees received and any other revenues collected by you from your operations. Gross Sales does not include sales tax actually paid to government agencies and documented refunds provided to customers.
- D. "Principal Owner" means any person who directly or indirectly owns a 51% or greater interest in the franchisee when the franchisee is a corporation, limited liability company or a similar entity other than a partnership entity. If the franchisee is a partnership entity, then each general partner is a Principal Owner, regardless of the percentage ownership interest. If the franchisee is one or more individuals, each individual is a Principal Owner of the franchisee. Each franchisee must have at least one Principal Owner. Your Principal Owner(s) are identified on the Ownership and Management Addendum attached to this Agreement. As used in this Agreement, any reference to Principal Owner includes all Principal Owners.
- E. "Store" means the WATERS EDGE WINERY & BISTRO Store or private branded store you develop and operate pursuant to this Agreement. The Store you open will manufacture and store wine and prepare food items, and you will sell such wine and food items in a retail location that meets our building plans and décor specifications as set forth in subparagraph 5.B.
- F. "System" means the WATERS EDGE WINERY & BISTRO System, which consists of distinctive manufacturing of wine products prepared according to special recipes and formulas with unique manufacturing and storage procedures and techniques, and food items, all offered in a setting of a distinctive exterior and interior facility, layout, signage and materials and using certain distinctive types of equipment such as our Custom Winery Systems, supplies, ingredients, business techniques, methods and procedures together with sales promotion programs, all of which we may modify and change from time to time.
- G. "Trademarks" means the WATERS EDGE WINERY and WATERS EDGE WINERY & BISTRO Trademarks and Service Marks that are registered in the United States Trademark Office, and the trademarks, service marks and trade names set forth on Appendix A, as we may modify and change from time to time, and the trade dress and other commercial symbols used in the Store. Trade dress includes the designs, color schemes and image we authorize you to use in the operation of the Store from time to time.

GRANT OF LICENSE

- 2. The following provisions control with respect to the license granted hereunder:
- A. <u>Authorized Location</u>. We grant to you the right and license to establish and operate a Store identified by the WATERS EDGE WINERY & BISTRO Trademarks or such other marks as we may direct. The Store will be located at

a location to be designated within 90 days from the date of this Agreement (the "Authorized Location"). When a location has been designated and consented to by you and us, it will become part of this subparagraph 2.A as if originally stated. Unless you seek and we grant you an extension in writing, if an Authorized Location is not designated within 90 days from the date of this Agreement (the "Location Deadline"), we have the right to declare this Agreement null and void without the return of any Initial Franchise Fee or other amounts paid to us. We will not unreasonably withhold consent to one 90 day extension of the Location Deadline, if prior to the expiration of the Location Deadline you seek our approval in writing to the extension together with an explanation of steps taken to date and your future plan to identify a location. Otherwise, we have no obligation to grant an extension or provide another extension, if one has already been given. You accept the license and undertake the obligation to operate the Store at the Authorized Location using the Trademarks and the System in compliance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

B. <u>Designated Area.</u> You must locate and operate the Store at an Authorized Location within the area described in Appendix B (the "Designated Area"). You may sell WATERS EDGE WINERY & BISTRO products and services only at or from the Store as set forth in the Operations Manuals.

We will not locate and operate or grant to anyone else a franchise or license to locate and operate a WATERS EDGE WINERY & BISTRO store within the Designated Area so long as this Agreement is in effect, except for the Special Sites defined in subparagraph 2.D. You do not have any right to sublicense or subfranchise within or outside of the Designated Area and do not have the right to operate more than one Store within the Designated Area. If your Store is located within a Special Site (as defined below), you receive no territorial rights. You may face competition from other franchisees, from outlets that we own, or from other channels of distribution or competitive brands that we control.

- C. <u>Opening</u>. You agree that the Store will be open and operating in accordance with the requirements of subparagraph 5.A within 12 months after the date the Authorized Location is designated and no more than 60 days after you complete training, unless we authorize in writing an extension of time.
- D. <u>Our Reservation of Rights</u>. The license is limited to the right to develop and operate one Store at the Authorized Location located in the Designated Area. This license does not include (i) any right to sell products and services identified by the Trademarks at (1) any location other than the Store authorized under this Agreement; or (2) through any unapproved channel or method of distribution, including through a website owned and operated by any entity other than us, unless approved by us in writing; or (ii) any right to exclude, control or impose conditions on our development of future franchised, company or affiliate owned stores at any time or at any location outside of the Designated Area.

You acknowledge and agree that we have the right (i) anywhere outside of the Designated Area to grant other franchises and licenses and to develop and operate company or affiliate owned WATERS EDGE WINERY & BISTRO stores; (ii) to offer, sell and distribute inside and outside of the Designated Area any products or services associated with the System (now or in the future) under the Trademarks or any other trademarks, service marks or trade names through any distribution channel or method, all without compensation to you (except that any internet sales may be at our sole discretion either (a) directed to the store located in the Designated Area nearest to where the customer is located for fulfillment; or (b) if we elect to fulfill the online order to a customer in your Designated Area, we will pay fifty (50%) of the internet product's sale price less taxes, shipping and handling to you); and (iii) to operate

and franchise or license others to operate stores offering similar products and services as you do or any other business within and outside the Designated Area under trademarks other than the WATERS EDGE WINERY & BISTRO Trademarks, without compensation to you, except that our operation of, or association or affiliation with, stores (through franchising or otherwise) in the Designated Area that compete with WATERS EDGE WINERY & BISTRO stores in the wine and beverage segment will only occur through some form of merger or acquisition with an existing store chain.

Further, you acknowledge that certain locations within the Designated Area are by their nature unique and separate in character from sites generally developed as or serviced by WATERS EDGE WINERY & BISTRO stores. As a result, you agree that the following locations ("Special Sites") are excluded from your Designated Area and we have the right under our Trademarks or otherwise, to operate in, franchise, license and provide raw materials, ingredients, training and equipment or products to: (1) casinos; (2) military bases; (3) race tracks; (4) theme parks, including water parks and amusement parks; (5) hotels; (6) restaurants; (7) malls; (8) airports and (9) selected specialty retail venues, such as fairgrounds or other tourist oriented destinations (all of which may exist now or in the future).

TRADEMARK STANDARDS AND REQUIREMENTS

- 3. You acknowledge and agree that the Trademarks are our property. You further acknowledge that your right to use the Trademarks is specifically conditioned upon the following:
 - A. <u>Trademark Ownership.</u> We grant you the right to use the Trademarks in operating your Store. The Trademarks are our valuable property, and we are the owner of all right, title and interest in and to the Trademarks and all past, present or future goodwill of the Store and of the business conducted at the Authorized Location that is associated with or attributable to the Trademarks. Your use of the Trademarks will inure to our benefit. You may not, during or after the term of this Agreement, engage in any conduct directly or indirectly that would infringe upon, harm or contest our rights in any of the Trademarks or the goodwill associated with the Trademarks, including any use of the Trademarks in a derogatory, negative, or other inappropriate manner in any media, including but not limited to print or electronic media.
 - B. <u>Trademark Use</u>. You may not use, or permit the use of, any trademarks, trade names or service marks in connection with the Store except those set forth in Appendix A or except as we otherwise direct in writing. You may use the Trademarks only in connection with such products and services as we specify and only in the form and manner we prescribe in writing. You must comply with all trademark, trade name and service mark notice marking requirements. Each wine bottle must contain a label with the approved WATERS EDGE WINERY logo. You may use the Trademarks only in association with products and services approved by us and that meet our standards or requirements with respect to quality, method and condition of manufacturing, storage, production, preparation and sale, and portion and packaging.

If pursuant to Recital E above, you are granted a private branded franchise, you must, after obtaining our written consent to the proposed name or mark, use and/or adopt another primary trademark and/or trade name in connection with your franchise (in addition to the Trademarks). You agree to include such other designations that we may request in connection with your primary trademark and trade name, which may include, for example a designation indicating you are an affiliate of Waters Edge Wineries, operating under license. You acknowledge and agree that any mark or name that you adopt in connection with the operation of your franchise will belong to and inure to our benefit. You agree to assign all such marks and names and any registrations for

such marks and names to us on written request and to take all further and other steps requested by us to effectuate the assignment of these marks and names to us. On termination or expiration of your franchise, you must stop using the Trademarks and all other marks and names adopted in connection with your franchise.

- C. Store Identification and Other Uses of Marks. Except as directed by us, you must use the name WATERS EDGE WINERY & BISTRO as the trade name of the Store and you may not use any other mark or words to identify the Store without our prior written consent. You may not use the words WATERS EDGE WINERY or any of the other Trademarks as part of the name of your corporation, partnership, limited liability company or other similar entity. You may use the Trademarks on various materials, such as business cards, stationery and checks, provided you (i) accurately depict the Trademarks on the materials, (ii) include a statement on the materials indicating that the business is independently owned and operated by you, (iii) do not use the Trademarks in connection with any other trademarks, trade names or service marks unless we specifically approve in writing prior to such use, (iv) seek and obtain our prior written approval for use of the Trademarks on the proposed materials prior to use, and (v) make available to us, upon our request, a copy of any materials depicting the Trademarks. You must post a prominent sign in the Store identifying yourself as a WATERS EDGE WINERY franchisee in a format we deem reasonably acceptable, including an acknowledgment that you independently own and operate the Store and that the WATERS EDGE WINERY Trademark is owned by us and your use is under a license we have issued to you. If you are a private branded franchise, your adopted store name must always display the words "An Affiliate of Waters Edge Wineries" in the vicinity of your approved logo. The Affiliate designation must not be less than 30% the size of your approved logo.
- D. <u>Litigation</u>. In the event any person or entity improperly uses or infringes the Trademarks or challenges your use or our use or ownership of the Trademarks or our other intellectual property, such as copyrights or patents, we will control all litigation and we have the right to determine whether suit will be instituted, prosecuted or settled, the terms of settlement and whether any other action will be taken. You must promptly notify us of any such use or infringement of which you are aware or any challenge or claim arising out of your use of any Trademark. You must take reasonable steps, without compensation, to assist us with any action we undertake. We will be responsible for our fees and expenses with any such action, unless the challenge or claim results from your misuse of the Trademarks in violation of this Agreement, in which case you must reimburse us for our fees and expenses.
- E. <u>Changes</u>. You may not make any changes or substitutions to the Trademarks unless we direct in writing. We reserve the right to change the Trademarks at any time. Upon receipt of our notice to change the Trademarks, you must cease using the former Trademarks and commence using the changed Trademarks at your expense.

TERM AND RENEWAL

- 4. The following provisions control with respect to the term and renewal of this Agreement:
- A. <u>Term.</u> The initial term of this Agreement is 10 years unless this Agreement is sooner terminated in accordance with Paragraph 13. The initial term commences upon the Effective Date of this Agreement. We may extend this initial term in writing for a limited period of time not to exceed 6 months to take into account the term of any applicable lease for the Authorized Location.

- B. Renewal Term and Conditions of Renewal. You may renew this Agreement for an additional term of 10 years, provided that: (i) you have given us written notice of your decision to renew at least 6 months but not more than 12 months prior to the end of the expiring term; (ii) you sign our then-current form of franchise agreement, the terms of which may differ from this Agreement, including higher fees and modified to reflect no additional renewal term upon expiration and other modifications to reflect that the agreement relates to the grant of a renewal; (iii) you have complied with the provisions of subparagraph 5.E regarding modernization; (iv) you are not in default of this Agreement or any other agreement pertaining to the franchise granted at the time you provide notice of your intent to renew or at the time of renewal, have satisfied all monetary and material obligations on a timely basis during the term and are in good standing; (v) if leasing the Store premises (and not subject to relocation under (iii) above), you have renewed the lease and have provided written proof of your ability to remain in possession of the premises throughout the renewal period; (vi) you comply with our thencurrent training requirements; (vii) you and your Principal Owners and guarantors execute a general release of claims in a form we prescribe; and (viii) you pay us or our designee a renewal fee in the amount of \$5,000.
- C. Month-to-Month Agreement. If you do not sign our then-current Franchise Agreement prior to the expiration date and you continue to accept the benefits of this Agreement after it expires, then at our option, this Agreement may be treated either as (i) expired as of the expiration date with you then operating without a license and in violation of our rights; or (ii) continued on a month-to-month basis ("Month-to-Month Agreement") until one party provides the other with written notice of such party's intent to terminate the Month-to-Month Agreement, in which case the Month-to-Month Agreement will terminate thirty (30) days after receipt of the notice to terminate the Month-to-Month Agreement, or such longer notice period as is required by applicable law. In the latter case, all of your obligations shall remain in full force and effect during the Month-to-Month Agreement as if this Agreement had not expired, and all obligations and restrictions imposed on you on expiration of this Agreement will be deemed to take effect upon termination of the Month-to-Month Agreement.

FACILITY STANDARDS AND MAINTENANCE

- 5. You acknowledge and agree that we have the right to establish, from time to time, quality standards regarding the business operations of WATERS EDGE WINERY & BISTRO stores to protect the distinction, goodwill and uniformity symbolized by the Trademarks and the System. Accordingly, you agree to maintain and comply with our quality standards and agree to the following terms and conditions:
 - A. <u>Store Facility; Lease</u>. You are responsible for purchasing or leasing a site that meets our site selection considerations. We must consent to the site in writing.

You may not open your Store for business until we have notified you in writing that you have satisfied your pre-opening obligations as set forth in subparagraphs 5.A and 5.B and we have approved your opening date. We are not responsible or liable for any of your pre-opening obligations, losses or expenses you might incur for your failure to comply with these obligations or your failure to open by a particular date. We also are entitled to injunctive relief or specific performance under subparagraph 12.D for your failure to comply with your obligations.

In the event that you enter into any type of lease for the Store premises, you must provide the lease to us and receive our prior written approval of the lease before you execute it. We have no responsibility for the lease; it is your sole responsibility to evaluate, negotiate and enter into the lease for the Store premises. Your lease must contain the Addendum to Lease attached as

Appendix C. You must provide us a copy of the lease and Addendum within 5 days of their execution.

B. <u>Construction</u>. You may not commence construction of the Store until you have received our written consent to your building plans and your design and décor layout. You also must construct and equip the Store in accordance with our current approved specifications and standards pertaining to equipment, inventory, signage, fixtures and design and layout of the building. You must use our designated construction management firm.

Without limiting the generality of the prior paragraph, you must promptly after obtaining possession of the site for the Store: (i) have prepared and submitted for our approval basic architectural plans and specifications (not for construction) consistent with our general atmosphere, image, décor, color scheme and ambience requirements as set forth from time to time in the Operations Manuals for a WATERS EDGE WINERY & BISTRO store (including requirements for dimensions, exterior design, materials, interior design and layout, equipment, signs and decorating); (ii) purchase or lease and then, in the construction of the Store, use only the approved equipment, fixtures and signs; (iii) complete the construction and/or remodeling, equipment, fixtures, furniture and sign installation and decorating of the Store in full compliance with plans and specifications we approve and all applicable ordinances, building codes and permit requirements without any unauthorized alterations; (iv) obtain all customary contractors' sworn statements and partial and final waivers; (v) obtain all necessary permits, licenses and architectural seals and comply with applicable legal requirements relating to the building, signs, equipment and premises, including, but not limited to, the Americans With Disabilities Act; and (vi) obtain and maintain all required zoning changes, building, utility, health, sanitation, winery and sign permits and licenses and any other required permits and licenses. It is your responsibility to comply with the foregoing conditions.

Any change to the interior or exterior decor or image, equipment or signage of the Store to be made after our consent is granted for initial plans, whether at the request of you or of us, must be made in accordance with specifications that have received our prior written consent. You may not commence such addition or modification until you have received our written consent to your revised plans.

- C. <u>Maintenance</u>. The building, equipment, fixtures, signage and trade dress (including the interior and exterior appearance) employed in the operation of your Store must be maintained and refreshed in accordance with our requirements established periodically and any of our reasonable schedules prepared based upon periodic evaluations of the premises by our representatives. Within a period of 30-60 days (as we determine depending on the work needed) after the receipt of any particular report prepared following such an evaluation, you must affect the items of maintenance we designate, including the repair of defective items and/or the replacement of irreparable or obsolete items of equipment and signage. If, however, any condition presents a threat to customers or public health or safety, you must affect the items of maintenance immediately.
- D. <u>Relocation</u>. If you need to relocate because of condemnation, destruction, or expiration or cancellation of your lease for reasons other than your breach, we will grant you authority to do so at a site acceptable to us that is within your Designated Area; provided that you locate a site acceptable to us and are open and operating within 60 days from closing the Store, all in accordance with our then-current standards. If you voluntarily decide to relocate the Store, your right to relocate the Store will be void and your interest in this Agreement will be voluntarily abandoned, unless you have given us notice of your intent to relocate not less than 30 days prior to closing the Store, have procured a site that we accept within 15 days after closing the prior

Store, have opened the new Store for business within 60 days of such closure and complied with any other conditions that we reasonably require.

You must pay the costs of any relocation, and we reserve the right to charge you for any reasonable costs that we incur.

You do not have the right to relocate in the event you lose the right to occupy the Store premises because of the cancellation of your lease due to your breach, rather the cancellation of your lease due to your breach is grounds for immediate termination under subparagraph 13.B.2.

E. <u>Modernization or Replacement</u>. From time to time as we require, you must affect items of modernization and/or replacement of the trade dress or equipment as may be necessary for your Store to conform to the standards for similarly situated new WATERS EDGE WINERY & BISTRO stores. You must complete to our satisfaction any changes we require within 3 months from the date you are notified of any required changes. We will not require you to spend more than \$50,000 annually on any required modernization and/or replacement of trade dress or equipment pursuant to this section. However, the monetary limits described above will not apply to any modernization and/or replacement of trade dress we may require in connection with a transfer or renewal of the Franchise.

Notwithstanding the prior paragraph, we will not require you to make any modernization expenditures during the first 5 years of this Agreement (except in the event of a transfer as noted below). You, however, must perform general, continued maintenance and refreshing of the Store premises whenever necessary as set forth in subparagraph 5.C. Further, each and every transfer of any interest in this Agreement or your Store or business governed by Paragraph 11 or renewal covered by Paragraph 4 is expressly conditioned upon your compliance with these requirements at the time of transfer or renewal.

You acknowledge and agree that the requirements of this subparagraph 5.E are both reasonable and necessary to insure continued public acceptance and patronage of WATERS EDGE WINERY & BISTRO stores. If you fail to make any improvement or perform the maintenance listed above, we may, in addition to our other rights in this Agreement, effect such improvement or maintenance and you must reimburse us for the costs we incur.

F. <u>Signage</u>. In addition to installing interior signage that accurately displays the Trademarks, you also must purchase an approved outdoor sign at your expense which must bear the WATERS EDGE WINERY & BISTRO logo or other mark we designate and complies with our specifications, which we may modify and change from time to time due to modifications to the System, including changes to the Trademarks. If you are a private braded franchise, your signage must say "An affiliate of" with the WATERS EDGE WINERY & BISTRO logo. You must make such changes to the outdoor signage as we require. Your failure to replace the signage within 3 months from the date of notification will constitute a default of this Agreement under Paragraph 13. Any upgrades to the type or size of your outdoor signage will be at your expense.

PRODUCTS AND OPERATIONS STANDARDS AND REQUIREMENTS

- 6. You must implement and abide by our requirements and recommendations directed to enhancing substantial System uniformity. The following provisions control with respect to products and operations:
 - A. <u>Authorized Products and Ingredients</u>. You must use in the operation of the Store and in the preparation and manufacture of wine and other beverage products only the proprietary and non-proprietary ingredients, recipes, formulas, techniques, processes and supplies, and must

prepare and sell wine and products in such appearance and packaging, all as we specify in our most current operations material or otherwise in writing. You acknowledge and agree that we may change these materials periodically and that you are obligated to conform to the requirements. All supplies, including containers and other customer service materials of all descriptions and types must meet our standards of uniformity and quality. You acknowledge that the Store must at all times maintain an inventory of ingredients and beverage products and other products, material and supplies that will permit operation of the Store at maximum capacity. You must carry and offer for sale all approved products and services we designate. You must not carry or offer for sale any unapproved product or service.

- Approved Supplies and Suppliers. We will furnish to you from time to time lists B. of approved supplies or approved suppliers. You must only use approved products, inventory (including ingredients), equipment, fixtures, signs, advertising materials, trademarked items and novelties, and other items (collectively, "approved supplies") in the Store as set forth in the approved supplies and approved suppliers lists, as we may amend from time to time. Although we do not do so for every item, we have the right to approve the manufacturer of approved supplies. You acknowledge and agree that certain approved supplies may only be available from one source, and we may be that source. For instance, we are currently the only approved supplier for the custom winery system, juice and other supplies. We will derive revenue from the sale of products and supplies to you. All inventory, products, materials and other items and supplies used in the operation of the Store that are not included in the approved supplies or approved suppliers lists must conform to the specifications and standards we establish from time to time. ALTHOUGH APPROVED BY US, WE MAKE NO WARRANTY AND EXPRESSLY DISCLAIM ALL WARRANTIES, INCLUDING WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY AND FITNESS FOR ANY PARTICULAR PURPOSE, WITH RESPECT TO PRODUCTS, EQUIPMENT (INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION AND ANY COMPUTER SYSTEMS), SUPPLIES, FIXTURES, FURNISHINGS OR OTHER APPROVED ITEMS.
- Computer System and POS. You must purchase and use the computer system that we developed for the Store, including all future updates, maintenance, supplements and modifications (the "Computer System"). The Computer System includes hardware and software used in the operation of the Store. We reserve the right to require you to purchase or lease software that provides a system used to track and manage unfinished goods inventory, purchase orders and tax information. The computer hardware component of the Computer System must conform to specifications we develop. You must also purchase or lease and install a POS System and software meeting our requirements and pay for annual support for the POS System. We can require you to pay us direct for the software licensing fees to allow us to take advantage of better pricing on a systemwide basis. We have the right to require you to upgrade, update and change the computer hardware and software systems and POS hardware and software systems on written notice, at your expense. You must comply with all directives we issue in this regard. You acknowledge and agree that we will have full and complete access to information and data entered and produced by the Computer System and POS System. You must have at the Authorized Location internet access with a form of high speed connection as we require and you must maintain an email account for our direct correspondence with you and the Store. Each party to this Agreement acknowledges and agrees that changes to technology are dynamic and not predictable within the term of this Agreement. In order to provide for inevitable but unpredictable changes to technological needs and opportunities, you agree that we will have the right to establish, in writing, reasonable new standards for the implementation of technology in the System; and you agree to comply with those reasonable new standards that we establish.

- D. <u>Intranet</u>. We will operate an Intranet system that we authorize you to access. You will have the mere privilege to use the Intranet, subject to your strict compliance with the standards and specifications, protocols and restrictions that we may establish from time to time in the Manuals and otherwise. You acknowledge that, as administrator of the Intranet, we may access and view any communication posted on the Intranet. You further acknowledge that the Intranet facility and all communications that are posted to it will become our property, free of any claims of privacy or privilege that you or any other person may assert. You must establish and continually maintain an electronic connection with the Intranet as specified in the Operations Manuals that allows us to send messages to and receive messages from you. If you default under this Agreement or any other agreement with us, we may, in addition to, and without limiting any other rights and remedies available to us, disable or terminate your access to the Intranet without us having any liability to you.
- E. <u>Evaluations</u>. We or our authorized representative have the right to enter your Store at all reasonable times during the business day for the purpose of making periodic evaluations and to ascertain if the provisions of this Agreement are being observed by you, to inspect and evaluate your premises, equipment, and to test, sample, inspect and evaluate your supplies, ingredients and products, as well as the storage, preparation and formulation and the conditions of sanitation and cleanliness in the storage, production, manufacture, handling and serving. Any evaluation that you fail is a default under this Agreement. Further, if we determine that any condition in the Store presents a threat to customers or public health or safety, we may take whatever measures we deem necessary, including requiring you to immediately close the Store until the situation is remedied to our satisfaction.
- F. Period of Operation. Subject to any contrary requirements of local law, your Store must be opened to the public and operated at least 8 hours each day, at least 6 days a week. Any variance from this provision must be authorized by us in writing. You are permitted to close the Store one day a week, but this day must be consistent from week to week. For instance, you may not be closed on a Monday one week and on a Sunday the next, without first obtaining our written consent and notifying your customers of the change. You acknowledge and agree that if your Store is closed for a period of 3 consecutive days or 10 or more days (not including the one day a week in which you are permitted to close) in any 12-month period without our prior written consent, such closure constitutes your voluntary abandonment of the franchise and business and we have the right, in addition to other remedies provided for herein, to terminate this Agreement. Acts of God, war, strikes, riots or other force majeure cause preventing you temporarily from complying with the foregoing will suspend compliance for the duration of such interference.
- G. Operating Procedures. You must adopt and use as your continuing operational routine the required standards, procedures, techniques and management systems described in the Operations Manuals or other written materials relating to product manufacture, preparation and storage, financial management, equipment and facility. We will revise the Confidential Operations Manual and Food Operations Manual ("Operations Manuals") and these standards, procedures, techniques and management systems periodically to meet changing conditions of retail operation in the best interest of stores operating under the Trademarks. Any required standards exist to protect our interests in the System and the Trademarks and not for the purpose of establishing any control or duty to take control over those matters that are reserved to you.

You acknowledge having received one copy of or access to the Operations Manuals for use during the term of this Agreement. The Operations Manuals at all times are our sole property. You must at all times treat the Operations Manuals, and the information they contain, as secret and confidential, and must use all reasonable efforts to maintain such information as secret and confidential. We may from time to time revise the contents of the Operations Manuals

and other materials and you expressly agree to comply with each new or changed requirement. You must at all times insure that your copy of the Operations Manuals are kept current and up to date, and in the event of any dispute as to the contents of the Operations Manuals, the terms of the master copy of the Operations Manuals that we maintain is controlling. You acknowledge and agree that in the future the Operations Manuals and other system communications may only be available on the internet or other online or computer communications.

You acknowledge that your compliance with the Operations Manuals is vitally important to us and other System franchisees and is necessary to protect our reputation and the goodwill of the Trademarks and to maintain the uniform quality of operation through the System. However, while the Operations Manuals are designed to protect our reputation and the goodwill of the Trademarks, they are not designed to control the day-to-day operation of the Store.

- H. Confidential Information. You, the Principal Owners, and the General Manager may not, during the term of this Agreement or thereafter, communicate, divulge or use for the benefit of any other person or entity any Confidential Information, except to such employees as must have access to it in order to operate the Store. For purposes of this Agreement, "Confidential Information" means all proprietary information, the software used in operating your Store, the Operations Manuals and other information communicated to you in writing, verbally or through the internet or other online or computer communications, and any other knowledge or know-how concerning the methods of operation of the Store. Any and all Confidential Information, including, without limitation, the Operations Manuals, proprietary ingredients, secret formulas and recipes, methods, procedures, suggested pricing, specifications, processes, materials, techniques, customer lists and other customer data, POS System data, wine club data, and other data, may not be used for any purpose other than operating the Store. You acknowledge and agree that we own all information contained in the POS System, wine club data, customer lists, other customer data, and all other Confidential Information used to operate the Store. You also acknowledge and agree that upon termination or expiration of this Agreement, you will have no ownership rights in any aspect of the Confidential Information including, but not limited to, any information contained in the POS System, wine club data, customer lists, other customer data, and any other Confidential Information used to operate the Store. In addition, during the term of this Agreement or thereafter, you may not teach classes for or at any school, public, private or otherwise, that conveys any information about our proprietary winemaking processes or franchise operations. We may require that you obtain nondisclosure and confidentiality agreements in a form satisfactory to us from any persons owning a minority interest in the franchisee, the Principal Owners, the General Manager and other key employees. You must provide executed copies of these agreements to us upon our request.
- I. <u>Compliance with Law; Licenses and Permits</u>. You must at all times maintain your premises and conduct your Store operations in compliance with all applicable laws, regulations, codes and ordinances. You must secure and maintain in force all federal, state and local licenses and permits relating to the operation of your Store. This includes, but is not limited to, a federal winery license, a state winery license and all retail alcohol, food and business licenses required. It is your sole responsibility to comply with all applicable local, state and federal laws and requirements regarding the advertising, sale and labeling of alcoholic beverages and food items. Your failure to secure and maintain all necessary federal, state and local licenses required for the operation of your Store and/or to comply with all requirements for advertising, selling and labeling of alcoholic beverages and food items is a breach of this Agreement and grounds for termination pursuant to Paragraph 13.

You acknowledge that you are an independent business and responsible for control and management of your Store, including, but not limited to, the hiring and discharging of your

employees, and setting and paying wages and benefits of your employees. You agree to comply with all applicable laws pertaining to the privacy of customers, employees, and financial transactional information ("Privacy Laws"). You acknowledge that we have no power, responsibility or liability in respect to the hiring, discharging, setting and paying of wages or related matters for your personnel.

You must immediately notify us in writing of any claim, litigation or proceeding that arises from or affects the operation or financial condition of your WATERS EDGE WINERY & BISTRO business or Store, including any notices of health code violations or winery license violations.

- J. Participation in Internet Web Sites or Other Online Communications. We reserve the right to require you to, at your expense, participate in the WATERS EDGE WINERY web site, any intranet or extranet system we may develop or other online communications as we may require. You must pay our then current rates to access these systems. We have the right to determine the content and use of the web site and any intranet or extranet system we may develop and will establish the rules under which franchisees may or must participate. We reserve the right to sell wine and wine related products on the website, and agree to split the proceeds of the sale in the manner described in Section 2(D). We retain all rights relating to the web site and any intranet or extranet system we may develop and may alter or terminate the web site, intranet or extranet system. Your general conduct on the web site, intranet and extranet system or other online communications and specifically your use of the Trademarks or any advertising is subject to the provisions of this Agreement. You acknowledge that certain information related to your participation in the web site, intranet or extranet system may be considered Confidential Information, including access codes and identification codes. Your right to participate in the web site, intranet and extranet system, or otherwise use the Trademarks or System on the internet or other online communications, will terminate when this Agreement expires or terminates.
- K. Websites, Social Media and Domain Names. You may not separately register any domain name containing any of the Trademarks or operate your own website selling wine or related products or any social media site or page for your Store, whether or not they contain our Trademarks without our express prior written consent. If we consent to your registration and/or use of a domain name, website or social media site or page for your business (whether acquired, registered and/or used before or after entering into this Agreement), you must place such domain name(s), website(s) and social media site(s) or page(s) in our name and/or transfer the ownership of the domain name(s), website(s) and social media site(s) or page(s) to us, and take whatever other action we may require in this regard. On termination or expiration of this Agreement, you agree that we may keep and if not already done so, you must transfer to us any domain names, social media site(s) or page(s) and websites used in operation of your Store.
- L. <u>System Modifications</u>. You acknowledge and agree that we have the right to modify, add to or rescind any requirement, standard or specification that we prescribe under this Agreement to adapt the System to changing conditions competitive circumstances, business strategies, business practices and technological innovations and other changes as we deem appropriate. You must comply with these modifications, additions or rescissions at your expense, subject to any express limitations set forth in this Agreement.
- M. <u>Suggested Pricing Policies</u>. We may, from time to time, make suggestions to you with regard to your pricing policies. We retain the right to establish maximum and minimum prices to be charged by you for sales, promotions or otherwise, but any exercise of

that right will be specifically set forth in writing. You must honor the terms of all promotional or discount programs that we offer and comply with any pricing policies we may specify, including minimum and maximum price policies, minimum advertised price policies and unilateral price policies (when permitted by law).

- N. <u>Vending Services</u>. You may not install or maintain on the premises of the Store any newspaper racks, video games, jukeboxes, gaming machines, gum machines, games, rides, vending machines, pool tables, automated teller machines or other similar devices without our prior written approval.
- O. <u>Uniforms</u>. You must purchase and your employees must at all times wear uniforms while on duty imprinted with the Trademarks and conforming to other specifications prescribed by us.
- Program. If you are a private branded franchise e in good standing and: (1) you are in full compliance with the terms of this Agreement; and (2) you want to convert to our Full franchise program, we may, at our sole discretion, elect to provide you an allowance to assist with the costs involved to change signage and re-brand to the Full franchise program. Nothing herein shall impose an obligation on us to do so. You will be subject to the advertising fee and all other requirements of the full franchise program after the conversion.
- Q. <u>Toll-Free Telephone Number</u>. We have the right, but not the obligation, to establish and maintain a toll free telephone number for the purpose of accepting and confirming customer orders nationwide, customer service, and customer follow-up and satisfaction surveys. If we establish a toll free number, you must comply with our procedures for implementing the nationwide service as we specify in the Operations Manuals or otherwise in writing.

PERSONNEL AND SUPERVISION STANDARDS

- 7. The following provisions and conditions control with respect to personnel, training and supervision:
 - A. <u>Supervision</u>. You must have a General Manager at all times during the term of this Agreement. You and your General Manager must ensure that the Store is operated in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement.
 - B. Training. You must, at your expense, comply with all of the training requirements we prescribe for the Store to be developed under this Agreement. You and your General Manager must attend remote training provided via the web as well as classroom training in Rancho Cucamonga, California (or any other location designed by us in the future) and complete training to our satisfaction. The initial training also includes custom winery system training, the duration of which will depend on whether you are purchasing a large tank system or a small tank system, and other pre-opening assistance that we or our designee provide at your Store prior to opening. Before starting operations and thereafter, you must require all employees handling food to obtain and maintain food handler certification training from companies we approve. In addition, you and all managers of the Store must take and successfully complete food management training from companies we approve. In the event you are given notice of default as set forth in subparagraphs 13.A and B and the default relates, in whole or in part, to your failure to meet any operational standards, we have the right to require as a condition of curing the default that you, and the General Manager, at your expense, comply with the additional training requirements we

prescribe. Any new General Manager must comply with our training requirements within a reasonable time as we specify. You must pay all costs and our then current fees and travel expenses (if any) for such training. Under no circumstances may you permit management of the Store's operations on a regular basis by a person who has not successfully completed to our reasonable satisfaction all applicable training we require. We have no obligation to provide initial training if (i) you or an affiliate (if you are an entity) already owns or operates a Waters Edge Winery Store as of the date of this agreement; or (ii) this Agreement is executed as a renewal franchise agreement.

- C. <u>Ongoing Training</u>. We may require you and your General Manager to attend, at your expense, ongoing training at our training facility, the Authorized Location or any other location we designate. You must pay all costs and our then current fees for such training, including any travel expenses we incur to provide the training if at the Authorized Location.
- D. <u>Additional Assistance</u>. If you ask and we agree to provide additional assistance to you, you must pay our then current fees for such assistance plus our personnel's travel expenses.
- E. <u>Staffing</u>. You will determine who to retain, how many people to retain (subject to any minimum staffing requirements we may prescribe), how you compensate your personnel, terms of employment and working conditions, when and how to discipline the personnel you hire, and when and how to terminate the personnel you hire. You are required at all times to comply with all applicable employment laws. No employee of yours will be deemed to be an agent or employee of ours for any purpose whatsoever and we are not a joint employer of those persons.
- F. <u>Attendance at Meetings</u>. You must attend, at your expense, our annual franchise convention. You must also attend, at your expense, any regional meetings that we hold relating to new products or product preparation procedures, new operational procedures or programs, training, store management, sales or sales promotion, or similar topics. If you are not able to attend a meeting or convention, you must notify us at least 30 days prior to the meeting. You must pay our then current fee for attending our annual franchise conventions and regional meetings. You are also responsible for travel, lodging and related costs and fees for all persons who attend from your Store.
- G. <u>Payroll Service</u>. You must retain an outside payroll service to provide payroll services to your employees.

ADVERTISING

- 8. You agree to actively promote your Store, to abide by all of our advertising requirements and to comply with the following provisions:
 - A. Required Local Expenditures, Approved Materials. You must use your best efforts to promote and advertise the Store and participate in any local advertising and promotional programs we establish from time to time. You are required to spend 3% of your Gross Sales on approved local advertising and promotion. On a quarterly basis you must provide us with itemization and proof of advertising and an accounting of the monies that you have spent for approved local advertising. If you fail to make the required expenditure, we have the right to collect and contribute the deficiency to the Advertising Fund (defined below). You must use only such marketing and advertising materials as we furnish, approve or make available, and the materials must be used only in a manner that we prescribe. You must submit your proposed advertising or marketing materials to us prior to their use. We will approve or reject the materials within 10 days of receipt. Furthermore, any promotional activities you conduct in the Store or on its premises are subject to our approval. We will not unreasonably withhold approval of any sales promotion materials and activities; provided that they are current, in good condition, in good taste,

accurately depict the Trademarks and used in a manner that we have prescribed. For each advertisement or promotion you publish or conduct, it is your sole responsibility to comply with local, state and federal laws regarding the sale of liquor or the operation of a winery.

- B. Advertising Fund. We operate an Advertising Fund and require you to pay an Advertising Fee as set forth in subparagraph 9.C. All Advertising Fees will be placed in an Advertising Fund that we own and manage. The Advertising Fund is not a trust or escrow account, and we have no fiduciary obligation to franchisees with respect to the Advertising Fund. We have the right to determine the expenditures of the amounts collected and the methods of marketing, advertising, media employed and contents, terms and conditions of marketing and advertising campaigns and promotional programs. Because of the methods used, we are not required to spend a prorated amount on each store or in each advertising market. We have the right to make disbursements from the Advertising Fund for expenses incurred in connection with the cost of formulating, developing and implementing marketing, advertising and promotional campaigns. The disbursements may include payments to us for the expense of administering the Advertising Fund, including accounting expenses and salaries and benefits paid to our employees engaged in the advertising functions. If requested, we will provide you an annual unaudited statement of the financial condition of the Advertising Fund. If you have a private branded franchise, this Section 8.B shall not apply to you.
- C. <u>Grand Opening Advertising and Promotion</u>. You must conduct certain advertising and public relations activities in connection with the opening of your Store, as we specify in writing. We can require you to use our approved supplier for your grand opening advertising. Among other things, grand opening advertising may be used for the creation of social media content, press releases, and local media outreach.

FEES, REPORTING AND AUDIT RIGHTS

9. You must pay the fees described below and comply with the following provisions:

A. <u>Initial Franchise Fee</u>.

- (i) You must pay to us or our designee a nonrefundable Initial Franchise Fee of \$_______, Twelve Thousand (\$12,000) of which you will pay when you sign the Franchise Application and Deposit Agreement. The remaining \$______ of the Initial Franchise Fee is due and payable in full on the date you sign this Agreement, is earned on receipt and is in consideration for our expenses incurred and services rendered in granting you franchise rights. We waive the Initial Franchise Fee if you are a private branded franchisee converting to our Full Franchise program.
- (ii) Initial Franchise Fee Additional Locations. Should we approve your application to purchase an additional Waters Edge franchise, the parties shall, for each additional franchise so purchased, enter into our then current form of Franchise Agreement, except that the amount of the Initial Franchise Fee shall be as follows:
 - 1. For the second Waters Edge franchise purchased by you or your affiliate (i.e. another entity you or your owners control), the Initial Franchise Fee shall be seventy five percent (75%) of our then current Initial Franchise Fee charged to franchisees;
 - 2. For the third Waters Edge franchise purchased by you or your affiliate (i.e. another entity you or your owners control), the Initial Franchise Fee

shall be fifty percent (50%) of our then current Initial Franchise Fee charged to franchisees:

3. For the fourth Waters Edge franchise purchased by you or your affiliate (i.e. another entity you or your owners control) and each subsequent franchise thereafter, the Initial Franchisee Fee shall be twenty five (25%) of our then current Initial Franchise Fee charged to franchisees.

Nothing herein obligates us to grant you an additional franchise and you do not obtain rights pursuant to this Agreement to purchase or operate more than one franchise location.

- B. <u>Royalty Fee</u>. In addition to the Initial Franchise Fee, during the full term of this Agreement and in consideration of the rights granted to you, you must pay to us or our designee a monthly Royalty Fee in an amount equal to 5% of Gross Sales.
- C. <u>Advertising Fee</u>. If you have a Full Franchise Location, you must pay to us or our designee a monthly Advertising Fee in an amount equal to 2% of your Gross Sales, as further described in Paragraph 8.B of this Agreement.
- D. Added Services Fee. You must pay us or our designee a monthly Added Service Fee of up to 5% of your Gross Sales, with a minimum payment of \$350. We may increase the Added Services Fee on thirty (30) days written notice. You must begin paying the Added Services Fee ninety (90) days after you sign the Franchise Agreement, regardless of whether or not your WATERS EDGE WINERY & BISTRO store is open for business. The Added Services Fee will be used to provide one or more of the following additional services we elect to provide you as more fully described in the Operations Manuals: limited accounting support and assistance, limited financial consulting guidance, intranet/extranet access/website hosting, internet email accounts, website development assistance for your Store which will be accessible through our main website, and email and Internet marketing and advertising services using information you provide to us and we approve.
- E. <u>Technology Fee</u>. You must pay us or our designee our then-current monthly Technology Fee. The monthly technology fee amount you pay may vary based on your wine club sales volume. You will be required to pay the then-current set up and installation costs for each POS system.
- F. <u>Default Fee</u>. We have the right to assess a fee of up to \$2,500 per violation of any term, obligation or requirement of the Operations Manuals or this Agreement. Our assessment of this fee shall not constitute a waiver by us of our right to seek damages and/or other relief against you arising from the violation, including our right to terminate this Agreement pursuant to Section 13.
- G. <u>Computations and Remittances</u>. You authorize us to poll your POS to compute all amounts due and owing at the end of each month's operation and remittance for the amounts must be made to us on or before the 15th day of the following month, accompanied by the reports required by subparagraph 9.J of this Agreement. You must certify the computation of the amounts in the manner and form we specify, and you must supply to us any supporting or supplementary materials as we reasonably require to verify the accuracy of remittances. You waive any and all existing and future claims and offsets against any amounts due under this Agreement, which amounts you must pay when due. We have the right to apply or cause to be applied against amounts due to us any amounts that we may hold from time to time on your behalf

or that we owe to you. Further, if you are delinquent in the payment of any amounts owed to us, we have the right to require you to prepay estimated Royalties.

- H. <u>Electronic Transfer</u>. We have the right to require all Royalty Fees, Advertising Fees, Added Services Fees, Technology Fees, amounts due for purchases from us and other amounts due to us to be paid through an Electronic Depository Transfer Account. At our request, you must open and maintain an Electronic Depository Transfer Account, and provide us with continuous access to such account for the purpose of receiving any payments due to us. Every month, you will deposit to the account sufficient sums to cover amounts owed to us prior to the date such amounts are due. You must sign any documents we or your bank requires to establish and implement the Electronic Depository Transfer Account. Once established, you must not close the Electronic Depository Transfer Account without our written consent.
- I. Interest Charges; Late Fees. Any and all amounts that you owe to us will bear interest at the rate of 18% per annum or the maximum contract rate of interest permitted by governing law, whichever is less, from and after the date of accrual. In addition to interest charges on late Royalties, Added Services Fees, and Advertising Fee payments, you must pay to us a service charge of \$50 for each delinquent report or payment that you owe to us under this Agreement. A payment is delinquent for any of the following reasons: (i) we (or our designee) do not receive the payment on or before the date due; or (ii) there are insufficient funds in your bank account to collect the payment by a transfer of funds on or after the date due. The service charge is not interest or a penalty, it is only to compensate us for increased administrative and management costs due to late payment. We also may levy fines against you for your failure to comply with your obligations under this Agreement, as further explained in the Operations Manuals. Any interest, service charge or fine levied against you will be deducted from your Electronic Depository Transfer Account ten (10) days after you receive notice from us.
- J. Financial Planning and Management. You must record daily all sales using our designated software. You must keep books and records and submit reports as we periodically require, including but not limited to a monthly profit plan, monthly balance sheet and monthly statement of profit and loss, records of prices and special sales, check registers, purchase records, invoices, sales summaries and inventories, sales tax records and returns, payroll records, cash disbursement journals and general ledger, all of which accurately reflect the operations and condition of your Store operations. You must provide us or our designee passwords and access to your online accounting records and other accounting programs. You acknowledge and agree that we and our designee will have full and complete access to information and data entered and produced by the accounting programs without need to obtain prior notice or approval from you; however, you may restrict our ability to change accounting information and limit us to "view only" in the software setup. You must compile, keep and submit to us, the books, records and reports to us as we periodically may prescribe. The records that you are required to keep for your Store must include detailed daily sales, cost of sales, and other relevant records or information maintained in an electronic media format and methodology we approve. You also must preserve and retain the books, records and reports for not less than 36 months. You must allow us electronic and manual access to any and all records relating to your Store.
- K. Reports and Audit. Within 5 days after the end of each month, you must submit to us a report with respect to the preceding calendar month in the form and content as we periodically prescribe. The report must include, but not be limited to, the following information for the preceding month: (i) amount of Gross Sales, amount of sales and excise tax and the computation of the Royalties; and (ii) quantities of products purchased and the sources from which each were obtained. Upon our request and within 30 days after notice, you must submit copies of your most recent sales tax return, monthly sales summary and monthly balance sheet

and statement of profit and loss, including a summary of your costs for utilities, labor, rent and other material cost items. Also, if requested by us to verify your Gross Sales, you must submit, within 30 days of request, all such books and records as we may require under our audit policies published from time to time. You also must, at your expense, submit to us within 60 days after the end of each fiscal year a detailed balance sheet, profit and loss statement and statement of cash flows for such fiscal year, prepared on an accrual basis including all adjustments necessary for fair presentation of the financial statements. We may require that the annual financial statements be reviewed by a certified public accountant. You must certify all reports to be true and correct. You acknowledge and agree that we have the right to impose these requirements on you regardless of whether we impose the same requirement on other franchisees.

We or our authorized representative have the right at all times during the business day to enter the premises where your books and records relative to the Store are kept and to evaluate, copy and audit such books and records. We also have the right to request information from your suppliers and vendors. In the event that any such evaluation or audit reveals any understatement of your Gross Sales or Royalties or a variance of 2% or more from data reported to us in respect to any other item that is material to the computation of fees or to the analysis of the operation, you must pay for the audit, and in addition to any other rights we may have, we have the right to conduct further periodic audits and evaluations of your books and records as we reasonably deem necessary for up to 2 years thereafter and any further audits and evaluations will be at your sole expense, including, without limitation, professional fees, travel, and room and board expenses directly related thereto. Furthermore, if you intentionally understate or underreport Gross Sales or Royalties at any time, or if a subsequent audit or evaluation conducted within the 2-year period reveals any understatement of your Gross Sales or Royalties or a variance of 2% or more from data reported to us in respect to any other item that is material to the computation of fees or to the analysis of the operation, in addition to any other remedies provided for in this Agreement, at law or in equity, we have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately. To verify the information that you supply, we have the right to reconstruct your sales through any reasonable method of analyzing and reconstructing sales. You agree to accept any such reconstruction of sales unless you provide evidence in a form satisfactory to us of your sales within a period of 14 days from the date of notice of understatement or variance.

We will keep your financial books, records and reports confidential, unless the information is requested by tax authorities or used as part of a legal proceeding or in a manner as set forth in subparagraph 11.D.8 or where your information is grouped with similar information from other stores to produce shared results like high-low ranges or average gross sales or expenses on a system-wide or regional basis.

YOUR OTHER OBLIGATIONS; NONCOMPETE COVENANTS

- 10. You agree to comply with the following terms and conditions:
- A. <u>Payment of Debts</u>. You agree to pay promptly when due: (i) all payments, obligations, assessments and taxes due and payable to us, our affiliates and/or vendors, suppliers, lessors, federal, state or local governments, or creditors in connection with your business; (ii) all liens and encumbrances of every kind and character created or placed upon or against any of the property used in connection with the Store or business; and (iii) all accounts and other indebtedness of every kind incurred by you in the conduct of the Store or business. In the event you default in making any such payment, we are authorized, but not required, to pay the same on your behalf and you agree promptly to reimburse us on demand for any such payment.

- B. <u>Indemnification</u>. You waive all claims against us for damages to property or injuries to persons arising out of the operation of your Store. You agree to fully protect, indemnify and hold us and each of our owners, directors, officers, successors and assigns harmless from and against any and all claims, demands, damages acts, omissions and liabilities of any nature whatsoever arising in any manner, directly or indirectly, out of or in connection with or incidental to the operation of your Store (regardless of cause or any concurrent or contributing fault or negligence of us) including, but not limited to, any liability arising from labor or employment law violations or from claims against us by your employees or any breach by you or your failure to comply with the terms and conditions of this Agreement. We also reserve the right to select our own legal counsel to represent our interests, and you must reimburse us for our costs and attorneys' fees immediately upon our request as they are incurred.
- C. Insurance. You must purchase and maintain in full force and effect, at your expense and from a company we accept, insurance that insures you, us and any other persons we designate by name. The insurance policies must include, at a minimum: (i) special/causes of loss coverage forms (sometimes called "All Risk coverage") on the Store and all fixtures, equipment, supplies and other property used in the operation of the Store, for full repair and replacement value of the machinery, equipment and improvements, including full coverage for loss of income resulting from damage to the Store without any co-insurance clause, except that an appropriate deductible clause is permitted; (ii) business interruption insurance covering a minimum 6 months loss of income, including coverage for our Royalties with us named as a loss payee with respect to those fees; (iii) comprehensive general liability insurance, including product liability insurance, with minimum limits of \$1,000,000 per occurrence and \$2,000,000 aggregate; (iv) liquor liability coverage with minimum limits of \$1,000,000 per occurrence; (v) automobile liability insurance, including coverage for autos owned, leased, hired or borrowed by you or your owners and used for business purposes, with limits of at least \$300,000 per claim; (vi) workers' compensation and employer's liability insurance covering all of your employees (vii) umbrella liability insurance which also includes liquor liability, employers liability and automobile liability, with minimum limits of \$2,000,000 per occurrence; (viii) Waters Edge Wineries, Inc. as named additional insureds on all liability policies required by this subparagraph; (ix) any other such insurance coverages or amounts as required by law or other agreement related to the Store.

The required insurance coverage must commence as of the date the building lease has been signed for your Authorized Location. You must deliver to us at commencement and thereafter annually or at our request a proper certificate evidencing the existence of such insurance coverage and your compliance with the provisions of this subparagraph. The insurance certificate must show our status as an additional insured (as noted in (viii) above) and provide that we will be given 30 days' prior written notice of material change in or termination or cancellation of the policy. We also may request copies of all policies. We may modify the required minimum limits from time to time and by written notice to you, as conditions require, to reflect changes in relevant circumstances, industry standards, experiences in the WATERS EDGE WINERY & BISTRO system, standards of liability and higher damage awards. If you do not procure and maintain the insurance coverage required by this Agreement, we have the right, but not the obligation, to procure insurance coverage and to charge same to you, together with a reasonable fee for the expenses we incur in doing so, payable by you immediately upon notice.

D. <u>Noncompete Covenants</u>. You agree that you will receive valuable training and Confidential Information that you otherwise would not receive or have access to but for the rights licensed to you under this Agreement. You therefore agree to the following noncompetition covenants:

- 1. Unless otherwise specified, the term "you" as used in this subparagraph 10.D includes, collectively and individually, all Principal Owners, General Manager, guarantors, officers, directors, members, partners, as the case may be, and holders of any ownership interest in you. You must obtain from individuals identified in the preceding sentence a signed non-compete agreement in a form satisfactory to us that contains the non-compete provisions of this subparagraph 10.D.
- 2. You covenant that during the term of this Agreement you will not, either directly or indirectly, for yourself, or through, on behalf of, or in conjunction with any person or entity, own, manage, operate, maintain, engage in, consult with or have any interest in any wine business (manufacture, wholesale or retail) other than one authorized by this Agreement, or any other agreement between us and you.
- 3. You covenant that you will not, for a period of 2 years after the expiration or termination of this Agreement, regardless of the cause of termination, or within 2 years of the sale of the Store or any interest in you, either directly or indirectly, for yourself, or through, on behalf of, or in conjunction with any person or entity, own, manage, operate, maintain, engage in, consult with or have any interest in any wine business (manufacture, wholesale or retail) or in a store that sells wine or other beverage products the same as or similar to the type sold in WATERS EDGE WINERY & BISTRO stores: (i) in the former Designated Area; (ii) within a 25-mile radius of the former Designated Area; or (iii) within a 25-mile radius of the location of any other business or store using the WATERS EDGE WINERY & BISTRO System, whether franchised, affiliated or owned by us.
- 4. You agree that the length of time in subpart (3) will be tolled for any period during which you are in breach of the covenants or any other period during which we seek to enforce this Agreement. The parties agree that each of the foregoing covenants will be construed as independent of any other covenant or provision of this Agreement.
- E. <u>Violation of Noncompete Covenant</u>. If, after termination or expiration of this Agreement, you directly or indirectly own, operate or have any financial interest in any competitive business in violation of Section 10(D)(3), then, in addition to our other rights and remedies, you shall pay us liquidated damages. The liquidated damages shall be an amount equal to (i) eight percent (8%) of the average monthly Gross Sales derived from the Store during the 12-month period immediately preceding termination or expiration, including revenue derived from the sale of any merchandise, other products and services at or from the Store, and all other income of every kind and nature of the Store, multiplied by (ii) the number of full and partial months from your first violation of Section 10(D)(3) to the expiration of the non-compete term identified in Section 10(D)(3) ("Liquidated Damages"). If at the time of termination, your Store operated less than 12-months, then the measuring period for 10(E)(i) above shall instead be the 3-month period immediately preceding termination. The Liquidated Damages shall be paid by you to us in one lump sum on our written demand.
- F. Reasonable Good Faith Estimate. We and you acknowledge and agree: (i) it would be very difficult and impractical to determine the precise amount of damages and expenses we will incur if you breach Section 10(D)(3) during the 2-year period following termination or expiration of this Agreement due to challenges inherent in determining amounts of revenue lost by us and other injury and damage to us from your violation; and (ii) the formula and measurement above and resulting Liquidated Damages are a reasonable, good

faith estimate of the damages we will incur from your violation of Section 10(D)(3). You and we waive any claim that the resulting amount of Liquidated Damages is less than our actual damages or more than our actual damages, both you and we acknowledging and agreeing that the formula, measurement and resulting amount are a good faith, reasonable estimate and by the nature of being an estimate, will ultimately be inexact.

TRANSFER OF FRANCHISE

- 11. You agree that the following provisions govern any transfer or proposed transfer:
- Transfers. We have entered into this Agreement with specific reliance upon A. your financial qualifications, experience, skills and managerial qualifications as being essential to the satisfactory operation of the Store. Consequently, neither your interest in this Agreement nor in the Store may be transferred or assigned to or assumed by any other person or entity (the "assignee"), in whole or in part, unless you have first tendered to us the right of first refusal to acquire this Agreement in accordance with subparagraph 11.F, and if we do not exercise such right, unless our prior written consent is obtained, the transfer fee provided for in subparagraph 11.C is paid, and the transfer conditions described in subparagraph 11.D are satisfied. Any sale (including installment sale), lease, pledge, management agreement, contract for deed, option agreement, assignment, bequest, gift or otherwise, or any arrangement pursuant to which you turn over all or part of the daily operation of the business to a person or entity who shares in the losses or profits of the business in a manner other than as an employee will be considered a transfer for purposes of this Agreement. Specifically, but without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the following events constitute a transfer and you must comply with the right of first refusal, consent, transfer fee, and other transfer conditions in this Paragraph 11:
 - 1. Any change in the percentage of the franchisee entity owned, directly or indirectly, by any Principal Owner (including any addition or deletion of any person or entity who qualifies as a Principal Owner) which results in the Principal Owner owning less than 51%;
 - 2. Any change in the general partner of a franchisee that is a general, limited or other partnership entity; or
 - 3. For purposes of this subparagraph 11.A, a pledge or seizure of any ownership interests in you or in any Principal Owner that affects the ownership of 25% or more of you or Principal Owner, which we have not approved in advance in writing.

In the event of your insolvency or the filing of any petition by or against you under any provisions of any bankruptcy or insolvency law, if your legal representative, successor, receiver or trustee desires to succeed to your interest in this Agreement or the Store or business conducted hereunder, such person first must notify us, tender the right of first refusal provided for in subparagraph 11.F, and if we do not exercise such right, must apply for and obtain our consent to the transfer, pay the transfer fee provided for in subparagraph 11.C, and satisfy the transfer conditions described in subparagraph 11.D. In addition, you or the assignee must pay the attorneys' fees and costs that we incur in any bankruptcy or insolvency proceeding pertaining to you.

You may not place in, on or upon the location of the Store, or in any communication media or any form of advertising, any information relating to the sale of the Store or the rights under this Agreement, without our prior written consent.

- B. Consent to Transfer. We will not unreasonably withhold our consent to transfer. provided we determine that all of the conditions described in this Paragraph 11 have been satisfied. Application for our consent to a transfer and tender of the right of first refusal provided for in subparagraph 11.F must be made by submission of our form of application for consent to transfer, which must be accompanied by the documents (including a copy of the proposed purchase or other transfer agreement) or other required information. The application must indicate whether you or a Principal Owner proposes to retain a security interest in the property to be transferred. No security interest may be retained or created, however, without our prior written consent and except upon conditions acceptable to us. Any agreement used in connection with a transfer shall be subject to our prior written approval, which approval will not be withheld unreasonably. You immediately must notify us of any proposed transfer and must submit promptly to us the application for consent to transfer. Any attempted transfer by you without our prior written consent or otherwise not in compliance with the terms of this Agreement will be void and will provide us with the right to elect either to terminate this Agreement or to collect from you and the guarantors a transfer fee equal to two times the transfer fee provided for in subparagraph 11.C.
- C. <u>Transfer Fee</u>. You must pay to us a transfer fee in an amount equal to 50% of our then current Initial Franchise Fee at the time you submit an application for consent to transfer.

You must pay from the purchase price any broker, agent or other intermediary used in connection with the sale of the franchise and Store to the assignee.

- D. <u>Conditions of Transfer</u>. We may condition our consent to any proposed transfer, whether to an individual, a corporation, a partnership or any other entity, on the following:
 - 1. <u>Assignee Requirements</u>. The assignee must meet all of our thencurrent requirements for new franchisees entering our franchise program we are offering at the time of the proposed transfer.
 - 2. <u>Payment of Amounts Owed</u>. All amounts owed by you to us, your suppliers or any landlord for the Store premises and Authorized Location, or upon which we have any contingent liability must be paid in full.
 - 3. <u>Reports.</u> You must have provided all required reports to us in accordance with subparagraphs 9.H and I.
 - 4. <u>Modernization</u>. You must have complied with the provisions of subparagraph 5.E.
 - 5. <u>Guarantee</u>. In the case of an installment sale for which we have consented to you or any Principal Owner retaining a security interest or other financial interest in this Agreement or the Store or business operated thereunder, you or such Principal Owner, and the guarantors, are obligated to guarantee the performance under this Agreement until the final close of the installment sale or the termination of such interest, as the case may be.
 - 6. <u>General Release</u>. You, each Principal Owner and each guarantor must sign a general release of all claims arising out of or relating to this Agreement, your Store or the parties' business relationship, in the form we designate, releasing us.

- 7. <u>Training</u>. The assignee must, at your or assignee's expense, attend and satisfactorily complete our training program and otherwise comply with the training requirements of subparagraph 7.B.
- 8. <u>Financial Reports and Data.</u> We have the right to require you to prepare and furnish to the assignee and/or us such financial reports and other data relating to the Store and its operations as we deem reasonably necessary or appropriate for the assignee and/or us to evaluate the Store and the proposed transfer. You agree that we have the right to confer with proposed assignees and furnish them with information concerning the Store and proposed transfer without being held liable to you, except for intentional misstatements made to an assignee. Any information furnished by us to proposed assignees is for the sole purpose of permitting the assignee to evaluate the Store and proposed transfer and must not be construed in any manner or form whatsoever as earnings claims or claims of success or failure.
- 9. Other Conditions. You must have complied with any other conditions that we reasonably require from time to time as part of our transfer policies, which may include, but not be limited to: (a) obtaining consent of the Store owner(s) and landlord to the transfer; (b) at our option, the proposed transferee either: (i) signs our then current form of Franchise Agreement, modified to delete any initial fee, and to expire on the expiration date of this Agreement or (ii) signs our then current form of Franchise Agreement for a full term and pays our then current Initial Franchise Fee. Furthermore, you and the assignee must comply with any state and federal law or requirement regarding the transfer of your winery license.
- E. Death, Disability or Incapacity. If any individual who is a Principal Owner dies or becomes disabled or incapacitated and the decedent's or disabled or incapacitated person's heir or successor-in-interest wishes to continue as a Principal Owner, such person or entity must apply for our consent under subparagraph 11.B, comply with the training requirements of subparagraph 7.B, pay the applicable transfer fee under subparagraph 11.C, and satisfy the transfer conditions under subparagraph 11.D, as in any other case of a proposed transfer, all within 180 days of the death or event of disability or incapacity. During any transition period to an heir or successor-in-interest, the Store still must be operated in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement. If the assignee of the decedent or disabled or incapacitated person is the spouse or child of such person, no transfer fee will be payable to us and we will not have a right of first refusal as set forth in subparagraph 11.F.
- F. Right of First Refusal. If you propose to transfer or assign this Agreement or your interest herein or in the Store or business, in whole or in part, to any third party, including, without limitation, any transfer contemplated by subparagraph 11.E or any transfer described in subparagraph 11.A, you first must offer to sell to us your interest. In the event of a bona fide offer from such third party, you must obtain from the third-party offeror and deliver to us a statement in writing, signed by the offeror and by you, of the terms of the offer. In the event the proposed transfer results from a change in control of the franchisee or a Principal Owner under subparagraphs 11.A.1 through 11.A.3, or your insolvency or the filing of any petition by or against you under any provisions of any bankruptcy or insolvency law, you first must offer to sell to us your interest in this Agreement and the equipment, furniture and fixtures, and any leasehold interest used in the operation of your Store. Unless otherwise agreed to in writing by us and you, the purchase price for our purchase of assets in the event of a transfer that occurs by a change in control or insolvency or bankruptcy filing will be established by a qualified appraiser selected by the parties and in accordance with the price determination formula established in subparagraph 14.B in connection with an asset purchase upon expiration. In addition, unless otherwise agreed

to in writing by us and you, the transaction documents, which we will prepare, will be those customary for this type of transaction and will include representations and warranties then customary for this type of transaction. If the parties cannot agree upon the selection of such an appraiser, a Judge of the United States District Court for the District in which the Authorized Location is located will appoint one upon petition of either party.

You or your legal representative must deliver to us a statement in writing incorporating the appraiser's report and all other information we have requested. We then have 45 days from our receipt of the statement setting forth the third-party offer or the appraiser's report and other requested information to accept the offer by delivering written notice of acceptance to you. Our acceptance of any right of first refusal will be on the same price and terms set forth in the statement delivered to us; provided, however, we have the right to substitute equivalent cash for any noncash consideration included in the offer. If we fail to accept the offer within the 90-day period, you will be free for 60 days after such period to effect the disposition described in the statement delivered to us provided such transfer is in accordance with this Paragraph 11. You may effect no other sale or assignment of you, this Agreement or the Store or business without first offering the same to us in accordance with this subparagraph 11.F.

G. <u>Transfer by Us.</u> We have the right to sell or assign, in whole or in part, our interest in this Agreement.

DISPUTE RESOLUTION; CHOICE OF LAW; WAIVERS

- 12. The following provisions apply with respect to dispute resolution; choice of law and waivers:
- A. <u>Litigation</u>. The parties agree that any dispute, suit, action or proceeding for damages or any request for injunctive, declaratory or other equitable relief ("Proceeding") between you and us arising under, out of, in connection with or in relation to this Agreement, any lease or sublease for the Store or the interpretation, performance or breach of this Agreement, the parties' relationship, or the business must be instituted in the United States District Court for the Central District of California or any court of the State of California located in San Bernardino County, California, and each party irrevocably submits to the jurisdiction of those courts and waives any and all objections to jurisdiction or venue that it may have.
- B. <u>Choice of Law.</u> Subject to our rights under federal trademark laws, the parties agree that California law shall govern any Proceeding brought pursuant to Section 12(A) except that the non-compete provisions of Section 10(D), shall be governed by the laws of the state in which the Store is located. You waive, to the fullest extent permitted by law, the rights and protections that might be provided through the laws of any state relating to franchises or business opportunities, other than those of the state in which the Store is located. If, however, any provision of this Agreement would not be enforceable under the laws of California, and if the Store is located outside of California and such provision would be enforceable under the laws of the state in which the Store is located, then such provision shall be interpreted and construed under the laws of that state. Nothing in this paragraph is intended by the parties to subject this Agreement to any franchise or similar law, rule or regulation of any state to which it would not otherwise be subject.

C. Waivers.

1. <u>Jury Waiver</u>. The parties hereby waive any and all rights to a trial by jury in connection with the enforcement or interpretation by judicial process of any provision of this Agreement, and in connection with allegations of state or federal

statutory violations, fraud, misrepresentation or similar causes of action or any legal action initiated for the recovery of damages for breach of this Agreement.

- 2. <u>Class Action Waiver</u>. Any Proceeding must be resolved on an individual basis and not joined as part of a class action or the claims of other parties.
- 3. <u>Punitive Damages Waiver</u>. The parties waive and agree that no punitive or exemplary damages shall be awarded under any circumstances.
- <u>Injunctive Relief.</u> You recognize that the Store is one of a large number of stores and stores identified by the Trademarks and similarly situated and selling to the public similar products, and the failure on the part of a single franchisee to comply with the terms of its agreement could cause irreparable damage to us and/or to some or all of our other franchisees. Therefore, it is mutually agreed that in the event of a breach or threatened breach of any of the terms of this Agreement by you, we will forthwith be entitled to an injunction restraining such breach or to a decree of specific performance, without showing or proving any actual damage, together with recovery of reasonable attorneys' fees and other costs incurred in obtaining said equitable relief, until such time as a final and binding determination is made by the Court. Similarly, it is mutually agreed that in the event of our breach or threatened breach of any of the terms of this Agreement, you will forthwith be entitled to an injunction restraining such breach or to a decree of specific performance, without showing or proving any actual damage, together with recovery of reasonable attorneys' fees and other costs incurred in obtaining said equitable relief, until such time as a final and binding determination is made by the Court. The foregoing equitable remedies are in addition to, and not in lieu of, all other remedies or rights that the parties might otherwise have by virtue of any breach of this Agreement by the other party.
- E. <u>Attorneys' Fees</u>. The prevailing party in any action or proceeding arising under, out of, in connection with, or in relation to this Agreement, or to prevent a breach of this Agreement, or to obtain a declaration of rights or obligations under this Agreement, or any other action or proceeding relating to this Agreement or the relationship between the parties, any lease or sublease for the Store, or the business, shall be reimbursed by the losing party for all costs and expenses incurred in connection therewith, including reasonable attorneys' fees.

DEFAULT AND TERMINATION

- 13. The following provisions apply with respect to default and termination:
- A. <u>Defaults</u>. You are in default if we determine that you or any Principal Owner or guarantor has breached any of the terms of this Agreement or any other agreement between you and us, which without limiting the generality of the foregoing includes making any false report to us, intentionally understating or underreporting or failing to pay when due any amounts required to be paid to us, conviction of you, a Principal Owner, or a guarantor of (or pleading no contest to) any misdemeanor that brings or tends to bring any of the Trademarks into disrepute or impairs or tends to impair your reputation or the goodwill of any of the Trademarks or the Store, any felony, filing of tax or other liens that may affect this Agreement, voluntary or involuntary bankruptcy by or against you or any Principal Owner or guarantor, insolvency, making an assignment for the benefit of creditors or any similar voluntary or involuntary arrangement for the disposition of assets for the benefit of creditors.
- B. <u>Termination by Us.</u> We have the right to terminate this Agreement in accordance with the following provisions:

- 1. <u>Termination After Opportunity to Cure</u>. Except as otherwise provided in this subparagraph 13.B: (i) you will have 30 calendar days from the date of our issuance of a written notice of default to cure any default under this Agreement, other than a failure to pay amounts due or submit required reports or using, maintaining and/or carrying unapproved products or supplies, in which case you will have 10 calendar days to cure those defaults; (ii) your failure to cure a default within the 30-day or 10-day period will provide us with good cause to terminate this Agreement; (iii) the termination will be accomplished by mailing or delivering to you written notice of termination that will identify the grounds for the termination; and (iv) the termination will be effective immediately upon our issuance of the written notice of termination.
- Immediate Termination With No Opportunity to Cure. In the event 2. any of the following defaults occurs, you will have no right or opportunity to cure the default and this Agreement will terminate effective immediately on our issuance of written notice of termination: any material misrepresentation or omission in your Franchise Application and Deposit Agreement; your voluntary abandonment of this Agreement or the Authorized Location; the permanent loss or revocation of your winery license; the loss of your lease; the failure to timely cure a default under the lease; the loss of your right of possession or failure to reopen or relocate under subparagraph 5.D; the closing of the Store by any state or local authorities for health or public safety reasons; any unauthorized use of the Confidential Information; you become insolvent; you, your Principal Owner or guarantor enter into or file for bankruptcy protection; you, a Principal Owner, or guarantor, makes an assignment or enters into any similar arrangement for the benefit of creditors; conviction of you, any Principal Owners, or guarantors of (or pleading no contest to) any felony or misdemeanor that brings or tends to bring any of the Trademarks into disrepute or impairs or tends to impair your reputation or the goodwill of the Trademarks or the Store; intentionally understating or underreporting Gross Sales, Royalties or Advertising Fees or any understatement or 2% variance on a subsequent audit within a 2 year period under subparagraph 9.K; any unauthorized transfer or assignment in violation of Paragraph 11 or any default by you that is the second, same or similar default within any 12-month consecutive period or the fourth default of any type within any 24-month consecutive period.
- 3. <u>Immediate Termination After No More than 24 Hours to Cure</u>. In the event that a default under this Agreement occurs that materially impairs the goodwill associated with any of the Trademarks, or violates any health, safety or sanitation law or regulation (i) you will have no more than 24 hours after we provide written notice of the default to cure the default; and (ii) this Agreement will terminate effective immediately on our issuance of written notice of termination.
- 4. <u>Effect of Other Laws</u>. The provisions of any valid, applicable law or regulation prescribing permissible grounds, cure rights or minimum periods of notice for termination of this franchise supersede any provision of this Agreement that is less favorable to you.
- C. <u>Termination By Franchisee</u>. Franchisee may not terminate this Agreement prior to expiration of its term except with our prior written consent.
- D. <u>Our Rights When You are in Default</u>. If you are in default of this Agreement and fail to cure within the prescribed time identified above, then in addition to all our other rights and

remedies, we may suspend your access to the POS and wine club software until such time as you cure the default(s) or make other arrangements satisfactory to us. You release us from all claims as a result of any access suspension.

POST-TERM OBLIGATIONS

14. Upon the expiration or termination of this Agreement:

A. Reversion of Rights; Discontinuation of Trademark Use. All of your rights to the use of the Trademarks (and all other names and marks adopted in connection with the Store) and all other rights and licenses granted herein and the right and license to conduct business under the Trademarks at the Authorized Location will revert to us without further act or deed of any party. All of your right, title and interest in, to and under this Agreement will become our property. On our demand, you must assign to us or our assignee your remaining interest in any lease then in effect for the Store (although we will not assume any past due obligations). You must immediately comply with the post-term non-compete obligations under subparagraph 10.D. cease all use and display of the Trademarks and any other marks and names adopted in connection with your Store and of any proprietary material (including the Operations Manuals and the product preparation materials) and of all or any portion of promotional materials furnished or approved by us, assign all right, title and interest in the telephone numbers for the Store (in accordance with the Assignment attached as Appendix D), all domain names and websites connected with the Store and cancel or assign to us or our designee, at our option, any adopted marks, assumed name rights, or equivalent registrations filed with authorities. You must pay all sums due to us or designees and all sums you owe to third parties that have been guaranteed by us. You must immediately return to us, at your expense, all copies of the Operations Manuals and product preparation materials then in your possession or control or previously disseminated to your employees, stop use of all Confidential Information and continue to comply with the confidentiality provisions of subparagraph 6.G. You must promptly at your expense and subject to subparagraph 14.B, remove or obliterate all Store signage, displays or other materials in your possession at the Authorized Location or elsewhere that bear any of the Trademarks, other adopted marks, or names or materials confusingly similar to the Trademarks and so alter the appearance of the Store as to differentiate the Store unmistakably from duly licensed stores identified by the Trademarks. If, however, you refuse to comply with the provisions of the preceding sentence within 30 days, we have the right to enter the Authorized Location and remove all Store signage, displays or other materials in your possession at the Authorized Location or elsewhere that bear any of the Trademarks, other adopted marks or names or material confusingly similar to the Trademarks or other marks, and you must reimburse us for our costs incurred. Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event of expiration or termination of this Agreement, you will remain liable for your obligations pursuant to this Agreement or any other agreement between you and us that expressly or by their nature survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement.

B. <u>Purchase Option</u>. We have the right but not the obligation to purchase or designate a third party that will purchase all or any portion of the assets of your Store that are owned by you or any of your affiliates including, without limitation, equipment, the Computer System, fixtures, signage, furnishings, supplies, leasehold improvements, winery license and inventory of the Store at a price determined by a qualified appraiser (or qualified appraisers if one party believes it is better to have a real estate appraiser appraise the value of the land and building and a business appraiser appraise the Store's other assets) selected with the consent of both parties, provided we give you written notice of our preliminary intent to exercise our purchase rights under this Paragraph within 30 days after the date of the expiration or termination of this Agreement. You agree to assist in the transfer of the winery license to us or our designated third

party. If the parties cannot agree upon the selection of an appraiser(s), one or both will be appointed by a Judge of the United States District Court for the District in which the Authorized Location is located upon petition of either party.

In the event the Agreement is terminated or expires, the price determined by the appraiser(s) will be the lesser of the depreciated book value or reasonable fair market value, but no less than salvage value of the assets based on their continuing use in, as, and for the operation of a WATERS EDGE WINERY & BISTRO Store and the appraiser will designate a price for each category of asset (e.g., equipment, fixtures, etc.), but shall not include the value of any goodwill of the Store or business, as the goodwill of the Store and business is attributable to the Trademarks and the System.

Within 45 days after our receipt of the appraisal report, we or our designated purchaser will identify the assets, if any, that we intend to purchase at the price designated for those assets in the appraisal report. We or our designated purchaser and you will then proceed to complete and close the purchase of the identified assets, and to prepare and execute purchase and sale documents customary for the assets being purchased, in a commercially reasonable time and manner. We and you will each pay one-half of the appraiser's fees and expenses. Our interest in the assets of the Store that are owned by you or your affiliates will constitute a lien thereon and may not be impaired or terminated by the sale or other transfer of any of those assets to a third party. Upon our or our designated purchaser's exercise of the purchase option and tender of payment, you agree to sell and deliver, and cause your affiliates to sell and deliver, the purchased assets to us or our designated purchaser, free and clear of all encumbrances, and to execute and deliver, and cause your affiliates to execute and deliver, to us or our designated purchaser a bill of sale therefor and such other documents as may be commercially reasonable and customary to effectuate the sale and transfer of the assets being purchased.

If we do not exercise our option to purchase under this subparagraph, you may sell or lease the Store premises to a third party purchaser, provided that your agreement with the purchaser includes a covenant by the purchaser, which is expressly enforceable by us as a third party beneficiary, pursuant to which the purchaser agrees, for a period of 2 years after the expiration or termination of this Agreement, not to use the premises for the operation of a store business that has a product line or method of operation similar to that employed by our companyowned or franchised stores. Your agreement with the purchaser also must state that the purchaser has no right to use the WATERS EDGE WINERY & BISTRO Trademarks in any manner.

C. <u>Claims</u>. You and your Principal Owners and guarantors may not assert any claim or cause of action against us relating to this Agreement or the WATERS EDGE WINERY & BISTRO Store or business after the shorter period of the applicable statute of limitations or one year following the effective date of termination of this Agreement; provided that where the one-year limitation of time is prohibited or invalid by or under any applicable law, then and in that event no suit or action may be commenced or maintained unless commenced within the applicable statute of limitations.

GENERAL PROVISIONS

- 15. The parties agree to the following provisions:
- A. <u>Severability</u>. Should one or more clauses of this Agreement be held void or unenforceable for any reason by any court of competent jurisdiction, such clause or clauses will be deemed to be severable and the rest of this Agreement shall remain in full force and effect. It is the intent and expectation of each of the parties that each provision of this Agreement will be

honored, carried out and enforced as written. Consequently, each of the parties agrees that any provision of this Agreement sought to be enforced in any proceeding must, at the election of the party seeking enforcement and notwithstanding the availability of an adequate remedy at law, be enforced by specific performance or any other equitable remedy.

- B. <u>Waiver/Integration</u>. No waiver by us of any breach by you, nor any delay or failure by us to enforce any provision of this Agreement, may be deemed to be a waiver of any other or subsequent breach or be deemed an estoppel to enforce our rights with respect to that or any other or subsequent breach. Subject to our rights to modify Appendices and/or standards and as otherwise provided herein, this Agreement may not be waived, altered or rescinded, in whole or in part, except by a writing signed by you and us. This Agreement together with the addenda and appendices hereto and the Application and Deposit Agreement constitute the sole agreement between the parties with respect to its subject matter and embodies all prior agreements and negotiations with respect to the Store or business. There are no representations or warranties of any kind, express or implied, except as contained herein and in the Application and Deposit Agreement. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing in this Agreement is intended to disclaim any representations made in the franchise disclosure document.
- C. <u>Notices</u>. Any notice, demand or communication provided for herein must be in writing and signed by the party serving the same and either delivered personally or by a reputable overnight service or deposited in the United States mail, service or postage prepaid, and if such notice is a notice of default or of termination, by registered or certified mail, and addressed as follows:
 - 1. If intended for us, addressed to Ken Lineberger, Waters Edge Wineries, Inc., 8560 Vineyard Avenue, Suite 408, Rancho Cucamonga, CA 91730;

2.	If	intended	for	you,	addressed	to	you	at
or at the Authorized Location;								

Any notices delivered to the party to whom it is addressed shall be deemed to have been given and received on the day it is so delivered at such address, provided that if such day is not a business day, then the notice shall be deemed to have been given and received on the first business day next following such day. Any notice mailed as aforesaid shall be deemed to have been given and received on the third business day following the date of its mailing, unless earlier confirmation of delivery is received. Any notice transmitted by facsimile or other form of recorded communication shall be deemed given and received on the first business day after its transmission. Any party may from time to time change its address set out above by notice to the other parties in accordance with this section.

- D. <u>Authority</u>. Any modification, consent, approval, authorization or waiver granted hereunder required to be effective by signature will be valid only if in writing executed by you or, if on behalf of us, in writing executed by our President or one of our authorized Vice Presidents.
- E. <u>References</u>. If the franchisee is 2 or more individuals, the individuals are jointly and severally liable, and references to you in this Agreement includes all of the individuals. Headings and captions contained herein are for convenience of reference and may not be taken into account in construing or interpreting this Agreement.

- F. <u>Guarantee</u>. All Principal Owners of a franchisee that is a corporation, partnership, limited liability company or partnership or other legal entity must execute the form of undertaking and guarantee at the end of this Agreement. Any person or entity that at any time after the date of this Agreement becomes a Principal Owner pursuant to the provisions of Paragraph 11 or otherwise must execute the form of undertaking and guarantee at the end of this Agreement.
- G. <u>Successors/Assigns</u>. Subject to the terms of Paragraph 11 hereof, this Agreement is binding upon and inures to the benefit of the administrators, executors, heirs, successors and assigns of the parties.
- H. <u>Interpretation of Rights and Obligations</u>. The following provisions apply to and govern the interpretation of this Agreement, the parties' rights under this Agreement, and the relationship between the parties:
 - 1. Our Rights. Whenever this Agreement provides that we have a certain right, that right is absolute and the parties intend that our exercise of that right will not be subject to any limitation or review. We have the right to operate, administrate, develop, and change the System in any manner that is not specifically precluded by the provisions of this Agreement, although this right does not modify the requirements of subparagraph 5.E and other express limitations set forth in this Agreement.
 - 2. Our Reasonable Business Judgment. Whenever we reserve discretion in a particular area or where we agree to exercise our rights reasonably or in good faith, we will satisfy our obligations whenever we exercise Reasonable Business Judgment in making our decision or exercising our rights. Our decisions or actions will be deemed to be the result of Reasonable Business Judgment, even if other reasonable or even arguably preferable alternatives are available, if our decision or action is intended, in whole or significant part, to promote or benefit the System generally even if the decision or action also promotes our financial or other individual interest. Examples of items that will promote or benefit the System include, without limitation, enhancing the value of the Trademarks, improving customer service and satisfaction, improving product quality, improving uniformity, enhancing or encouraging modernization and improving the competitive position of the System.
- I. Relationship of the Parties. You and we are independent contractors. Neither party is the agent, legal representative, partner, subsidiary, joint venturer or employee of the other. Neither party may obligate the other or represent any right to do so. In all public records, in relationships with other persons, and on letterhead and business forms, you will indicate your independent ownership of the Store and that you are a franchisee of Waters Edge Wineries, Inc. You must post a sign in a conspicuous location in the Store that will contain your name and state that the Store is independently owned and operated under a franchise agreement with us. Neither this Agreement nor our course of conduct is intended, nor may anything in this Agreement (nor our course of conduct) be construed, to state or imply that we are the employer of your employees. This Agreement does not reflect or create a fiduciary relationship or a relationship of special trust or confidence.
- J. <u>Force Majeure</u>. A party shall not be liable for delay in performance of an obligation to pay money to the other party, if the delay is due to terrorism, war, riot,, strike, or other labor trouble, utility failure, storm, fire, flood, earthquake, hurricane, explosion, embargo, blockade, insurrection, act of God or other similar event that is beyond the control of the parties.

In the event of such delay, the time for performance will be extended by a period of time equal to the cause of the delay, but no longer than 30 days.

- K. Adaptations and Variances. Complete and detailed uniformity under many varying conditions may not always be possible, practical, or in the best interest of the System. Accordingly, we have the right to vary the approved products and other standards, specifications, and requirements for any franchised store or franchisee based upon the customs or circumstances of a particular franchise or operating agreement, site or location, population density, business potential, trade area population, existing business practice, competitive circumstance or any other condition that we deem to be of importance to the operation of such store or store, franchisee's business or the System. We are not required to grant to you a like or other variation as a result of any variation from standard product lines, specifications or requirements granted to any other franchisee. You acknowledge that you are aware that our other franchisees operate under a number of different forms of agreement that were entered into at different times and that, consequently, the obligations and rights of the parties to other agreements may differ materially in certain instances from your rights and obligations under this Agreement.
- L. <u>Notice of Potential Profit</u>. We may from time to time make available to you goods, products and/or services for use in your Store on the sale of which we may make a profit. Further, we may from time to time receive consideration from suppliers and/or manufacturers in respect to sales of goods, products or services to you or in consideration of services rendered or rights licensed to such persons. You agree that we are entitled to said profits and/or consideration.
- M. <u>Effective Date</u>. We will designate the "Effective Date" of this Agreement in the space provided on the cover page. If no Effective Date is designated on the cover page, the Effective Date is the date when we sign this Agreement. However, as described in subparagraph 5.A, you do not have the right to, and may not, open and commence operation of a Store at the Authorized Location until we notify you that you have satisfied all of the preopening conditions set forth in this Agreement.

(SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS)

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Franchise Agreement as of the dates written below.

FRANCHISEE: (For an Entity)	FRANCHISEE: (For an Individual)
Date:	Date:
a, (Please type or print name and type of entity)	Name: (Please type or print)
By:	Date:
(Signature of person signing on behalf of entity)	Name:(Please type or print)
(Please type or print name of person signing on behalf of entity)	Signature:
Its: (Please type or print title of person signing on behalf of entity Witness: (Please type or print)	Witness:
Signature:	Signature:(Please type or print)
US:	(Flease type of print)
Waters Edge Wineries, Inc.	
Date:	
Signature:	
By:	
Its:	

PERSONAL GUARANTEE AND AGREEMENT TO BE BOUND PERSONALLY BY THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

In consideration of the execution of the Franchise Agreement by us, and for other good and valuable consideration, the undersigned, for themselves, their heirs, successors, and assigns, do jointly, individually and severally hereby become surety and guarantor for the payment of all amounts and the performance of the covenants, terms and conditions in the Franchise Agreement, to be paid, kept and performed by the franchisee.

Further, the undersigned, individually and jointly, hereby agree to be personally bound by each and every condition and term contained in the Franchise Agreement, including but not limited to the non-compete provisions in subparagraph 10.D, and agree that this Personal Guarantee will be construed as though the undersigned and each of them executed a Franchise Agreement containing the identical terms and conditions of this Franchise Agreement.

The undersigned waives: (1) notice of demand for payment of any indebtedness or nonperformance of any obligations hereby guaranteed; (2) protest and notice of default to any party respecting the indebtedness or nonperformance of any obligations hereby guaranteed; and (3) any right he/she may have to require that an action be brought against the franchisee or any other person as a condition of liability.

In addition, the undersigned consents and agrees that: (1) the undersigned's liability will not be contingent or conditioned upon our pursuit of any remedies against the franchisee or any other person; and (2) such liability will not be diminished, relieved or otherwise affected by franchisee's insolvency, bankruptcy or reorganization, the invalidity, illegality or unenforceability of all or any part of the Franchise Agreement, or the amendment or extension of the Franchise Agreement with or without notice to the undersigned.

It is further understood and agreed by the undersigned that the provisions, covenants and conditions of this Guarantee will inure to the benefit of our successors and assigns.

FRANCHISEE:					
PERSONA	L GUARANTORS:				
Individually				Individually	
Print Name			Print Name		
Address			Address		
City	State	Zip Code	City	State	Zip Code
Telephone				Telephone	

Individually			Individually		
Print Name			Print Name		
	Address			Address	
City	State	Zip Code	City	State	Zip Code
	Telephor	ne		Telephone	

OWNERSHIP AND MANAGEMENT ADDENDUM TO WATERS EDGE WINERY® & BISTRO FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

Principal Owner. You represent and warrant to us that the following person and entity, and only

	•	•	
NAME	3	HOME ADDRESS	PERCENTAGE OF INTEREST
2. following perso	General Manager. on, is your General M	You represent and warrant to us that lanager:	at the following person, and only the
NAME	3	<u>TITLE</u>	<u>ADDRESS</u>
3. in this Addendu		t immediately notify us in writing of ar st, prepare and sign a new Addendum c	•
4.	Effective Date. The	nis Addendum is effective as of this _	day of
Your Initials		Our Initials	

1.

the following person or entity, will be your Principal Owner:

Appendix A to the Franchise Agreement

Trademarks

You have the right to use the following Trademarks in accordance with the terms of the Franchise Agreement:

Principal Register of the United States Patent and Trademark Office:

Service Mark: WATERS EDGE WINERY

Registration No.: 4,471,672

Registration Date: January 21, 2014

Service Mark: WATERS EDGE WINERIES and design

Registration No.: 4,845,472

Registration Date: November 3, 2015

Service Mark: WATERS EDGE WINERY & BISTRO and design

Serial No.: 5,861,627

Registration Date: September 17, 2019

Service Mark: LIVE LIFE AT THE EDGE

Serial No.: 5,845,452 Registration Date: August 27, 2019

We may amend this Appendix A from time to time in order to make available additional Trademarks or to delete those Trademarks that become unavailable. You agree to use only those Trademarks that are then currently authorized.

The Trademarks must be used only in the manner that we specify. No deviations will be permitted.

Appendix B to the Franchise Agreement

The Designated Area

	The Franchise Agreement, subject to the terms and conditions of the rain which you will locate and operate the Store is defined as follows:
The Designated Area is considered	ed fixed as of the date of the Franchise Agreement.
YOU:	WE:
	WATERS EDGE WINERIES, INC.
By	By

Appendix C to the Franchise Agreement

Addendum to Lease

This	Addendum to Lease ("Addendum"), dated, 20, is entered into between("Lessor"), and("Lessee").
	RECITALS
A.	The parties have entered into a Lease Agreement, dated, 20, (the "Lease") for the premises located at (the "Premises").
В.	Lessee has agreed to use the Premises only for the operation a WATERS EDGE WINERY® store at the Premises pursuant to a Franchise Agreement (the "Franchise Agreement") with Waters Edge Wineries, Inc. ("Waters Edge Wineries") under the name WATERS EDGE WINERY® or other name Waters Edge Wineries designates (the "Store").

AGREEMENT

Lessor and Lessee agree as follows:

in this Addendum.

C.

1. <u>Remodeling and Decor.</u> Lessor agrees to allow Lessee to remodel, equip, paint and decorate the interior of the Premises and to display such proprietary marks and signs on the interior and exterior of the Premises pursuant to the Franchise Agreement and any successor Franchise Agreement.

The parties desire to amend the Lease in accordance with the terms and conditions contained

2. <u>Assignment</u>. Lessee has the right to assign all of its right, title and interest in the Lease to Waters Edge Wineries or its successors or designee at any time during the term of the Lease, including any extensions or renewals, without first obtaining Lessor's consent. No assignment will be effective, however, until Waters Edge Wineries or its successor or designee gives Lessor written notice of its acceptance of the assignment. If Waters Edge Wineries elects to assume the lease under this paragraph or unilaterally assumes the lease as provided for in subparagraphs 3(c) or 4(a), Lessor and Lessee agree that (i) Lessee will remain liable for the responsibilities and obligations, including amounts owed to Lessor, prior to the date of assignment and assumption, and (ii) Waters Edge Wineries will have the right to sublease the Premises to another licensee, provided the licensee agrees to operate the Store as a WATERS EDGE WINERY Store pursuant to a Franchise Agreement with Waters Edge Wineries. Waters Edge Wineries will be responsible for the lease obligations incurred after the effective date of the assignment.

3. <u>Default and Notice</u>.

(a) In the event there is a default or violation by Lessee under the terms of the Lease, Lessor agrees to give Lessee and Waters Edge Wineries written notice of such default or violation within a reasonable time after Lessor knows of its occurrence. Lessor agrees to provide Waters Edge Wineries the written notice of default as written and on the same day Lessor gives it to Lessee. Although Waters Edge Wineries is under no obligation to cure the default, Waters Edge Wineries will notify Lessor if it intends

to cure the default and unilaterally assume Lessee's interest in the lease as provided in Paragraph 3(c). Waters Edge Wineries will have an additional 15 days from the expiration of Lessee's cure period in which to cure the default or violation.

(b) All notices to Waters Edge Winery must be sent by registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, to the following address:

Waters Edge Wineries, Inc. 8560 Vineyeard Ave., Suite 408 Rancho Cucamonga, CA 91730 Attention: Ken Lineberger

Waters Edge Wineries may change its address for receiving notices by giving Lessor written notice of the new address. Lessor agrees to notify both Lessee and Waters Edge Wineries of any change in Lessor's mailing address to which notices should be sent.

(c) Upon Lessee's default and failure to cure a default under either the Lease or the Franchise Agreement, Waters Edge Wineries has the right (but not the obligation) to unilaterally assume Lessee's interest in the Lease in accordance with Paragraph 2.

4. <u>Termination or Expiration</u>.

- (a) Upon the expiration or termination of the Franchise Agreement, Waters Edge Wineries has the right (but not the obligation) to unilaterally assume Lessee's interest in the Lease in accordance with Paragraph 2.
- (b) Upon the expiration or termination of the Lease, if Waters Edge Wineries does not assume Lessee's interest in the Lease, Lessor agrees to cooperate and allow Waters Edge Wineries to enter the Premises, without cost and without being guilty of trespass and without incurring any liability to Lessor, to remove all signs, awnings, and all other items identifying the Premises as a WATERS EDGE WINERY Store and to make such other modifications as are reasonably necessary to protect the marks and system, and to distinguish the Premises from WATERS EDGE WINERY stores. In the event Waters Edge Wineries exercises its option to purchase assets of Lessee, Lessor agrees to permit Waters Edge Wineries to remove all such assets being purchased by Waters Edge Wineries.

5. <u>Consideration; No Liability.</u>

- (a) Lessor acknowledges that the provisions of this Addendum are required pursuant to the Franchise Agreement and that Lessee may not lease the Premises without this Addendum.
- (b) Lessor acknowledges that Lessee is not an agent or employee of Waters Edge Wineries and Lessee has no authority or power to act for, or to create any liability on behalf of, or to in any way bind Waters Edge Wineries or any affiliate of Waters Edge Wineries and that Lessor has entered into this Addendum with full understanding that it creates no duties, obligations or liabilities of or against Waters Edge Wineries.
- (c) Nothing contained in this Addendum makes Waters Edge Wineries or its affiliates a party or guarantor to the Lease, and does not create any liability or obligation of Waters Edge Wineries.

- 6. <u>Modification</u>. No amendment or variation of the terms of this Addendum is valid unless made in writing and signed by the parties and the parties have obtained Waters Edge Wineries' written consent.
- 7. <u>Reaffirmation of Lease</u>. Except as amended or modified in this Addendum, all of the terms, conditions and covenants of the Lease remain in full force and effect.
- 8. <u>Miscellaneous</u>.
 - (a) Waters Edge Wineries is a third party beneficiary of this Addendum.
 - (b) References to the Lease and to the Franchise Agreement include all amendments, addenda, extensions and renewals to the documents.
 - (c) References to Lessor, Lessee and Waters Edge Wineries include the successors and assigns of each of the parties.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Addendum as of the date written above.

LESSEE:		
Ву:		
Title:		
LESSOR:		
By:		
Title:		

Appendix D to the Franchise Agreement

Assignment of Telephone Numbers, Websites, Social Media Sites and Domain Names

	Date:
This assignment is effective as of the o	date of termination of the Franchise Agreement entered into
between Waters Edge Wineries, Inc. ("us") and	("you"). You hereby
irrevocably assign to us or our designee the tele	lephone number or numbers, listings issued to you, websites,
domain names and social media pages and sites	s applicable to your Store with respect to each and all of your
WATERS EDGE WINERY® businesses. This assignments	gnment is for collateral purposes only and we have no liability
or obligation of any kind whatsoever arising from	om this assignment.
We hereby are authorized and empowere	red upon termination or expiration of the Franchise Agreement
and without any further notice to you to notify th	he telephone company, domain registrar, social media operator
as well as any other company that publishes telep	phone directories, to transfer the telephone numbers, websites,
social media sites and domain names to us or su	uch other person or entity as we designate. You hereby grant
to us an irrevocable power of attorney and appoin	int us as your attorney-in-fact to take any necessary actions to
assign the telephone numbers, websites, social	media sites and domain names, including but not limited to,
executing any forms that the telephone companie	ies, social media operators or domain registrars may require to
effectuate the assignment. This assignment is als	so for the benefit of the telephone companies, domain registrars
and social media site operators and the telepho	one companies, domain registrars and social media operators,
may accept this assignment and our instructions	as conclusive evidence of our rights in the telephone numbers,
websites, social media sites and domain names	s and our authority to direct the amendment, termination or
transfer of the telephone numbers, websites, so	ocial media sites and domain names, as if they had originally
been issued to us. In addition, you agree to hold	d the telephone companies, domain registrars and social media
operator companies harmless from any and all of	claims against them arising out of any actions or instructions
by Waters Edge Wineries regarding the telephor	ne numbers, websites, social media sites and domain names.
YOU:	
Ву	By
Its	Its
AND	
WATERS EDGE WINERIES, INC.	
By	_
Its	<u>_</u>

EXHIBIT E ADDENDUM TO FRANCHISE AGREEMENT (SBA LOAN)

WATERS EDGE WINERIES, INC. SBA ADDENDUM TO FRANCHISE AGEEMENT¹

THIS ADDENDUM ("Addendum") is made and entered into on _	, 20, by and between WATERS
EDGE WINERIES, INC. ("Franchisor"), located at 8560 Vineyard	Avenue, Suite 408, Rancho Cucamonga, CA 91730,
and("Fra	nchisee"), located at
·	
Franchisor and Franchisee entered into a Franchise Agreement on any amendments, the "Franchise Agreement"). Franchisee is applyin provided with the assistance of the U.S. Small Business Administr Addendum as a condition for obtaining the SBA-assisted financing.	ng for financing(s) from a lender in which funding is

In consideration of the mutual promises below and for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which the parties acknowledge, the parties agree that notwithstanding any other terms in the Franchise Agreement or any other document Franchisor required Franchisee to sign:

<u>Change of Ownership</u>. If Franchisee is proposing to transfer a partial interest in Franchisee and Franchisor has an option to purchase or a right of first refusal with respect to that partial interest, Franchisor may exercise such option or right only if the proposed transferee is not a current owner or family member of a current owner of Franchisee. If the Franchisor's consent is required for any transfer (full or partial), Franchisor will not unreasonably withhold such consent. In the event of an approved transfer of the franchise interest or any portion thereof, the transferor will not be liable for the actions of the transferee franchisee.

<u>Forced Sale of Assets</u>. If Franchisor has the option to purchase the business personal assets upon default or termination of the Franchise Agreement and the parties are unable to agree on the value of the assets, the value will be determined by an appraiser chosen by both parties. If the Franchisee owns the real estate where the franchise location is operating, Franchisee will not be required to sell the real estate upon default or termination, but Franchisee may be required to lease the real estate for the remainder of the franchise term (excluding additional renewals) for fair market value.

<u>Covenants</u>. If the Franchisee owns the real estate where the franchise location is operating, Franchisor has not and will not during the term of the Franchise Agreement record against the real estate any restrictions on the use of the property, including any restrictive covenants, branding covenants or environmental use restrictions. If any such restrictions are currently recorded against the Franchisee's real estate, they must be removed in order for the Franchisee to obtain SBA-assisted financing.

Employment. Franchisor will not directly control (hire, fire or schedule) Franchisee's employees. For temporary personnel franchises, the temporary employees will be employed by the Franchisee not the Franchisor.

As to the referenced Franchise Agreement, this Addendum automatically terminates when SBA no longer has any interest in any SBA-assisted financing provided to the Franchisee.

Except as amended by this Addendum, the Franchise Agreement remains in full force and effect according to its terms.

Franchisor and Franchisee acknowledge that submission of false information to SBA, or the withholding of material information from SBA, can result in criminal prosecution under 18 U.S.C. 1001 and other provisions, including liability for treble damages under the False Claims Act, 31 U.S.C. § § 3729 – 3733.

(Signature Page Follows)

¹ While relationships established under license, jobber, dealer and similar agreements are not generally described as "franchise" relationships, if such relationships meet the Federal Trade Commission's (FTC's) definition of a franchise (see 16 CFR § 436), they are treated by SBA as franchise relationships for franchise affiliation determinations per 13 CFR § 121.301(f)(5).

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OF FRANCHISOR:	AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OF FRANCHISEE:
WATERS EDGE WINERIES, INC., A California corporation	(IF FRANCHISEE IS A CORPORATION, LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY, OR PARTNERSHIP):
By:	[Print Name of Franchisee Entity]
Title:	By:
	OR (IF FRANCHISEE IS AN INDIVIDUAL):
	Print Name
	Signature
	Print Name
	Signature

Note to Parties: This Addendum only addresses "affiliation" between the Franchisor and Franchisee. Additionally, the applicant Franchisee and the franchise system must meet all SBA eligibility requirements.

EXHIBIT F

LIST OF EXISTING AND TERMINATED FRANCHISES

WATERS EDGE WINERIES, INC. FULL FRANCHISEES AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2022

CALIFORNIA

Mark Mitzenmacher
Waters Edge Winery & Bistro Long Beach
149 Linden Avenue, Suite C
Long Beach, CA 90802
mark@watersedgewineries.com
(909) 322-6816

ILLINOIS

Mike Hayes Waters Edge Winery & Bistro 1061 East Morton Avenue Jacksonville, IL 62650 mhayes@tampabay.rr.com

Michael Vandy Waters Edge Winery & Bistro Peoria, IL 4450 N. Prospect Rd Peoria Heights, Illinois 61616 309-682-9463 michael@wewph.com

KENTUCKY

Charlie Watkins Waters Edge Winery & Bistro 114 S Mulberry St, Elizabethtown, KY 42701 cwatkins@wineryetown.com

MONTANA

Angela Zuba Waters Edge Winery & Bistro 2593 Highway 2 East, 8 Kalispell, MT 59901 angela@wewinerykalispell.com

OKLAHOMA

Waters Edge Winery Moore Mara English 200 SE 19th Street Moore, OK 73160 (405) 551-1112

Michelle Dean
Waters Edge Winery & Bistro Broken Arrow
116 S. Main Street
Broken Arrow, OK 74012
michelle@wewba.com
(918) 286-0086

Michelle Dean
Waters Edge Winery & Bistro Broken Arrow #2
3300 South Elm Place
Broken Arrow, OK 74011
michelle@wewba.com
(918) 286-0086

TEXAS

Phelicia Colvin, Sheri Lawal Price and Tamesha Hampton Waters Edge Winery 9018 Sienna Crossing Drive, Suite 100 Missouri City, Texas 77459 winevibesllc@gmail.com

Candice Elliott Waters Edge Winery & Bistro 4828 Waterview Town Center Dr Ste. 700 Richmond, TX 77407 (346) 843-2320 candice@wewrichmondtx.com

IF YOU BUY THIS FRANCHISE, YOUR CONTACT INFORMATION MAY BE DISCLOSED TO OTHER BUYERS WHEN YOU LEAVE THE FRANCHISE SYSTEM.

WATERS EDGE WINERIES, INC. PRIVATE BRANDED LOCATIONS AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2022

OHIO

Gillig Custom Winery 1720 Northridge Road Findley, OH 45840 nikki@gilligwinery.com

Urban Pine Winery & Bistro 3415 Briarfield Blvd Maumee, Ohio (419)-773-4088 jen@urbanpinewinery.com

TEXAS

Sable Gate Winery 2600 Travis Street, Suite 104 Houston, Texas 77006 szilvia@sablegatewinery.com (713) 360-7113

Kevin & Teresa Miller Texas Sun Winery 3415 North Loop 250 West, Suite 305 Midland, Texas 79707 kevin@texassunwinery.com

IF YOU BUY THIS FRANCHISE, YOUR CONTACT INFORMATION MAY BE DISCLOSED TO OTHER BUYERS WHEN YOU LEAVE THE FRANCHISE SYSTEM.

WATERS EDGE WINERIES, INC. FRANCHISEES WHO WERE TERMINATED CANCELED OR NOT RENEWED, OR WHO OTHERWISE CEASED DOING BUSINESS IN THE YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2022

CALIFORNIA

Rancho Capistrano Winery 124 Avenida Del Mar San Clemente, CA 92672 (949) 481-6682

Rancho Capistrano Winery 26755 Verdugo St., #100 San Juan Capistrano, CA 92675 (949) 284-0657

TRANSFERS AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2022

NONE.

FRANCHISE AGREEMENTS SIGNED BUT OUTLET NOT OPENED AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2022

ARIZONA

Todd Wiley Waters Edge Winery & Bistro Havasu City, AZ twiley46@gmail.com

CALIFORNIA

Michael Friesen & Stacy Palmer Waters Edge Winery El Segundo, CA Mfrieson95@gmail.com

Ken Bodek and Janet Canon Culver City, CA bodekkc@gmail.com

FLORIDA

Sean Castelluci Waters Edge Winery & Bistro Sarasota, FL sdcastellucci@gmail.com

Mike Hayes Location TBD mhayes@tampabay.rr.com

OHIO

Emily Fox Waters Edge Winery & Bistro Medina, OH emilyk fox@yahoo.com PENNSYLVANIA

Waters Edge Winery Doylestown Eric Landolfi 10 North Main Street Doylestown, PA 18901 elandolfi72@gmail.com

VIRGINIA

Waters Edge Winery & Bistro
Jason Witt
6464 Hampton Blvd
Norfolk, Virginia 23508
info@wewnorfolk.com

IF YOU BUY THIS FRANCHISE, YOUR CONTACT INFORMATION MAY BE DISCLOSED TO OTHER BUYERS WHEN YOU LEAVE THE FRANCHISE SYSTEM.

WATERS EDGE WINERIES, INC. COMPANY OWNED I OCATIONS AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2022

	COMPANY OW	NED LOCATIONS	AS OF DECEMBE	R 31, 2022
None.				

EXHIBIT G

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF WATERS EDGE WINERIES, INC., AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2022, 2021, and 2020

WATERS EDGE WINERIES, INC.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2022

(AUDITED)

WATERS EDGE WINERIES, INC. TABLE OF CONTENTS December 31, 2022 and 2021

	PAGE
Independent Auditor's Report	1,2
Balance Sheets	3,4
Statements of Income	5
Statements of Stockholder's Equity	6
Statements of Cash Flows	7
Notes to the Financial Statements	8-15



PARTNERS

Richard A. Goldberg, CPA Wes L. Salem, CPA Ma. Lolita Cremat, CPA Michael Selamet Kwee, CPA





OFFICE MANAGER
Tanya Davis

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Board of Directors and Stockholder of Waters Edge Wineries, Inc.

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Waters Edge Wineries, Inc. (a California corporation), which comprise the balance sheets as of December 31, 2022 and 2021, and the related statements of income, stockholder's equity, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Waters Edge Wineries, Inc. as of December 31, 2022 and 2021, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of Waters Edge Wineries, Inc. and to meet our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Waters Edge Wineries, Inc.'s ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the financial statements are available to be issued.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors' report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgement made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.



In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, we:

- Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
 appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Waters
 Edge Wineries, Inc.'s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.
- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements.
- Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Waters Edge Wineries, Inc.'s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control related matters that we identified during the audit.

Corlet, Wassin, Hobby, Benton & Doba, LCP

CASHUK, WISEMAN, GOLDBERG, BIRNBAUM AND SALEM, LLP

San Diego, California April 10, 2023

WATERS EDGE WINERIES, INC. BALANCE SHEETS December 31, 2022 and 2021

ASSETS

		2022)	2021
CURRENT ASSETS				
Cash and Cash Equivalents (Note A)	\$	655,443	\$	211,247
Accounts Receivable (Note A)		15,222		210,191
Due From Related Entity (Note F)		17,754		118,720
Employee Advance		33,500		5,091
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS		721,919		545,249
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT				
Property and Equipment, net of accumulated depreciation				
of \$78,157 and \$40,654 in 2022 and 2021 (Notes A & C)	~	245,324		35,438
TOTAL ASSETS	\$	967,243		580,687



WATERS EDGE WINERIES, INC. BALANCE SHEETS December 31, 2022 and 2021

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDER'S EQUITY

		2022	7	2021
CURRENT LIABILITIES				
Accrued Expenses	\$	41,092	\$	39,224
Income Tax Payable (Note B)		8,858		-
Franchise Deposits		22,000		20,000
Current Portion of Long-Term Debt (Note H)		38,089		36,852
Line of Credits (Note G)		<u>183</u>		10,530
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES		110,039		106,606
LONG-TERM LIABILITIES				
Due To Stockholder (Note F)		2,485		-
Long-Term Debt, net of current portion (Note H)		563,060	\$ 	514,648
TOTAL LONG TERM LIABILITIES		565,545		514,648
TOTAL LIABILITIES		675,584		621,254
STOCKHOLDER'S EQUITY				
Common Stock - 20,000 Shares Authorized,				
200 Issued and Outstanding		200		200
Additional Paid in Capital		 5		356,140
Retained Earnings (Accumulated Deficit)	-	291,459	<u> </u>	(396,907)
TOTAL STOCKHOLDER'S EQUITY (DEFICIT)	2	291,659	-	(40,567)
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDER'S EQUITY	_\$	967,243	\$	580,687



WATERS EDGE WINERIES, INC. STATEMENTS OF INCOME Years Ended December 31, 2022 and 2021

	8 	2022		2021
REVENUES				
Sales (Note A)	\$	140,606	\$	361,687
Franchise Royalties (Note A)		372,228		305,473
Franchise Sales (Notes A)		90,000	2	77,000
TOTAL REVENUES		602,834		744,160
COST OF GOODS SOLD		282,574		279,121
GROSS PROFIT		320,260		465,039
EXPENSES				
Advertising (Note A)		137,101		118,023
Bad Debt (Note A)		919		-
Depreciation		37,503		10,218
General & Administrative		274,496		85,164
Insurance		35,095		27,082
Interest		46,961		45,899
Professional Fees-Legal		86,179		85,162
Professional Fees-Others		65,011		61,222
Personnel Expenses		212,002		167,520
Leases (Notes A & D)		14,194		39,176
TOTAL EXPENSES	-	909,461		639,466
INCOME (LOSS) FROM OPERATION		(589,201)		(174,427)
OTHER INCOME (EXPENSES)				
Gain Contingency-PPP Loan Forgiveness (Note A)		8,318		199,525
Interest Income		3,189		-
Settlement Income (Note J)		1,276,518		-
Gain From Disposal of Fixed Assets				11,500
NET OTHER INCOME (EXPENSES)		1,288,025		211,025
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE TAXES		698,824		36,598
Income Tax Expense (Note B)		10,458		800
NET INCOME	\$	688,366	\$	35,798



WATERS EDGE WINERIES, INC. STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDER'S EQUITY Years Ended December 31, 2022 and 2021

	Commo	n Stoc	<u>k</u>	Additional		Additional		Additional		Additional		Additional		Additional		Additional		Additional		litional			
	Shares	An	nount		aid In Capital		ined Earnings nulated Deficit)		Total														
Beginning Balance, January 1, 2021	200	\$	200		131,336	\$	(432,705)	\$	(301,169)														
Contributions	•		-		224,804		-		224,804														
Distributions	-		-		-		-		-														
Net Income (Loss)		-		12		94 <u></u>	35,798	2	35,798														
Ending Balance, December 31, 2021	200	\$	200	\$	356,140	\$	(396,907)	\$	(40,567)														
Contributions	•				-		-																
Distributions	-		# :	((356,140)		-		(356,140)														
Net Income (Loss)	-						688,366	_	688,366														
Ending Balance, December 31, 2022	200	\$	200	\$		\$	291,459	\$	291,659														

WATERS EDGE WINERIES, INC. STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS Years Ended December 31, 2022 and 2021

		2022	In-	2021
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES				
Net Income	\$	688,366	\$	35,798
Adjustments to Reconcile Net Income to Net Cash	Φ	000,500	Φ	33,798
Provided(Used) by Operating Activities:				
Depreciation		37,503		10,218
Gain From Disposal of Fixed Assets		-		(11,500)
Cash Provided(Used) by Changes in				(11,200)
Operating Assets and Liabilities:				
Accounts Receivable		194,969		6,435
Inventory		-		180,240
Franchise Deposits		2,000		20,000
Due from Related Party		100,966		(118,720)
Accrued Expenses		1,869		(82,344)
Employee Advances		(28,409)		(1,591)
Due from Stockholder		2,485		(319,383)
Note Payable-Current Portion		1,237		23,948
Lines of Credit	4	(10,530)	·	(267,109)
CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) OPERATING ACTIVITIES		999,314		(524,008)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES				
Purchases of Property & Equipment		(247,390)		ν=
FINANCING ACTIVITIES				
Proceeds (Distributions) from Additional-Paid-in-Capital		(356, 140)		224,804
Proceeds from Long-Term Debt		62,115		495,755
Principal Payments of Long-Term Debt		(13,703)		(5,641)
CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) FINANCING ACTIVITIES	-	(307,728)	3-	714,918
INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS		444,196		190,910
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year	÷	211,247	-	20,337
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR	\$	655,443	\$	211,247
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION:				
Income Taxes Paid Interest Expense	\$	1,600 46,961	\$	800 45,899



NOTE A-SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

- 1. Waters Edge Wineries, Inc. (the Company) was incorporated under the laws of the State of California on May 15, 2012. The Company has adopted a December 31 calendar year end for reporting requirements.
- 2. The Company is a franchisor that provides a unique franchise system to franchisees. The Company sells franchise licenses to business owners in certain states. The license provides the franchisee the right to the Company's trademarks, training, processes, software and supply chain to help them operate an independent winery business. The Company collects monthly royalty and support fees from the franchisees. The Company and its affiliate also sell wine and wine related products.
- 3. Revenue Recognition-The Company accounts for revenue using the accounting method prescribed under Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) Topics 606, "Revenue from Contracts with Customers" which provides a five-step analysis of contracts to determine when and how revenue is recognized and replaces most existing revenue recognition guidance in the United States of America generally accepted accounting principles. The ASU also required expanded disclosures relating to the nature, amount, timing, and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from contracts with customers. The Company adopted the new standard effective January 1, 2019.

Under the new guidance, the Company determines if the pre-opening activities contain any distinct goods or services. A good or service that is promised to a franchisee is distinct if both of the following criteria are met: (a) the franchisee can benefit from the good or service either on its own or together with other resources that are readily available to the franchisee, and (b) the Company's promise to transfer the good or service to the franchisee is separately identifiable from other promises in the contract. The transaction is then allocated to distinct performance obligations based on standard selling prices.

In January 2021, FASB issued Accounting Standards Update No. 2021-02, "Franchisor-Revenue from Contracts with Customers", creating a practical expedient that simplifies the identification of performance obligations for private company franchisors for certain pre-opening services. The Company made the election to use this practical expedient to recognize the pre-opening services as a single performance obligation.

Pre-opening services are defined as follows:

- a. Assistance in the selection of a site
- b. Assistance in obtaining facilities and preparing the facilities for their intended use, including related financing, architectural, and lease negotiation
- c. Training of the franchisee's personnel or the franchisee
- d. Preparation and distribution of manuals and similar materials concerning operations, administration, and record keeping

NOTE A-SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES-CON'T:

Revenue Recognition-Con't

- e. Bookkeeping, information technology, and advisory services, including setting u the franchisee's records and advising the franchisee about income, real estate, and other taxes or about regulations affecting the franchisee's business
- f. Inspection, testing, and other quality control programs

As provided by the practical expedient, pre-opening services provided by the Company to a franchisee are accounted for as a single performance obligation, distinct from franchisee license. Accordingly, initial fees allocated to pre-opening services are recognized when those services are performed consistent with current GAAP. There were no deferred revenue.

Revenue is recognized when all material services or conditions relating to the sale have been substantially, performed or satisfied by the company (usually upon commencement of franchisee obtaining capacity of earning fees). Fees received before this time are deferred and included in deferred franchise fees. There were no deferred franchise fees as of December 31, 2022 and 2021.

Franchise royalties are recognized when earned and are stated net of all related franchisee costs. The royalty and support fees are average 5% of the franchisees' gross sales and \$350 per month. Revenue from sale of wine and wine related products are recognized upon completion of sale.

In 2021, the Company received a \$41,714 loan from a bank under the Paycheck Protection Program (PPP) established by the Coronavirus Aid Relief, and Economic Security (CARES) Act. The loan was to be forgiven to the extent loan proceeds were used for eligible expenses such as payroll and other expenses described in the CARES Act. The Company used the loan proceeds for qualifying expenses and the entire loan was forgiven in 2021.

The Company also received grants from state and various other sources while under shut down ordinance from local governance, including Employee Retention Tax Credits. These amounted to \$8,318 and \$157,811 in 2022 and 2021, respectively.

- 4. <u>Cash & Cash Equivalents</u> for purposes of the statement of cash flows, include cash on hand, cash in checking and savings accounts with banks. All short-term debt securities with a maturity of three months or less are considered cash equivalents.
- 5. Accounts Receivable-consist of fees related to services rendered and sales completed in the current year but were not received as of the balance sheet date. Management determines an allowance for doubtful accounts based on specific identification of uncollectible receivables and historical collection rates. Uncollectible receivables are written off after all attempts at collection are exhausted. Bad debt in the amount of \$919 was recorded in 2022. Management has determined that receivables of \$15,222 at December 31, 2022 are collectible.



NOTE A-SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES-CON'T:

- Reclassifications-Certain accounts in the prior year financial statements have been reclassified for 6. comparative purposes to conform to the presentation in the current year financial statements.
- 7. Use of Estimates-The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from the estimates.
- Inventory-The Company shifted its wine selling operations to its affiliate company and focused on 8. operating the franchise operation since 2021. There was no inventory in 2022.
- 9. Leases-Effective January 1, 2022, the Company adopted the requirements of Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") Accounting Standards Update ("ASU") 2016-02, "Leases (Topic 842)" and all related amendments. The Company elected to apply the practical expedient of forgoing the restatement of comparable periods. Consequently, the 2021 financial statements and disclosures do not reflect the effects of implementing the new lease standard. In addition, the Company elected the practical expedients permitted under transition guidance to not reassess leases entered into prior to adoption. As permitted under ASC 842, the Company made an accounting policy election to exempt leases with an initial term of 12 months or less from balance sheet recognition. Instead, short-term leases are expensed over the lease term with no impact to the balance sheet..
- Concentration of Cash and Credit Risk-The Company maintains corporate cash balances which, at times, may exceed federally insured limits. Management believes it is not exposed to any significant risk on its cash balances. At year end, the Company has no uninsured cash balances.
- Property and Equipment are stated at cost. The straight-line method of depreciation is followed for financial reporting purposes. Depreciation is provided in amounts sufficient to relate the cost of assets to operations over their estimated service lives or the lives of the respective leases, whichever is shorter. As the Company's accounting policy, maintenance and repairs are charged to expense. Major renewals and improvements are capitalized. Gains and losses on dispositions are credited or charged to earnings as incurred.

Depreciation is provided at rates based on the following estimated useful lives:

Furniture and Equipment

5-7 years

Vehicles

5 years

For federal income tax purposes, depreciation is computed using the accelerated cost recovery system and the modified accelerated cost recovery system.



NOTE A-SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES-CON'T:

12. <u>Fair Value of Financial Instruments</u>-Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) Topic 820, "*Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures*", defines fair value as the price that would be received upon sale of an asset or paid upon transfer of a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date and in the principal or most advantageous market for that asset or liability.

The fair value should be calculated based on assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability, not on assumptions specific to the entity.

<u>Cash and Cash Equivalents, Accounts Receivable, Other Receivables, Accrued Liabilities and Other Payables</u>-The carrying amounts reported in the balance sheets for these items are a reasonable estimate of fair value.

<u>Loan Payable and Long-Term Debt</u>-The fair value of loan payable and long-term debt is estimated based on the present value of cash flows required under the loan and debt, using discounting rate based on interest rates for similar debt instruments. The carrying amounts approximated fair value.

13. Advertising Costs are expensed in the year incurred. The Company incurred \$137,101 and \$118,023 in advertising expense in the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

NOTE B-INCOME TAXES:

The Company has elected to be taxed under the provisions of Subchapter S of the Internal Revenue Code. Under those provisions, the Company does not pay federal corporate income taxes on its taxable income. Instead, the stockholders are liable for individual federal income taxes on their respective shares of the Company's taxable income in their individual income tax returns. The State of California imposes a tax of 1 ½% of taxable income or \$800, whichever is greater.

Provision for state income tax for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021 is as follows:

	2022	2021
California	\$ \$10,458	\$ 800

The income allocable to each stockholder is subject to examination by federal and state taxing authorities. In the event of an examination of the income tax returns, the tax liability of the stockholders could be changed if an adjustment in the income is ultimately determined by the taxing authorities. Certain transactions of the Company may be subject to accounting methods for income tax purposes that differ significantly from the accounting methods used in preparing the financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. Accordingly, the taxable income of the Company reported for income tax purposes may differ from net income in these financial statements.

NOTE B-INCOME TAXES-CONT:

The Company has adopted FASB ASC 740-10 regarding accounting for uncertain income tax positions. Management is not aware of any tax positions that are more likely than not to change in the next 12 months, or that would sustain an examination by applicable taxing authorities.

The Company recognizes penalties and interest arising from uncertain tax positions as incurred in the statement of income and comprehensive income, which are none for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021. The federal and state income tax returns of the Company are subject to examination by the IRS and state taxing authorities, generally for three years after they are filed.

NOTE C-PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT:

At December 31, 2022 and 2021, the company had the following property and equipment:

	2022	2021
Furniture and Equipment Vehicle	\$ 6,983 316,499	\$ - 76,092
Total Property and Equipment	323,482	76,092
Accumulated Depreciation	(78,157)	(40,654)
Net Property and Equipment	\$ 245,324	\$ 35,438

NOTE D-LEASES:

The Company leases office facilities on a month-to-month basis. Total rent expense for the year ended December 31, 2022 was \$14,194. The office lease is classified as short-term operating based on its terms.

NOTE E- STOCKHOLDER:

Ken Lineberger is the sole stockholder of the company with 200 shares of stock owned for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021.

NOTE F-RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:

The Company has a note receivable from BEKH Cellar, a related party company, in the amount of \$17,754 as of December 31, 2022. This loan is unsecured, non-interest bearing and due on demand.

The Company also has note payable due to its sole stockholder in the amount of \$2,485. This loan is unsecured, non-interest bearing and due on demand.



NOTE G-FINANCING ARRANGEMENT:

The Company has revolving lines of credit with American Express with borrowing limits of \$50,000. The credit lines bear interest at 10%. The amount outstanding on the line of credit was \$- as of December 31, 2022.

NOTE H-LONG TERM DEBT:

Long-Term Debts as of December 31, 2022 and 2021 consisted of the following:

		2022		2021
Note Payable to Auto Center. Secured by vehicle, matures in December 2024, monthly payment of \$1,274 including interest at 4.74% annually.	\$	33,582	\$	46,850
Note Payable to Jeep Chrysler. Secured by vehicle, matures in December 2027, monthly payment of \$1,241 including interest at 7.24% annually.		62,115		-0-
Unsecured SBA Loan, matures in August 2051, with Interest rate of 3.75%. Monthly				
payment of \$2,496 will start in August 2022.		505,452		504,650
		601,149		550,500
Less: Current Portion		38,089	-	36,852
Net Long-Term Debt	_\$_	563,060	\$_	514,649

Maturities of financing obligations are as follows:

Year Ending December 31	Amount	
2023	\$ 38,089	
2024	40,794	
2025	29,067	
Thereafter	493,199	
TOTAL	\$ 601,149	



NOTE I-FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS:

FASB ASC Topic 820 specifies a hierarchy of valuation techniques based upon whether the inputs to those valuation techniques reflect assumptions other market participants would use based upon market data obtained from independent sources (observable inputs).

In accordance with FASB ASC Topic 820, the following summarizes the fair value hierarchy:

<u>Level 1 Inputs</u>—Unadjusted quoted market prices for identical assets and liabilities in an active market that the Company has the ability to access.

<u>Level 2 Inputs</u>—Inputs other than the quoted prices in active markets that are observable either directly or indirectly.

<u>Level 3 Inputs</u>—Inputs based on prices or valuation techniques that are both unobservable and significant to the overall fair value measurements.

FASB ASC Topic 820 requires the use of observable market data, when available, in making fair value measurements. When inputs used to measure fair value fall within different levels of the hierarchy, the level within which the fair value measurement is categorized is based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurements. Valuation techniques used need to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs.

As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, there were no assets and liabilities measured at fair value.

NOTE J-CLAIMS AND LITIGATIONS:

In 2017, the Company brought a litigation against one of its franchisee, Franson Family Wineries, LLC ("Franson") and its owner for breach of contract, breach of implied contract, declaratory relief, injunctive relief and intentional interference with prospective economic advantage arising from Franson's breach of the franchise agreement, failing to pay fees, producing wine off premises, use of unauthorized products, failing to provide monthly reports and for interfering with the Company's relation with other franchisees. Franson counter-sued the Company on February 7, 2018 for fraud, rescission and unfair competition. The trial was held in September 2021.

The Company prevailed and received this legal settlement in March 2022 in the amount of \$1,224,103 (gross awarded settlement of \$1,936,518 less legal and commission of \$712,415).

NOTE K-SUBSEQUENT EVENT:

In preparing these financial statements, the Company has evaluated events and transactions for potential recognition or disclosure through April 10, 2023, the date the financial statements were available to be issued. There were no other subsequent events requiring adjustments to and disclosures in the financial statements as of and for the year ended December 31, 2022.

NOTE L-SIGNIFICANT EVENTS:

On March 11, 2020, the World Health Organization ("WHO") declared the coronavirus (COVID 19), a global pandemic and public health emergency. The WHO has recommended containment and mitigation measures worldwide and domestically, self-isolation and shelter-in-place requirements have been put in place. The pandemic has continued subsequent to December 31, 2022.

At this point, the Company cannot reasonably estimate the length or severity of this pandemic, or the extent to which this disruption may impact the Company's financial statements and future results of operations. The Company will continue to monitor and evaluate the nature and extent of the impact on its ongoing business and future results of operations, financial condition, and liquidity.

WATERS EDGE WINERIES, INC.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2021

(AUDITED)



WATERS EDGE WINERIES, INC. TABLE OF CONTENTS December 31, 2021 and 2020

	PAGE
Independent Auditor's Report	1,2
Balance Sheets	3,4
Statements of Income	5
Statements of Stockholder's Equity	6
Statements of Cash Flows	7
Notes to the Financial Statements	8-15



PARTNERS

Richard A. Goldberg, CPA Wes L. Salem, CPA Ma. Lolita Cremat, CPA Michael Selamet Kwee, CPA





OFFICE MANAGER
Tanya Davis

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Board of Directors and Stockholder of Waters Edge Wineries, Inc.

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Waters Edge Wineries, Inc. (a California corporation), which comprise the balance sheets as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, and the related statements of income, stockholder's equity, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Waters Edge Wineries, Inc. as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of Waters Edge Wineries, Inc. and to meet our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Waters Edge Wineries, Inc.'s ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the financial statements are available to be issued.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors' report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgement made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.



In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, we:

- Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Waters Edge Wineries, Inc.'s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.
- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements.
- Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Waters Edge Wineries, Inc.'s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control related matters that we identified during the audit.

Colle, Wesenin, Hobbe, Benteum & Doba, LCP

CASHUK, WISEMAN, GOLDBERG, BIRNBAUM AND SALEM, LLP

San Diego, California March 14, 2022

WATERS EDGE WINERIES, INC. BALANCE SHEETS December 31, 2021 and 2020

ASSETS

	2021		 2020
CURRENT ASSETS			
Cash and Cash Equivalents (Note A)	\$	211,247	\$ 20,337
Accounts Receivable (Note A)		210,191	216,626
Inventory (Note A)		==	180,240
Due From Related Entity (Note F)		118,720	= :
Employee Advance		5,091	 3,500
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS		545,249	420,703
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT			
Property and Equipment, net of accumulated depreciation			
of \$40,654 and \$117,062 in 2021 and 2020 (Notes A & C)	*	35,438	 57,318
TOTAL ASSETS		580,687	 478,021



WATERS EDGE WINERIES, INC. BALANCE SHEETS December 31, 2021 and 2020

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDER'S EQUITY

	-	2021	-	2020
CURRENT LIABILITIES				
Accrued Expenses	\$	39,224	\$	121,568
Franchise Deposits		20,000		55
Current Portion of Long-Term Debt (Note H)		36,852		12,904
Line of Credits (Note G)		10,530		277,639
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES		106,606	-	412,111
LONG-TERM LIABILITIES				
Due To Stockholder		e 		319,383
Long-Term Debt, net of current portion (Note H)	-	514,648		47,696
TOTAL LONG TERM LIABILITIES		514,648		367,079
TOTAL LIABILITIES		621,254		779,190
STOCKHOLDER'S EQUITY				
Common Stock - 20,000 Shares Authorized,				
200 Issued and Outstanding		200		200
Additional Paid in Capital		356,140		131,336
Retained Earnings (Accumulated Deficit)	_	(396,907)		(432,705)
TOTAL STOCKHOLDER'S EQUITY (DEFICIT)		(40,567)		(301,169)
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDER'S EQUITY	\$	580,687	\$	478,021



WATERS EDGE WINERIES, INC. STATEMENTS OF INCOME Years Ended December 31, 2021 and 2020

	2021	2020
REVENUES		
Sales	\$ 361,687	\$ 548,120
Franchise Royalties	305,473	178,111
Franchise Sales (Notes A and N)	77,000	115,000
Gain Contingency - PPP Loan Forgiveness (Note A)	41,714	31,502
Other Income (Note A)	157,811	617
Gain From Disposal of Fixed Assets	11,500	-
TOTAL REVENUES	955,185	873,350
COST OF GOODS SOLD	279,121	634,064
GROSS PROFIT	676,064	239,286
EXPENSES		
Advertising (Note A)	118,023	68,672
Depreciation	10,218	21,873
General & Administrative	85,164	85,804
Insurance	27,082	91,198
Interest	45,899	23,975
Professional Fees-Legal	85,162	58,422
Professional Fees-Other	61,222	26,967
Personnel Expenses	167,520	192,632
Rent	39,176	65,400
TOTAL EXPENSES	639,466	634,943
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE TAXES	36,598	(395,657)
Income Tax Expense (Note B)	800	800
NET INCOME (LOSS)	\$ 35,798	\$ (396,457)



WATERS EDGE WINERIES, INC. STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDER'S EQUITY

Years Ended December 31, 2021 and 2020

	Common Stock		Additional					
	Shares	Ar	nount		Paid In Capital	ned Earnings nulated Deficit)	_	Total
Beginning Balance, January 1, 2020	200	\$	200		54,260	\$ (36,248)	\$	18,212
Contributions	2.5		0 		77,076	ies:		77,076
Distributions	i 		n a		-	378		
Net Income (Loss)				_		(396,457)	-	(396,457)
Ending Balance, December 31, 2020	200	\$	200	\$	131,336	\$ (432,705)	\$	(301,169)
Contributions	:=		-		224,804	* 0		224,804
Distributions	:-		-		:=	*		.
Net Income (Loss)		10			3 #	35,798	,	35,798
Ending Balance, December 31, 2021	200	\$	200	\$	356,140	\$ (396,907)	_\$_	(40,567)



WATERS EDGE WINERIES, INC. STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS Years Ended December 31, 2021 and 2020

	6	2021		2020
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES				
Net Income (Loss)	\$	35,798	\$	(396,457)
Adjustments to Reconcile Net Income to Net Cash	Ф	33,770	Ψ	(370,437)
Provided(Used) by Operating Activities:				
Depreciation		10,218		21,873
Gain From Disposal of Fixed Assets		(11,500)		-
Cash Provided(Used) by Changes in		(11,000)		
Operating Assets and Liabilities:				
Accounts Receivable		6,435		120,368
Inventory		180,240		6,273
Franchise Deposits		20,000		-
Due from Related Party		(118,720)		
Accrued Expenses		(82,344)		(8,146)
Employee Advances		(1,591)		(3,500)
Due from Stockholder		(319,383)		72,733
Note Payable-Current Portion		23,948		595
Lines of Credit	9	(267,109)		49,100
CASH USED FOR OPERATING ACTIVITIES		(524,008)		(137,161)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES				
Proceeds from Additional-Paid-in-Capital		224,804		77,076
Proceeds from Long-Term Debt		495,755		E
Principal Payments of Long-Term Debt	-	(5,641)		(7,796)
CASH PROVIDED BY FINANCING ACTIVITIES		714,918		69,280
INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS		190,910		(67,881)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year		20,337		88,218
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR	\$	211,247	\$	20,337
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION:				
Income Taxes Paid	\$	800	\$	800
Interest Expense	Ψ	45,899	Ψ	23,975
merest Expense		75,077		20,010



NOTE A-SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

- 1. Waters Edge Wineries, Inc. (the Company) was incorporated under the laws of the State of California on May 15, 2012. The Company has adopted a December 31 calendar year end for reporting requirements.
- 2. The Company is a franchisor that provides a unique franchise system to franchisees. The Company sells franchise licenses to business owners in certain states. The license provides the franchisee the right to the Company's trademarks, training, processes, software and supply chain to help them operate an independent winery business. The Company collects monthly royalty and support fees from the franchisees. The Company and its affiliate also sell wine and wine related products.
- 3. Revenue Recognition-The Company accounts for revenue using the accounting method prescribed under Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) Topics 606, "Revenue from Contracts with Customers" which provides a five-step analysis of contracts to determine when and how revenue is recognized and replaces most existing revenue recognition guidance in the United States of America generally accepted accounting principles. The ASU also required expanded disclosures relating to the nature, amount, timing, and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from contracts with customers. The Company adopted the new standard effective January 1, 2019.

Under the new guidance, the Company determines if the pre-opening activities contain any distinct goods or services. A good or service that is promised to a franchisee is distinct if both of the following criteria are met: (a) the franchisee can benefit from the good or service either on its own or together with other resources that are readily available to the franchisee, and (b) the Company's promise to transfer the good or service to the franchisee is separately identifiable from other promises in the contract. The transaction is then allocated to distinct performance obligations based on standard selling prices.

In January 2021, FASB issued Accounting Standards Update No. 2021-02, "Franchisor-Revenue from Contracts with Customers", creating a practical expedient that simplifies the identification of performance obligations for private company franchisors for certain pre-opening services. The Company made the election to use this practical expedient to recognize the pre-opening services as a single performance obligation.

Pre-opening services are defined as follows:

- a. Assistance in the selection of a site
- b. Assistance in obtaining facilities and preparing the facilities for their intended use, including related financing, architectural, and lease negotiation
- c. Training of the franchisee's personnel or the franchisee
- d. Preparation and distribution of manuals and similar materials concerning operations, administration, and record keeping

NOTE A-SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES-CON'T:

Revenue Recognition-Con't

- e. Bookkeeping, information technology, and advisory services, including setting u the franchisee's records and advising the franchisee about income, real estate, and other taxes or about regulations affecting the franchisee's business
- f. Inspection, testing, and other quality control programs

As provided by the practical expedient, pre-opening services provided by the Company to a franchisee are accounted for as a single performance obligation, distinct from franchisee license. Accordingly, initial fees allocated to pre-opening services are recognized when those services are performed consistent with current GAAP. There were no deferred revenue

Revenue is recognized when all material services or conditions relating to the sale have been substantially, performed or satisfied by the company (usually upon commencement of franchisee obtaining capacity of earning fees). Fees received before this time are deferred and included in deferred franchise fees. There were no deferred franchise fees as of December 31, 2021 and 2020.

Franchise royalties are recognized when earned and are stated net of all related franchisee costs. The royalty and support fees are average 5% of the franchisees' gross sales and \$350 per month. Revenue from sale of wine and wine related products are recognized upon completion of sale.

In 2021, the Company received a \$41,714 loan from a bank under the Paycheck Protection Program (PPP) established by the Coronavirus Aid Relief, and Economic Security (CARES) Act. The loan was to be forgiven to the extent loan proceeds were used for eligible expenses such as payroll and other expenses described in the CARES Act. The Company used the loan proceeds for qualifying expenses and the entire loan was forgiven in 2021.

The Company also received grants from state and various other sources while under shut down ordinance from local governance.

- 4. <u>Cash & Cash Equivalents</u> for purposes of the statement of cash flows, include cash on hand, cash in checking and savings accounts with banks. All short-term debt securities with a maturity of three months or less are considered cash equivalents.
- 5. Accounts Receivable-consist of fees related to services rendered and sales completed in the current year but were not received as of the balance sheet date. Management determines an allowance for doubtful accounts based on specific identification of uncollectible receivables and historical collection rates. Uncollectible receivables are written off after all attempts at collection are exhausted. Management has determined that all receivables are collectible at December 31, 2021.
- 6. <u>Reclassifications</u>-Certain accounts in the prior year financial statements have been reclassified for comparative purposes to conform to the presentation in the current year financial statements.



NOTE A-SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES-CON'T:

- 7. <u>Use of Estimates</u>-The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from the estimates.
- 8. <u>Inventory</u>-Inventories are stated at the lower cost or market. Cost is determined on a standard cost basis that approximates the first-in, first-out (FIFO) method. Market is determined based on net realizable value. Appropriate consideration is given to obsolescence, excessive levels, deterioration and other factors in evaluating net realizable value. Ending inventory was \$-0- and \$180,240 at December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively. The Company shifted its wine selling operations to its affiliate company and focused on operating the franchise operation in 2021.
- 9. <u>Leases</u> that meet the criteria for capitalization are classified as capital leases. Leases that do not meet such criteria are classified as operating leases and related rentals are charged to expense as incurred (Note D).
- 10. <u>Concentration of Cash and Credit Risk-The Company maintains corporate cash balances which, at times, may exceed federally insured limits.</u> Management believes it is not exposed to any significant risk on its cash balances. At year end, the Company has no uninsured cash balances.
- 11. Property and Equipment are stated at cost. The straight-line method of depreciation is followed for financial reporting purposes. Depreciation is provided in amounts sufficient to relate the cost of assets to operations over their estimated service lives or the lives of the respective leases, whichever is shorter. As the Company's accounting policy, maintenance and repairs are charged to expense. Major renewals and improvements are capitalized. Gains and losses on dispositions are credited or charged to earnings as incurred.

Depreciation is provided at rates based on the following estimated useful lives:

Furniture and Equipment

5-7 years

Vehicles

5 years

For federal income tax purposes, depreciation is computed using the accelerated cost recovery system and the modified accelerated cost recovery system.

12. <u>Fair Value of Financial Instruments</u>-Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) Topic 820, "*Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures*", defines fair value as the price that would be received upon sale of an asset or paid upon transfer of a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date and in the principal or most advantageous market for that asset or liability.



NOTE A-SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES-CON'T:

The fair value should be calculated based on assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability, not on assumptions specific to the entity.

<u>Cash and Cash Equivalents</u>, <u>Accounts Receivable</u>, <u>Other Receivables</u>, <u>Accrued Liabilities and Other Payables</u>. The carrying amounts reported in the balance sheets for these items are a reasonable estimate of fair value.

<u>Loan Payable and Long-Term Debt</u>-The fair value of loan payable and long-term debt is estimated based on the present value of cash flows required under the loan and debt, using discounting rate based on interest rates for similar debt instruments. The carrying amounts approximated fair value.

13. <u>Advertising Costs</u> are expensed in the year incurred. The Company incurred \$118,023 and \$68,672 in advertising expense in the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

NOTE B-INCOME TAXES:

Waters Edge Wineries, Inc. has elected to be taxed under the provisions of Subchapter S of the Internal Revenue Code. Under those provisions, the Company does not pay federal corporate income taxes on its taxable income. Instead, the stockholders are liable for individual federal income taxes on their respective shares of the Company's taxable income in their individual income tax returns. The State of California imposes a tax of 1 ½% of taxable income or \$800, whichever is greater.

Provision for state income tax for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 is as follows:

	<u></u>	2021	9-	2020		
California	\$	800	\$_	800		
				=		

The income allocable to each stockholder is subject to examination by federal and state taxing authorities. In the event of an examination of the income tax returns, the tax liability of the stockholders could be changed if an adjustment in the income is ultimately determined by the taxing authorities.

Certain transactions of the Company may be subject to accounting methods for income tax purposes that differ significantly from the accounting methods used in preparing the financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. Accordingly, the taxable income of the Company reported for income tax purposes may differ from net income in these financial statements.

The Company has adopted FASB ASC 740-10 regarding accounting for uncertain income tax positions. Management is not aware of any tax positions that are more likely than not to change in the next 12 months, or that would sustain an examination by applicable taxing authorities.



NOTE B-INCOME TAXES-CONT:

The Company recognizes penalties and interest arising from uncertain tax positions as incurred in the statement of income and comprehensive income, which are none for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020.

The federal and state income tax returns of the Company are subject to examination by the IRS and state taxing authorities, generally for three years after they are filed.

NOTE C-PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT:

At December 31, 2021 and 2020, the company had the following property and equipment:

	2021	2020
Furniture and Equipment Vehicles Leasehold Improvements	\$ - 76,092 -	\$ 93,288 76,092 5,000
Total Property and Equipment	174,380	174,380
Accumulated Depreciation	(40,654)	(117,062)
Net Property and Equipment	\$ 35,438	\$ 57,318

NOTE D-COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES:

V 1 D 1 21

The Company leases office facilities under a non-cancelable operating lease that expires in December 2023. The future minimum lease obligations are as follows:

Year ending December 31		
2022	\$	68,400
2023	2 	68,400
Total	\$	205,200

NOTE E- STOCKHOLDER:

Ken Lineberger is the sole stockholder of the company with 200 shares of stock for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020.

NOTE F-RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:

The Company has a note receivable from BEKH Cellar, a related party company, in the amount of \$118,720 as of December 31, 2021. This loan is unsecured, non-interest bearing and due in December 2022.

NOTE G-FINANCING ARRANGEMENTS:

2023

2024 Thereafter

TOTAL

The Company has revolving lines of credit with American Express with borrowing limits of \$50,000. The credit lines bear interest at 10%. The amount outstanding on the line of credit was \$10,530 as of December 31, 2021.

NOTE H-LONG TERM DEBT:

Long-Term Debts as of December 31, 2021 and 2020 consisted of the following:

	2021	2020		
Note Payable to Auto Center Secured by vehicle, monthly payment of \$1,274 including interest at 4.74% annually.	\$ 46,850	\$ 60,600		
Unsecured SBA Loan, matures in August 2051, with Interest rate of 3.75%. Monthly payment of \$2,496 will start in August 2022.	467,798			
	551,500	60,600		
Less: Current Portion	36,852	12,904		
Net Long-Term Debt	\$ 514,648	\$ 47,696		
Maturities of financing obligations are as follows:				
Year Ending December 31	Amount			
2022	\$ 36,852			

42,300

48,164

424,184

551,500

NOTE I-FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS:

FASB ASC Topic 820 specifies a hierarchy of valuation techniques based upon whether the inputs to those valuation techniques reflect assumptions other market participants would use based upon market data obtained from independent sources (observable inputs).

In accordance with FASB ASC Topic 820, the following summarizes the fair value hierarchy:

<u>Level 1 Inputs</u>—Unadjusted quoted market prices for identical assets and liabilities in an active market that the Company has the ability to access.

<u>Level 2 Inputs</u>—Inputs other than the quoted prices in active markets that are observable either directly or indirectly.

<u>Level 3 Inputs</u>—Inputs based on prices or valuation techniques that are both unobservable and significant to the overall fair value measurements.

FASB ASC Topic 820 requires the use of observable market data, when available, in making fair value measurements. When inputs used to measure fair value fall within different levels of the hierarchy, the level within which the fair value measurement is categorized is based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurements. Valuation techniques used need to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs.

As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, there were no assets and liabilities measured at fair value.

NOTE J-CLAIMS AND LITIGATIONS:

In 2017, the Company brought a litigation against one of its franchisee, Franson Family Wineries, LLC ("Franson") and its owner for breach of contract, breach of implied contract, declaratory relief, injunctive relief and intentional interference with prospective economic advantage arising from Franson's breach of the franchise agreement, failing to pay fees, producing wine off premises, use of unauthorized products, failing to provide monthly reports and for interfering with the Company's relation with other franchisees. Franson counter-sued the Company on February 7, 2018 for fraud, rescission and unfair competition. The trial was held in September 2021.

The Company prevailed and received favorable judgement on March 1, 2022 in the amount of \$1,835,998. Management is working with its legal representative on collection of the judgement. The Company expects to collect most if not all of that awarded judgement.

NOTE K-SUBSEQUENT EVENT:

In preparing these financial statements, the Company has evaluated events and transactions for potential recognition or disclosure through March 14, 2022, the date the financial statements were available to be issued. Except for disclosure on Note J, Claim and Litigations, there were no other subsequent events requiring adjustments to and disclosures in the financial statements as of and for the year ended December 31, 2021.

NOTE L-SIGNIFICANT EVENTS:

On March 11, 2020, the World Health Organization ("WHO") declared the coronavirus (COVID 19), a global pandemic and public health emergency. The WHO has recommended containment and mitigation measures worldwide and domestically, self-isolation and shelter-in-place requirements have been put in place. The pandemic has continued subsequent to December 31, 2021.

At this point, the Company cannot reasonably estimate the length or severity of this pandemic, or the extent to which this disruption may impact the Company's financial statements and future results of operations. The Company will continue to monitor and evaluate the nature and extent of the impact on its ongoing business and future results of operations, financial condition, and liquidity.

NOTE M-NET LOSSES:

For the year ended December 31, 2020, the Company reported net losses of \$396,457. The loss in 2020 is a direct impact of the Covid 19 pandemic. Company's sales dropped significantly when the stores were forced to close. In response to the net loss and current financial position, management has implemented expense reduction and revenue enhancement plans. The Company is in the process of signing a few new franchisees and was able to secure second round of PPP loan as well as EIDL loan from the federal government in 2021. As of the date of these financial statements, the Company believes that there are no uncertainties about the Company's ability to continue as a going concern.



EXHIBIT H STATE SPECIFIC ADDENDA

ADDENDUM TO WATERS EDGE WINERIES, INC.

DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT - REQUIRED BY THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA

THE CALIFORNIA FRANCHISE INVESTMENT LAW REQUIRES A COPY OF ALL PROPOSED AGREEMENTS RELATING TO THE SALE OF THE FRANCHISE TO BE DELIVERED TOGETHER WITH THE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT 14 DAYS PRIOR TO EXECUTION OF ANY AGREEMENT.

Neither Waters Edge Wineries, Inc., nor any person or franchise broker in Item 2 of the Franchise Disclosure Document is subject to any currently effective order of any National Securities Association or National Securities Exchange, as defined in the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, 15 U.S.C.A. 78a et seq., suspending or expelling these persons from membership in this association or exchange.

The Franchise Agreement requires the parties to resolve all disputes through litigation in the U.S. District for the Central District of California or any state court in San Bernardino, California, with the costs being borne by the losing party.

California Business and Professions Code Sections 20000 through 20043 provide rights to the franchisee concerning termination, transfer or non-renewal of a franchise. If the Franchise Agreement contains a provision that is inconsistent with the law, the law will control.

The Franchise Agreement provides for termination upon bankruptcy. This provision may not be enforceable under Federal Bankruptcy Law (11 U.S.C.A. sec. 101 et. Seq.).

The Franchise Agreement contains a covenant not to compete which extends beyond the termination of the franchise. This provision may not be enforceable under California law.

Section 31125 of the Franchise Investment Law requires us to give to you a disclosure document approved by the Commissioner of Financial Protection and Innovation before we ask you to consider a material modification of your Franchise Agreement.

You must sign a general release if you renew or transfer your franchise. California Corporations Code Section 31512 voids a waiver of your rights under the Franchise Investment Law (California Corporations Code Sections 31000 through 31516).

OUR WEBSITE WWW.WATERSEDGEWINERIES.COM HAS NOT BEEN REVIEWED OR APPROVED BY THE CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF FINANCIAL PROTECTION AND INNOVATION. ANY COMPLAINTS CONCERNING THE CONTENT OF THIS WEBSITE MAY BE DIRECTED TO THE CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF FINANCIAL PROTECTION AND INNOVATION AT WWW.DFPI.CA.GOV.

The Franchise Agreement contains a liquidated damages clause. Under California Civil Code Section 1671, certain liquidated damages are unenforceable.

Item 6 of the FDD is amended in California to disclose that the highest interest rate allowed by law in California is 10%.

Franchisee must comply with the requirements set forth in the alcoholic beverage control act and the California code of regulations for the sale of alcoholic beverages.

You will not receive an exclusive territory. You may face competition from other franchisees, from outlets that we own, or from other channels of distribution or competitive brands that we control.

No disclaimer, questionnaire, clause, or statement signed by a franchisee in connection with the commencement of the franchise relationship shall be construed or interpreted as waiving any claim of fraud in the inducement, whether common law or statutory, or as disclaiming reliance on or the right to rely upon any statement made or information provided by any franchisor, broker or other person acting on behalf of the franchisor that was a material inducement to a franchisee's investment. Any statements or representations signed by a franchisee purporting to understand any fact or its legal effect shall be deemed made only based upon the franchisee's understanding of the law and facts as of the time of the franchisee's investment decision. This provision supersedes any other or inconsistent term of any document executed in connection with the franchise.

ADDENDUM TO THE WATERS EDGE WINERIES, INC. FRANCHISE AGREEMENT – CALIFORNIA

This Addendum to Franchise Agreement (this	"Addendum")	dated	, is
intended to be a part of, and by this reference is incorp	porated into that	certain Franchise	Agreement (the
"Franchise Agreement") dated,	by and between	Waters Edge V	Vineries, Inc., a
California corporation, as Franchisor ("Franchisor"), and	1		, as Franchisee
("Franchisee"). Where and to the extent that any of the pro-	ovisions of this A	ddendum are conti	ary to, in conflict
with or inconsistent with any provision contained in the F	ranchise Agreeme	ent, the provisions	contained in this
Addendum shall control. Defined terms contained in	the Franchise Ag	greement shall ha	ave the identical
meanings in this Addendum.			

For the purposes of Cal. Bus. & prof. Code Section 20022, Franchisor and Franchisee agree that:

- 1. The parties will use the declining-balance depreciation method to calculate the value of Franchisee's assets (inventory, supplies, equipment, fixtures, and furnishings) for the purposes of a purchase by Franchisor under Section 20022. The purchase price by Franchisor for these assets will not include the cost of removal and transportation of those assets, which will be Franchisee's responsibility.
- 2. For purposes of Section 20022, franchisee is not able to provide to Franchisor "clear title and possession" to Franchisee's assets if those assets are subject to liens or encumbrances including: (i) purchase money security interests; (ii) blanket security interests; (iii) rights of first refusal; (iv) liens by Franchisee's landlord; or (v) tax liens.
- 3. For the purposes of Section 20022(h), Franchisor's right of offset will include the following amounts owed by Franchisee to Franchisor or Franchisor's affiliates: (i) royalty fees; (ii) advertising fees; (iii) added services fees; (iv) liquidated damages; (v) transfer fees; and (vi) any other type of fees or amounts owed by Franchisee to Franchisor or Franchisor's affiliates.

For the purposes of Cal. Bus. & prof. Code Section 20035, Franchisor and Franchisee agree that:

- 1. **"Fair Market Value of the Franchise Assets"** means the value of Franchisee's assets, valued according to the declining-balance method of depreciation. The purchase price by Franchisor for the assets will not include the cost of removal and transportation of those assets, which will be Franchisee's responsibility.
- 2. "Fair Market Value Of The Franchised Business" means the "Fair Market Value Of The Franchise Assets" as defined above, plus goodwill. The parties agree that the value of goodwill is the amount of royalty fees paid by Franchisee to Franchisor within the twelve (12) month period immediately before Franchisor's termination or failure to renew if franchisor is in violation of the California Franchise Relations Act.

No disclaimer, questionnaire, clause, or statement signed by a franchisee in connection with the commencement of the franchise relationship shall be construed or interpreted as waiving any claim of fraud in the inducement, whether common law or statutory, or as disclaiming reliance on or the right to rely upon any statement made or information provided by any franchisor, broker or other person acting on behalf of the franchisor that was a material inducement to a franchisee's investment. Any statements or representations signed by a franchisee purporting to understand any fact or its legal effect shall be deemed made only based upon the franchisee's understanding of the law and facts as of the time of the franchisee's investment decision. This provision supersedes any other or inconsistent term of any document executed in connection with the franchise.

<u>FRANCHISEE</u>	<u>FRANCHISOR</u>
	WATERS EDGE WINERIES, INC.
Signature:	By:
Print Name:	Print Name:

ILLINOIS

ADDENDUM TO DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

In recognition of the requirements of the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act of 1987, as amended (the "**Act**"), the Disclosure Document is amended as follows:

- 1. Illinois law governs the agreements between the parties to the Franchise Agreement.
- 2. Section 4 of the Act provides that any provision in the Franchise Agreement that designates jurisdiction or venue outside the State of Illinois is void. However, a Franchise Agreement may provide for arbitration outside of Illinois.
- 3. Section 41 of the Act provides that any condition, stipulation or provision that purports to bind a person acquiring any franchise to waive compliance with the Act or any other law of Illinois is void.
- 4. Your rights upon termination and non-renewal of the Franchise Agreement are set forth in sections 19 and 20 of the Act.
- 5. No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgement signed or agreed to by a franchisee in connection with the commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of (i) waiving any claims under any applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, or (ii) disclaiming reliance on any statement made by any franchisor. This provision supersedes any other term of any document executed in connection with the franchise.

ILLINOIS

ADDENDUM TO FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

			HISE AGREEMENT (this "Addendum") dated,
			this reference is incorporated into that certain Franchise Agreement (the, by and between WATERS EDGE WINERIES,
INC.,	A	CALIFORNIA	CORPORATION, as franchisor ("Franchisor"), and as franchisee ("Franchisee"). Where and to the extent that any of the
Franch	ise Agre	nis Addendum are co eement, the provision	ntrary to, in conflict with or inconsistent with any provision contained in the s contained in this Addendum shall control. Defined terms contained in the identical meanings in this Addendum.
1.	Illinois	s law governs the agi	reements between the parties to the Franchise Agreement.
2.	Agreer	ment that designates	Franchise Disclosure Act provides that any provision in the Franchise jurisdiction or venue outside the State of Illinois is void. However, a provide for arbitration outside of Illinois.
3.	provisi	ion that purports to b	Franchise Disclosure Act provides that any condition, stipulation or ind a person acquiring any franchise to waive compliance with the Illinois r any other law of Illinois is void.
4.			ermination and non-renewal of the Franchise Agreement are set forth in linois Franchise Disclosure Act.
5.	with the under reliance	ne commencement of any applicable state e on any statement	e, or acknowledgement signed or agreed to by a franchisee in connection of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of (i) waiving any claims are franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, or (ii) disclaiming made by any franchisor. This provision supersedes any other term of any section with the franchise.
			f the undersigned hereby acknowledges having read this Addendum, and nd by all of its terms.
FRAN	CHISO	R:	FRANCHISEE:
		GE WINERIES, IN	
By:			
Name:			By:

Title: _____

Title: _____

VIRGINIA

ADDENDUM TO DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

Item 17 is amended by the addition of the following:

"According to Section 13.1-564 of the Virginia Retail Franchising Act, it is unlawful for a franchisor to cancel a franchise without reasonable cause. If any grounds for default or termination stated in the Franchise Agreement does not constitute "reasonable cause," as that term may be defined in the Virginia Retail Franchising Act or the laws of Virginia, that provision may not be enforceable."

No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgement signed or agreed to by a franchisee in connection with the commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of (i) waiving any claims under any applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, or (ii) disclaiming reliance on any statement made by any franchisor. This provision supersedes any other term of any document executed in connection with the franchise.

EXHIBIT I

ELECTRONIC FUNDS TRANSFER AUTHORIZATION

AUTHORIZATION AGREEMENT FOR PREARRANGED PAYMENTS

(DIRECT DEBITS)

The undersigned franchisee/depositor ("DEPOSITOR") hereby (1) authorizes WATERS EDGE WINERIES, INC. and its affiliates ("FRANCHISOR") to initiate debit entries and/or credit correction entries to the undersigned's checking and/or savings account indicated below and (2) authorizes the depository designated below ("Depository") to debit such account pursuant to FRANCHISOR's instructions.

Depository	Branch
City and State	Zip Code
Bank Transit /ABA Number	Account Number
from FRANCHISOR and DEPOSITOR of t in such manner as to afford Depository a re	nd effect until Depository has received joint written notification he DEPOSITOR's termination of such authority in such time and easonable opportunity to act on it. Notwithstanding the foregoing,
termination of this authority. If an erroneous shall have the right to have the amount of fifteen (15) calendar days following the account or a written notice pertaining to sfirst, DEPOSITOR shall have sent to Depoentry was in error, and requesting Deposit in addition to any rights DEPOSITOR may responsible for all charges assessed by Dep	and DEPOSITOR with thirty (30) days prior written notice of the sus debit entry is initiated to DEPOSITOR's account, DEPOSITOR such entry credited to such account by Depository, if (a) within date on which Depository sent to DEPOSITOR a statement of such entry or forty-five (45) days after posting, whichever comes ository a written notice identifying such entry, stating that such ory to credit the amount thereof to such account. These rights are have under federal and state banking laws. DEPOSITOR shall be ository to process all debit entries and/or credit corrections entries gs account initiated by FRANCHISOR. FRANCHISOR will credit to be caused by FRANCHISOR.
termination of this authority. If an erroneous shall have the right to have the amount of fifteen (15) calendar days following the account or a written notice pertaining to sfirst, DEPOSITOR shall have sent to Depoentry was in error, and requesting Deposit in addition to any rights DEPOSITOR may responsible for all charges assessed by Depto the undersigned's checking and/or saving	sus debit entry is initiated to DEPOSITOR's account, DEPOSITOR such entry credited to such account by Depository, if (a) within date on which Depository sent to DEPOSITOR a statement of such entry or forty-five (45) days after posting, whichever comes ository a written notice identifying such entry, stating that such ory to credit the amount thereof to such account. These rights are have under federal and state banking laws. DEPOSITOR shall be ository to process all debit entries and/or credit corrections entries gs account initiated by FRANCHISOR. FRANCHISOR will credit
termination of this authority. If an erroneous shall have the right to have the amount of fifteen (15) calendar days following the account or a written notice pertaining to sfirst, DEPOSITOR shall have sent to Depoentry was in error, and requesting Deposit in addition to any rights DEPOSITOR may responsible for all charges assessed by Depto the undersigned's checking and/or savin DEPOSITOR for fees if any error is deemed.	sus debit entry is initiated to DEPOSITOR's account, DEPOSITOR such entry credited to such account by Depository, if (a) within date on which Depository sent to DEPOSITOR a statement of such entry or forty-five (45) days after posting, whichever comes ository a written notice identifying such entry, stating that such ory to credit the amount thereof to such account. These rights are have under federal and state banking laws. DEPOSITOR shall be ository to process all debit entries and/or credit corrections entries gs account initiated by FRANCHISOR. FRANCHISOR will credit to be caused by FRANCHISOR.



State Effective Dates

The following states have franchise laws that require that the Franchise Disclosure Document be registered or filed with the state, or be exempt from registration: California, Hawaii, Illinois, Indiana, Maryland, Michigan, Minnesota, New York, North Dakota, Rhode Island, South Dakota, Virginia, Washington, and Wisconsin.

This document is effective and may be used in the following states, where the document is filed, registered or exempt from registration, as of the Effective Date stated below:

State	Effective Date
California	May 14 2023, as amended pending
Illinois	April 25, 2023, as amended pending
Indiana	April 29, 2023, as amended pending
Virginia	May 22, 2023, as amended pending

Other states may require registration, filing, or exemption of a franchise under other laws, such as those that regulate the offer and sale of business opportunities or seller-assisted marketing plans.

EXHIBIT J

RECEIPTS

RECEIPTS

(Your Copy)

THIS DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT SUMMARIZES CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT AND OTHER INFORMATION IN PLAIN LANGUAGE. READ THIS DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT AND ALL AGREEMENTS CAREFULLY.

IF WE OFFER YOU A FRANCHISE, WE MUST PROVIDE THIS DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT TO YOU 14 CALENDAR DAYS BEFORE YOU SIGN A BINDING AGREEMENT WITH, OR MAKE A PAYMENT TO, US OR AN AFFILIATE IN CONNECTION WITH THE PROPOSED FRANCHISE SALE.

MICHIGAN REQUIRES THAT WE GIVE YOU THIS DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT AT THE EARLIER OF 10 BUSINESS DAYS BEFORE THE EXECUTION OF THE FRANCHISE OR OTHER AGREEMENT OR THE PAYMENT OF ANY CONSIDERATION THAT RELATES TO THE FRANCHISE RELATIONSHIP.

NEW YORK REQUIRES YOU TO RECEIVE THIS FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT AT THE EARLIER OF THE FIRST PERSONAL MEETING OR 10 BUSINESS DAYS BEFORE THE EXECUTION OF THE FRANCHISE OR OTHER AGREEMENT OR THE PAYMENT OF ANY CONSIDERATION THAT RELATES TO THE FRANCHISE RELATIONSHIP.

IF WE DO NOT DELIVER THIS DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT ON TIME OR IF IT CONTAINS A FALSE OR MISLEADING STATEMENT, OR A MATERIAL OMISSION, A VIOLATION OF FEDERAL AND STATE LAW MAY HAVE OCCURRED AND SHOULD BE REPORTED TO THE FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION, WASHINGTON, D.C. 20580 AND THE STATE AGENCY REFERRED TO IN EXHIBIT A.

The name, principal business address and phone number of each franchise seller offering the franchise is:

Franchisor:	Franchise Seller:	Additional Sellers (if applicable)
Waters Edge Wineries, Inc. 8560 Vineyard Avenue, Suite 408 Rancho Cucamonga, CA 91730 Telephone: (909) 468-9463 ken@watersedgewineries.com	Names of Individual(s) selling on behalf of Franchisor: Ken Lineberger and Mark Mitzenmacher Waters Edge Wineries, Inc. 8560 Vineyard Avenue, Suite 408 Rancho Cucamonga, CA 91730 Telephone: (909) 468-9463 ken@watersedgewineries.com	f
	Leslie S. Heffner	Sidney H. Lee
	West Coast Franchise Developers	21 Farraday Lane
	2444 Domingo Street	Palm Coast, FL 32137
	Las Vegas, NV 89121	Telephone: (386) 569-5190
	Telephone: (530) 957-4755	-
receive service of process. I received a disclosure document da Exhibits: A) List of State Agencies; and Food Operations Manual; D) Fr	amended August 10, 2023. See Exhibit ated April 10, 2023, as amended August B) Application and Deposit Agreement; C) ranchise Agreement; E) Addendum to Frants; H) State Specific Addenda; I) Electron	st 10, 2023, that included the following Table of Contents for Operations Manual chise Agreement (SBA Loan); F) List of
Receipts.		
Date:	Signed:	
	Print Name:	
	Address:	<u> </u>
	City:	State:
	Phone: ()	Zip:

Date:	Signed:	
	Print Name:	
	Address:	
	City:	State:
	Phone: ()	Zip:

KEEP THIS COPY FOR YOUR RECORDS

RECEIPTS

(Our Copy)

THIS DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT SUMMARIZES CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT AND OTHER INFORMATION IN PLAIN LANGUAGE. READ THIS DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT AND ALL AGREEMENTS CAREFULLY.

IF WE OFFER YOU A FRANCHISE, WE MUST PROVIDE THIS DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT TO YOU 14 CALENDAR DAYS BEFORE YOU SIGN A BINDING AGREEMENT WITH, OR MAKE A PAYMENT TO, US OR AN AFFILIATE IN CONNECTION WITH THE PROPOSED FRANCHISE SALE.

MICHIGAN REQUIRES THAT WE GIVE YOU THIS DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT AT THE EARLIER OF 10 BUSINESS DAYS BEFORE THE EXECUTION OF THE FRANCHISE OR OTHER AGREEMENT OR THE PAYMENT OF ANY CONSIDERATION THAT RELATES TO THE FRANCHISE RELATIONSHIP.

NEW YORK REQUIRES YOU TO RECEIVE THIS FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT AT THE EARLIER OF THE FIRST PERSONAL MEETING OR 10 BUSINESS DAYS BEFORE THE EXECUTION OF THE FRANCHISE OR OTHER AGREEMENT OR THE PAYMENT OF ANY CONSIDERATION THAT RELATES TO THE FRANCHISE RELATIONSHIP.

IF WE DO NOT DELIVER THIS DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT ON TIME OR IF IT CONTAINS A FALSE OR MISLEADING STATEMENT, OR A MATERIAL OMISSION, A VIOLATION OF FEDERAL AND STATE LAW MAY HAVE OCCURRED AND SHOULD BE REPORTED TO THE FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION, WASHINGTON, D.C. 20580 AND THE STATE AGENCY REFERRED TO IN EXHIBIT A.

Franchisor:	Franchise Seller:	Additional Sellers (if applicable)
Waters Edge Wineries, Inc. 8560 Vineyard Avenue, Suite 408 Rancho Cucamonga, CA 91730 Telephone: (909) 468-9463 ken@watersedgewineries.com	Names of Individual(s) selling on behalf of Franchisor: Ken Lineberger and Mark Mitzenmacher Waters Edge Wineries, Inc. 8560 Vineyard Avenue, Suite 408 Rancho Cucamonga, CA 91730 Telephone: (909) 468-9463 ken@watersedgewineries.com	of
	Leslie S. Heffner West Coast Franchise Developers 2444 Domingo Street Las Vegas, NV 89121 Telephone: (530) 957-4755	Sidney H. Lee 21 Farraday Lane Palm Coast, FL 32137 Telephone: (386) 569-5190
Issuance Date: April 10, 2023, as receive service of process.	amended August 10, 2023. See Exhibit	A for our registered agents authorized to
Exhibits: A) List of State Agencies; and Food Operations Manual; D) F	ated April 10, 2023, as amended Augu B) Application and Deposit Agreement; C ranchise Agreement; E) Addendum to Frants; H) State Specific Addenda; I) Electron	Table of Contents for Operations Manual Table Agreement (SBA Loan); F) List of
Date:	Signed:	
	Print Name:	
	Address:	
	City:	State:
	Phone: ()	Zip:

Date:	Signed:	
	Print Name:	
	Address:	
	City:	State:
	Phone: ()	Zip:

PLEASE SIGN AND DATE THIS COPY OF THE RECEIPT AND RETURN IT TO: Ken Lineberger, 8560 Vineyard Avenue, Suite 408, Rancho Cucamonga, CA 91730